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Service Corporation International
(SCI) is the world’s leading provider
of funeral, crerﬁation, and cemetery
services. Throuigh more than 3,000
affiliated businésses and nearly
29,000 employees in eight countries,
the Company pfrovides compassion-
ate assistance ito grieving families at
their time of néed. SCI also provides
assistance to those who wish to plan
their own funeral and burial arrange-
ments in advanfce. And it conducts a
variety of public service programs to
educate, protect, honor, and
enhance the Ii\jles of families in the
communities it@ is privileged to serve.
During 2002, tlfle Company made
great strides m strengthening its
financial positibn while laying the
groundwork foir greater operating
efficiency and increased investment

value in years to come.



Letter to Our Shareholders

Service Corporation International
finished 2002 on solid footing,
with a renewed sense of energy,
improved financial strengch, and a
number of initiatives in place to
maintain its leadership in a neces-
sary and respected industry. Owing
to a number of factors—all of
which are detailed in the Form
10-K contained in this annual
report—the Company generated
increased cash flow during 2002
but lower revenues and earnings
(before non-recurring items). In
spite of these realities, however, we
remain optimistic about the direc-
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tion SCI has taken. We continue
to shift to a business model based
on cash earnings, and the results
have been undeniably favorable.
Our cash flow is strong and our
debt level is less than half of its
peak in September 1999. Added
to that, our backlog of prearranged
funeral and cemetery contracts
now represents future revenues to
the Company of $6.3 billion—pri-
marily secured by insurance
policies or trust funds.

During 2002, SCI* (see note on
inside back cover) made great
inroads in our effort to enhance
management systems and improve
the focus of our marketing
programs. By the year’s end, we
could reflect on these significant
milestones:

* We met or exceeded our targets in
the areas of cash flow, debt reduc-
tion, and funeral and cemetery
operating margins

* We strengthened the brand
identity and selection rate of our
Dignity Memorial® Funeral and
Cremation plans

* We improved our customer satis-
faction index by 28 percent

* We established a special task
force to review and initiate
changes in the Company’s busi-
fEss processes to improve
effectiveness and efficiency

* Through a bond exchange, we
deferred $172 million in debt
maturities from 2005 to 2009,

thereby gaining more financial
flexibility

We continued to refine the qual-
ity of our network of businesses
through joint ventures and asset
sales that generated approxi-
mately $325 million in cash

We restructured our sales opera-
tion to enhance productivity and
reduce costs

We provided local funeral homes
with improved guidelines for
market research and development
Details of these and other events of
2002 appear in the Operations sec-
tion of this report, beginning on
page 5. The work chronicled
therein represents the exemplary
efforts of our employees at all lev-
els. They are the heart and soul of
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our Company, and we deeply
appreciate the ways in which they
are strengthening our ability to
work smarter, serve more families,
and develop newer, more creative
ways to help our customers cele-
brate the lives of their loved ones.

Liquidity, Stability, and Growth. SCI
has redefined its structure and laid
a solid foundation for enduring
financial growth. The Company
continues to generate stable rev-
enues and robust cash flow, and
our liquidity is strong with
approximately $200 million in

cash and cash equivalents on hand.

During 2002, we arranged a new
credic facilicy of $185 million, and
we expect to generate between
$350 and $400 million in cash
flow from operating activities dur-
ing 2003. Through 2003 and
2004, we also anticipate additional
proceeds from asset sales in North
America and joint ventures involv-
ing our international businesses.
SCI is the largest company of its
kind, with an unparalleled net-
work of funeral homes, crematories
and cemeteries. Our annual rev-
enues and number of North
American locations exceed those of
the next three major consolidating
companies combined, and our
Dignity Memorial® brand of
funeral, cremation, and cemetery
services is capable of serving 73
percent of the United States

population, with even greater cov-
erage possible as our Affiliate
Provider Network expands. These
strengths enable us to bring a
wider array of products and serv-
ices to more families in more
places than any other company,
and we will continue to leverage
them to their greatest advantage.
As 2003 unfolds, we gratefully
acknowledge the support of our
valued shareholders and the good
work of our nearly 29,000 employ-
ees. We never forget your
contributions to our Company’s
success, and pledge to apply the
best of our efforts as we guide
SCI through another year of great
business potential.

Pl UbTL )

R.L. Walcrip Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
B.D. Hunter Vice Chatrman of the Board

W

Thomas L. Ryan
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SCI ENRANGED TS FINANGIAL STRENGTR
DURING 2002, THE COMPBPANY MET OR
EXCEEDED [TS TARGETS IN THE AREAS OF
CASH FLOW AND DEBT RERBUCTION,
GENERATED $210 MILLION [N RECURRING
FREE CASH FLOW, AND REDUCED TS DEBT

BY $721 MILLION.
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Service Corporation International is
the world leader in an industry
known for its stability and continu-
ing demand for the type of assistance
and merchandise it provides. At the
end of 2002, the Company operated
2,393 funeral service locations, 451
cemeteries, and 189 crematoria in
eight countries. During the year,
these businesses helped families
through nearly 900,000 customer
transactions that included funeral,
burial, and cremation services and
associated merchandise; prearranged
funeral plans; and preneed purchases
of cemetery property and merchan-
dise. To better address che needs of its
customers and shareholders and to
strengthen its position in a competi-
tive market, the Company initiated a
number of changes in 2002.

Management Changes. In July, SCI
established a leadership succession
plan as the Board of Directors
elected Thomas L. Ryan to the posi-
tion of President and Chief
Operating Officer. Mr. Ryan joined
SCI in 1996 and most recently led a
turnaround of SCI's geographically
and culturally diverse European
Operations, a business segment that

T
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produced approximately $700 mil-

lion in annual revenues.

Concurrent with Mr. Ryan’s elec-
tion, Michael R. Webb was elected
to the position of Executive Vice
President. Mr. Webb joined SCI in
1991. Since mid-2001, he has led
SCI’s efforts to reduce overhead costs
and improve the Company’s business
and financial processes through con-
tinuous improvement initiatives. He
has also been responsible for SCI's
South American operations,
Hispanic business in the United
States, and Company joint venture
investments in Australia, Spain and
Portugal.

Financial Progress. SCI enhanced its
financial strength during 2002
through successful management of
cash costs, sound working capital
management and improved market-
ing practices in the field. The
Company met or exceeded its targets
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in the areas of cash flow and debt
reduction, generating $210 million
in recurring free cash flow and
reducing debt by $721 million. In
February, SCI entered a joint venture
agreement involving its funeral,
cemetery, and cremation operations
in the United Kingdom, thereby
receiving $273 million in net pretax
cash proceeds while retaining a 20
percent interest in that business. In
the United States and Canada, an
additional $76 million in proceeds
were generated primarily through
SCI's current North American
Facility Review, a program to divest
funeral homes and cemeteries which
are underperforming or no longer fit
into the Company’s operating struc-
ture or strategic marketing goals. In
September, SCI completed an
exchange of Senior Notes that
deferred the due date of certain debt
obligations totaling $172 million
from 2005 to 2009, thereby making
debt refinancing unnecessary for the
foreseeable future. As mentioned in
the Letter to Shareholders preceding
this section, SCI had approximately
$200 million in cash or cash equiva-
lents at year’s end.



Administrative Improvements. SCI
is committed to being the most effi-
cient and competitive company in
the death care industry. To that end,
the Company formed a special task
force in early 2002 to study systems
and procedures throughout the
organization and identify opportuni-
ties for improvement. Known as the
Delta Team, the group is made up of
professionals from a variety of key
departments, support functions, and
field operations within SCI. Since its
formation, the Delta Team has identi-
fied a number of major changes that
are expected to greatly reduce the
Company's annual administrative
expenditures. They include:
* Implementing new systems
that streamline and standardize
the generation of financial reports
for internal analysis and public
disclosure
* Qutsourcing non-cote processes,
such as Accounts Payable and
Payroll, to third-party providers
* Replacing several. contract entry
systems with a single system that
captures customer data in a way
that allows SCI to serve them bet-
ter while reducing the Company’s
processing and administrative costs
The team’s work will be ongoing
through 2003 and beyond as they
examine all Company operations and
processes to further lower overhead
expenses and improve efficiency.

Branding. SCI continued to
strengthen its Dignity Memorial®
brand of funeral, cremation, and
cemetery services during 2002.
Dignity Memorial is a unique
national brand that represents qual-
ity, simplicity and value to families
at their time of need or on a pre-
arrangement basis. SCI funeral
homes and affiliated independent
Dignity Memorial providers conduct
business under their traditional
names, but display signage identify-
ing them as members of the Dignity
Memorial network. All Dignity
Memorial customers receive a 100%
Service Guarantee, national transfer-
ability of prearranged services, access
to a grief management library, and
savings on airfare, lodging, and auto
rental expenses for up to four imme-
diate family members who must
come from other cities to attend the
funeral. In most markets, Dignity
Memorial funeral homes offer three
funeral and three cremation plans
with “good, better, best” selections
of products and services, plus family
support benefits that provide cost
savings when compared to purchas-
ing all items separately. Benefits
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include a 24-Hour Compassion

Helpline™, legal services member-
ship, prepaid phone card, and the
Aftercare® Planner — an exclusive,
comprehensive organizing system
that helps families manage the many
business details that arise after a
death occurs. Of particular interest
to Dignity Memorial customers is
the Everlasting Memorial®, an
Internet tribute that allows families
to celebrate the lives of their loved
ones through displays of photos,
written remembrances, diplomas,
awards and other images that can be
preserved and viewed by future gen-
etations from anywhere in the world.
Families who putchase Dignity
Memorial plans are also eligible for
upgraded bereavement travel bene-
fits chat expand travel-related
savings to include an unlimited
number of friends and family mem-
bers. Dignity Memorial funeral and
cremation plans simplify the
arrangement process and have been
well-accepted by families who have
purchased them. In the North
American markets where they are
sold, the rate of families selecting
plans at che time of need reached 21
percent during 2002, compared to
17 percent in 2001. Among all SCI
markets in North America, the
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SCl HAS FOUNDATION

FOR ENDURING FINANCGIAL OPERA-
TIONAL GROWTH, ENJOYS ROBUST
CASH FLOW STRONG LIQUIDITY WITH
APPROXIMATELY $200 MILLION IN CASH
CASH EQUIVALENTS HAND.
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SCI's DIEGNITY MENMORIAL® BRAND OF
FUNERAL, CREMATION, AND CEMETERY
SERVICES IS NOW AVAILABLE TO

78 PERCENT OF THE UNITED STATES
PORULATION, WITH EVEN GREATER
COVERACE POSSIBLE AS WORLE
[NDEPENDENT FUNERAL ROMES JOIN THIE
COMPANYS AFFILIATE PROVIDER NETWORIK.
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selection rate reached 15 percent of

total funeral volume in 2002, com-
pared to 11 percent in 2001. The
plans are also popular with cus-
tomers who wish to prearrange their
funerals and represented 18 percent

of our prearrangement volume at the
end of 2002.

Affinity Groups. Capiralizing on the
Dignity Memorial brand and its
nationwide network of providers,
SCI helps corporations, large profes-
sional organizations, and fraternal
and labor groups offer death care
benefits to their employees or mem-
bers and their families through its
Affinity Group program. Services
and aftercare products can be
branded, designed, or priced exclu-
sively for each group and provide
special value at the time of need or
on a prearrangement basis. By devel-
oping an affinity relationship with
Dignity Memorial, companies or
organizations can provide the desir-
able benefit of death care services for
lirtle or no expense. SCI's current
affinity relationships include such
organizations as the Veterans of
Foreign Wars and VFW Ladies
Auxiliary, the Alliance for Retired
Americans, the NYPD Benevolent
Association, FedExe, and numerous
other businesses and organizations.
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Affiliate Provider Network. SCI’s
Affiliate Provider Network grew by
116 independent funeral homes dur-
ing 2002 to reach a total of 180 at
year’s end. SCI established the net-
work in 2001 as a way to bring
Dignity Memorial services to more
families in the United States with-
out building or acquiring additional
businesses. By recruiting independ-
ent mortuaries to provide Dignity
Memorial services in cities where
SCI has little or no representation,
the Company not only makes its
brand available to more families, but
also increases the number of Dignity
Memorial providers to which pre-
arrangement customers can transfer
their contracts in the event of
relocation. As network members,
independent funeral homes benefit
by offering Dignity Memorial’s
superior products and features and by
receiving referrals through SCI's
Affinity Group program. SCI opet-
ates funeral homes in 45 states and
the District of Columbia that are
capable of serving 63 percent of the
U.S. population. When combined
with SCI's network capabilities, the
Affiliate Provider Network had
extended the availability of Dignity
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Memorial services to approximately
7% percent of the U.S. population
at the end of 2002, That presence is
expected to grow during 2003 as
more independent firms join the
network.

Cremation. More North American
families are choosing cremation than
ever before. From less than four per-
cent in the early 1960s, the
cremation rate in the United States
grew to 27 percent by the end of
2001. Wich SCI's strong presence in
areas where cremation is selected
more often, the Company provided
cremation services to 38 percent of
the North American families it
served at their time of need during
2002. The preferences of cremation
customers vary widely, and include
choices that range from complete
funeral services with cremation to
direct cremation with no service. To
address the needs of all, SCI provides
cremations with more traditional
funeral elements through its Dignicy
Memorial network while serving
direct disposition customers through
a subsidiary firm, National
Cremation®. Dignity Memorial
providers offer three cremation plans
with graduated service and merchan-
dise options similar to those found
in Dignity Memorial funeral plans.
In contrast, National Cremation
offers simple services that include
direct cremation and the delivery of




ashes to the family. Formerly known
as the National Cremation Society®,
National Cremation was acquired by
SCI in the mid-1990s. The sub-
sidiary operated in 14 states at the
end of 2002, with plans to enter
four additional states and one
Canadian province during 2003.
Dignity Memorial and National
Cremation providers often refer fam-
ilies to each other when it is clear
that requested services are more in
line with those offered by their sister
organization.

Prearrangement Sales. In late
2002, 8CI changed its sales structure
to improve overall efficiency and
lower the cost-per-sale of funeral and
cemetery prearrangements. The
Company’s sales staff was reduced to
a smaller number of skilled represen-
tatives, and most telephone and
direct mail lead generation programs
were discontinued. The Company
now relies on personal referrals from
families served by its funeral homes
and cemeteries, thereby working
more closely with consumers in ways
that are more preferable to them.

Pre-planning is a valuable step for
consumers because it encourages
families to discuss what is often the
sensitive subject of mortality in an
open and positive way. By making
their wishes known in advance, indi-
viduals can eliminate any doubt
about what they might have wanted.
Those who prearrange also lock in
today’s prices for services and mer-
chandise that may not be needed for
years. With details and decisions
taken care of in advance, family
members are more available to pro-

vide each other with mucual support.

Field Improvements. SCI’s focus on
efficiency and performance extends
throughout its funeral home, crema-
tory, and cemetery network. During
2002, the company held nine
Strategic Growth Initiatives
Conferences cthroughout the United
States. The meetings were designed
to familiarize funeral home man-
agers with SCI's most important
corporate objectives and enlist their
commitment and support toward
accomplishing those goals. A key
element of the program was the
“SWOT” Analysis/Action Plan.
SWOT, an acronym for Strengths,
Weaknesses, Opportuaities and
Threats, helps local managers evalu-
ate their individual market
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conditions and develop Action Plans

that include measurable objectives,
necessary resources, and a timetable
for completion. Senior corporate
managers and regional managers
were also in attendance at the above
conferences to promote effective
two-way communication, and all
participants left with a better under-
standing of their responsibilities in
shaping a positive future for SCL

Customer Satisfaction. SCI’s
Customer Satisfaction Survey
continues to provide an excelient
vardstick for the qualicy of the
Company’s performance in the field.
An independent research company
mails the survey to families three
weeks after the funeral or cremation
service and asks them to rate their
experience with their provider at
more than 30 points during the
arrangement and ceremony.
Questions are asked about how cour-
teously they were greeted on the
telephone, the condition of the
funeral facility, how well prices and
merchandise were presented, the
appearance of vehicles and staff
members, and more. For each point

CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL




11

WITH THE STRONCEST RESOURCES,
EXPERTISE, STRUCTURE, AND MARKETING
CARPABILITIES [N [TS INDUSTRY, SERVICE
CORPORAVION INTERNATIONAL IS UNIQUELY
POSITIONED TO PROMOTE LONCG-TERIV
GROWTH, CASFH FLOW GENERATION, AND
INCREASED INWESTMENT VALUE,
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of inquiry on the survey, the
Company has a related training
module or guideline to bring about
improvement when indicated. More
than 40 percent of families respond
to this survey, and nearly 99 percent
of them express willingness to rec-
ommend SCI services to others.

Community Service. Throughout
2002, SCI continued to support the
communities it serves with pro-
grams designed to educate and
protect, honor and remember. The
Company provided valuable infor-
mation for children and their parents
through morte than 1,000 Dignity
Memorial Escape Schocl® presenta-
tions. This nationally recognized
program reveals deceptions com-
monly used by kidnappers and
demonstrates escape tactics designed
for children. Its presentations
reached more than 130,000 children
and nearly 100,000 adults in 2002.
Dignity Memorial Smart and Safe
Seniors® a program that educates
older adults about Internet safety,
home burglaries, and scams directed
toward people in their age group,
provided more than 160 presenta-
tions during the year. The Vietnam
Wall Experience, the Company’s
three-quarter-scale replica of the
Vietnam Veterans Memorial, was
displayed in 21 U.S. cities during
2002. More than 800,000 visitors

came to see the exhibit, which is
inscribed with over 58,000 names of

Americans who died or are missing
in Vietnam. This traveling exhibit is
dedicated to Vietnam veterans and
honors all U.S. veterans. The
Homeless Veterans Burial Program
continued to offer dignified burials
in select areas for veterans whose
service to their country might other-
wise go unrecognized. The program
is a cooperative effort involving
Dignity Memorial providers, the
Veterans Administration, the U.S.
Department of Veterans Affairs and
the Veterans of Foreign Wars, as
well as local veterans groups and
medical examiners. More than 100
dignified burials have been con-
tributed since the program began in
2000. SCTI's Public Servants
Program, one of its oldest commu-
nity outreach activities, recognizes
the courage and sacrifice of firefight-
ers and law enforcement officers by
providing complete funeral and cre-
mation services for public servants
who are killed in the line of duty, at
no cost to their families.

SERVICE

Looking to the Future. SCI's
resources, expertise, structure, and
marketing capabilities ate the
strongest in its industry. With its
geographic presence, national brand
identity, training programs, and
aggressive initiatives to meet the
changing funeral, cremation, and
burial needs of the public, Service
Corporation International is uniquely
positioned to sustain long-term
growth, cash flow generation, and
increased investment value.
Benefiting from improved financial
strength, liquidity, and access to cap-
ital markets, the Company will
continue to pay down debt and rein-
vest in its businesses over the coming
months and years. SCI will continue
to expand the presence of its Dignity
Memorial brand through its Affiliate
Provider Network and prudent
acquisition and construction activi-
ties where returns in excess of capital
costs can be assured. And in all areas
of operation, an emphasis to grow
existing businesses, control costs, and
find new efficiencies will be ongoing.
Service Corporation International
sees a future filled with opportunity
for a respected and necessary busi-
ness, and pledges its untiring
efforts to work diligently for the
benefit of its shareholders, employ-
ees, and customers.

CORPORATION INTERNATIONA AL
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PART I

Item 1. Business
(Dollars in millions)

Service Corporation International is the largest funeral and cemetery company in the world. The terms
SCI or the Company include the registrant and its subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise. As of
December 31, 2002, the Company operated 2,393 funeral service locations, 451 cemeteries and 189 crematoria
located in eight countries. The Company also has minority interest investments in funeral and cemetery
operations in certain countries outside of North America. As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s North
America operations represented approximately 77% of the Company’s consolidated revenues, 84% of
consolidated gross profits and 62% of the Company’s total operating locations.

The Company’s operations consist of funeral service locations, cemeteries, crematoria and related
businesses. The Company’s funeral service locations provide all professional services related to funerals,
including the use of funeral facilities and motor vehicles. Funeral service locations sell caskets, coffins, burial
vaults, cremation receptacles, flowers, burial garments and other ancillary products and services. The
Company’s cemeteries sell interment rights associated with cemetery property (including mausoleum spaces,
lots and lawn crypts) and cemetery merchandise (including stone and bronze memorials, burial vaults, caskets
and cremation memorialization products). The Company’s cemeteries also perform interment services and
provide management and maintenance of cemetery grounds. Certain cemeteries operate crematoria and
certain cemeteries contain gardens specifically for the purpose of cremation memorialization. The Company
owns 190 funeral service/cemetery combination locations and 37 flower shops engaged principally in the
design and sale of funeral floral arrangements. With the aging of the population in North America, the
Company believes the death care industry possesses attractive characteristics, and the Company is uniquely
positioned, with its unparalleled network of funeral service locations and cemeteries, to benefit from these
demographic trends.

The Company was incorporated in Texas in July of 1962. The Company’s principal corporate offices are
located at 1929 Allen Parkway, Houston, Texas 77019 and its telephone number is (713) 522-5141. The
Company’s website is http:/www.sci-corp.com. The Company makes available free of charge, on or through
its website, its annual, quarterly and current reports, and any amendments to those reports, as soon as
reasonably practicable after electronically filing such reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Information contained on the Company’s website is not part of this report.

Fumneral and Cemetery Operations
General

The funeral and cemetery operations consist of the Company’s funeral service locations, cemeteries,
crematoria and related businesses. As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s operations are organized into a
North America division covering the United States and Canada, a European division primarily responsible for
the Company’s French operations and an Other Foreign division relating to operations managed in the Pacific
Rim and South America. Each division is under the direction of divisional executive management with
substantial industry experience. Local funeral service location and cemetery managers, under the direction of
the divisional management, receive support and resources from the Company’s headquarters in Houston,
Texas and have substantial autonomy with respect to the manner in which services are conducted. The
Company’s operations in its North America division are segregated into Eastern and Western operations. The
Eastern and Western operations in North America are managed by separate operational and financial
management teams. Within these Eastern and Western operations in North America, the majority of the
Company’s funeral service locations and cemeteries are managed in groups called clusters. These clusters are
geographical groups of funeral service locations and cemeteries that can share common resources such as
operating personnel, preparation services, clerical and accounting staff, limousines, hearses and preneed sales
activity.




The death care industry in North America is characterized by a large number of locally owned,
independent operations. To compete successfully, the Company’s funeral service locations and cemeteries
must maintain good reputations and high professional standards in the industry, as well as offer attractive
products and services at competitive prices. The Company believes it has an unparalleled network of funeral
service locations and cemeteries that offer high quality products and services at prices that are competltlve
with local competing funeral homes, cemeteries and retail locations.

The Company has multiple funeral service locations and cemeteries in a number of metropolitan areas.
Within individual metropolitan areas, the funeral service locations and cemeteries operate under various
names because most operations were acquired as existing businesses. Some of the Company’s funeral service
locations in its international operations operate under certain brand names specific for a general area or
country. The Company has branded its funeral operations in North America under the Dignity Memorial®
brand name. A national brand name is new and unique to the death care industry in North America. While
this branding process is intended to emphasize the Company’s seamless national network of funeral service
locations and cemeteries in North America, the original names associated with acquired operations with their
inherent goodwill and heritage will generally remain the same.

In the death care industry, there has been a growing trend in the number of cremations performed in
North America as an alternative to traditional funeral service dispositions. The west coast of the United States
and the State of Florida have the highest concentration of cremation consumers in North America. While
cremations performed by the Company in North America typically have higher gross profit margins than
traditional funeral services, cremations usually result in lower revenue and gross profit dollars to the Company
than traditional funeral services. In North America during 2002, 38.2% of all funeral services performed by the
Company were cremation cases, compared to 37.0% performed in 2001. The Company has expanded its
cremation memorialization products and services in several North American markets, which has resulted in
higher average sales for cremation cases compared to historical levels. The Company also continues to expand
its nationally branded cremation service locations called National Cremation® Service (NCS). NCS currently
operates in fourteen high cremation states and has plans to expand to eighteen states by the end of 2003. The
Company believes that the NCS consumer would not have chosen traditional funeral service locations as an
alternative to NCS, and therefore is considered an incremental customer to the Company.

Since its inception in the 1960’s, the Company had been focused on the acquisition and consolidation of
independent funeral homes and cemeteries in the very fragmented death care industry. During the 1990’s, the
Company also expanded its operations through acquisitions in Europe, Australia, South America and the
Pacific Rim. In 1999, the Company, as well as other consolidators in the death care industry, significantly
reduced the level of acquisition activity and focused on identifying and addressing underperforming businesses.
This focus resulted in the Company divesting of several North American and international operations. During
2002 and 2001, the Company completed joint ventures of its operations in Australia, United Kingdom, Spain
and Portugal; and divested of its operations in the Netherlands, Norway, Italy and Belgium. The Company has
also implemented plans to sell certain funeral service locations and cemeteries in North America as going
concerns or as real estate. The Company is currently in discussions with various third parties concerning the
joint venturing of its remaining international operations and intends to operate a core business of high quality
funeral service locations and cemeteries in North America.

Funeral Service Locations

The Company’s 2,393 funeral service locations provide all professional services relating to funerals,
including the use of funeral facilities and motor vehicles. Funeral service locations sell caskets, coffins, burial
vaults, cremation receptacles, flowers, burial garments, and other ancillary products and services. The
Company’s funeral service locations generally experience a greater demand for their services in the winter
months primarily related to higher incidents of deaths from pneumonia and influenza.

In addition to selling its products and services to client families at the time of need, the Company also
sells prearranged funeral services in most of its service markets. Funeral prearrangement is a means through
which a customer contractually agrees to the terms of a funeral to be performed in the future. All or a portion
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of the funds collected from prearranged funeral contracts are placed in trust accounts, pursuant to applicable
law, or are used to pay premiums on life insurance policies from third party insurers. In certain situations
pursuant to applicable laws, the Company will post a surety bond as financial assurance for a certain amount of

the preneed funeral contract in lieu of placing certain funds in trust accounts. See the Financial Assurances
section included in Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources in Item 7 of this Form 10-K for
further details on the Company’s practice of posting such surety bonds. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s
Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues amounted to approximately $4.7 billion. For additional
information regarding prearranged funeral activities, see the Prearranged Funeral and Cemetery Activities
section in Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources in Item 7 and notes two, three and four to the
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Cemeteries

The Company’s cemeteries sell interment rights associated with cemetery property such as mausoleum
spaces, lots and lawn crypts, and sells cemetery merchandise such as stone and bronze memorials, burial
vaults, caskets and cremation memorialization products. The Company’s cemeteries perform interment
services and provide management and maintenance of cemetery grounds. Certain cemeteries operate
crematoria and certain cemeteries contain gardens specifically for the purpose of cremation memorialization.

Cemetery sales are often made on a preneed basis pursuant to installment contracts providing for monthly
payments. A portion of the proceeds from cemetery contracts is generally required by law to be paid into
perpetual care trust funds. Earnings from perpetual care trust funds are used to defray the maintenance costs
of cemeteries. Additionally, all or a portion of the proceeds from the sale of preneed cemetery merchandise
and services may be required by law to be paid into merchandise and services trusts until the merchandise is
delivered or the service is provided. In certain situations pursuant to applicable laws, the Company will post a
surety bond as financial assurance for a certain amount of the preneed cemetery contract in lieu of placing
certain funds into trust accounts. See the Financial Assurances section included in Financial Condition,
Liquidity and Capital Resources in Item 7 of this Form 10-K for further details on the Company’s practice of
posting such surety bonds. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s Deferred preneed cemetery contract
revenue amounted to approximately $1.7 billion. For additional information regarding cemetery preneed
activities, see the Prearranged Funeral and Cemetery Activities section in Financial Condition, Liquidity and
Capital Resources in Item 7 of this Form 10-K and notes two, three and five to the consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Combined Funeral Service Locations and Cemeteries

The Company currently owns 190 funeral service/cemetery combination locations in North America in
which a funeral service location is physically located within or adjoining a Company cemetery. Combination
locations allow certain facility, personnel and equipment costs to be shared between the funeral service
location and cemetery and typically have a higher gross margin than if the funeral and cemetery operations
were operated separately. Combination locations also create synergies between funeral and cemetery sales
force personnel and give consumers added convenience to purchase both funeral and cemetery products and
services at a single location.

Discontinued Operations

The Company formerly owned two insurance companies: a French life insurance company (Auxia) and a
U.S. life insurance company (American Memorial Life Insurance Company or AMLIC). These insurance
operations assisted in the funding of prearranged funeral contracts sold by Company-owned or affiliated
funeral service locations. During 2000, the Company completed the sales of both insurance companies.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K have been reclassified to reflect these
operations as discontinued. Operating results from Auxia have been included through August 31, 2000 and the
operating results from AMLIC have been included through September 30, 2000, the disposition dates of the
respective companies. See note seventeen to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this
Form 10-X.




Employees

At December 31, 2002, the Company employed 21,088 (13,427 in the United States) individuals on a
full time basis and 7,836 (6,678 in the United States) individuals on a part time basis. Of the full time
employees, 20,452 were in the funeral and cemetery operations and 636 were in corporate or other overhead
activities and services. All of the Company’s eligible United States employees who so elect are covered by the
Company’s group health and life insurance plans. Eligible United States employees are participants in
retirement plans of the Company or various subsidiaries, while foreign employees are covered by other
Company defined or government mandated benefit plans. Although labor disputes are experienced from time
to time, relations with employees are generally considered favorable.

Regulation

The Company’s operations are subject to regulations, supervision and licensing under various
U.S. federal, state, local and foreign statutes, ordinances and regulations. The Company believes that it is in
substantial compliance with the significant provisions of such statutes, ordinances and regulations. Since 1984,
the Company has operated in the United States under the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) comprehensive
trade regulation rule for the funeral industry. The rule contains requirements for funeral industry practices,
including extensive price and other affirmative disclosures and imposes mandatory itemization of funeral goods
and services. From time to time in connection with the Company’s former strategy of growth through
acquisitions, the Company entered into consent orders with the FTC that required the Company to dispose of
certain operations in order to proceed with such acquisitions, or limited the Company’s ability to make
acquisitions in specified areas. The trade regulation rule and the various consent orders have not had a material
adverse effect on the Company’s operations.

The French funeral services industry has undergone significant regulatory change in recent years.
Historically, the French funeral services industry had been controlled, as provided by national legislation,
either (i) directly by municipalities through municipality-operated funeral establishments (Municipal
Monopoly), or (ii) indirectly by the remaining municipalities that have contracted for funeral service
activities with third party providers, such as the Company’s French funeral operations (Exclusive Municipal
Authority). Legislation was passed that has generally ended municipal control of the French funeral service
business and has allowed free competition among funeral service providers. Under such legislation, the
Exclusive Municipal Authority was abolished in January 1996, and the Municipal Monopoly was eliminated in
January 1998. Cemeteries in France are currently controlled by municipalities and religious organizations. The
Company sells cemetery merchandise such as markers and monuments to consumers for use in these
cemeteries.

Item 2. Properties
(Dollars in millions)

The Company’s executive headquarters are located at 1929 Allen Parkway, Houston, Texas 77019, in a
12-story office building. A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company owns an undivided one-half interest in the
building and parking garage. The other undivided one-half interest is owned by an unrelated third party. The
Company plans to acquire the building at the end of the lease in July 2005 for $2 million. The property
consists of approximately 127,000 square feet of office space and 185,000 square feet of parking space. The
Company leases all of the office space in the building for $59 thousand per month. The Company pays all
operating expenses. One half of the rent is paid to the wholly owned subsidiary and the other half is paid to the
owners of the remaining undivided one-half interest. The Company owns and utilizes two additional buildings
located in Houston, Texas for corporate activities containing a total of approximately 167,000 square feet of
office space.

At December 31, 2002, the Company owned approximately 63% of the real estate and buildings used by
its 3,033 funeral service locations, cemeteries and crematoria, and 37% of such facilities are leased. In
addition, the Company leased two aircraft pursuant to cancelable operating leases. At December 31, 2002, the
Company operated 10,331 vehicles, of which 43% were owned and 57% were leased. For additional
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information regarding leases, see the Contractual, Commercial and Contingent Commitments section in
Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources in Item 7 and note ten to the consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

At December 31, 2002, the Company’s 451 cemeteries contained a total of approximately 30,763 acres, of
which approximately 55% was developed.

The specialized nature of the Company’s businesses requires that its facilities be well-maintained and
kept in good condition and management of the Company believes that these standards are met.

Item 3. Lega! Proceedings

Information regarding legal proceedings is set forth in note ten to the consolidated financial statements in
Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K, the information regarding executive officers of the
Company called for by Item 401 of Regulation S-X is hereby included in Part I of this report.

The following table sets forth as of March 14, 2003 the name and age of each executive officer of the
Company, the office held, and the date first elected an officer.

Year First
Became

Officer Name Age Position Officer (1)

R.L. Waltrip................ooot 72 Chairman of the Board and Chief 1962
Executive Officer

B.D.Hunter...................... 73 Vice Chairman of the Board 1986

Thomas L. Kyan................... 37  President and Chief Operating 1999
Officer

Michael R. Webb .. ................ 44  Executive Vice President 1998

Jeffrey E. Curtiss .................. 54  Senior Vice President Chief 2000
Financial Officer and Treasurer

Stephen M. Mack.................. 51 Senior Vice President Eastern 1998
Operations

James M. Stelger.................. 53 Senior Vice President General 1987
Counsel and Secretary

J. Daniel Garrison.................. 51 Vice President Operations Services 1998

W. Cardon Gemner ................. 48  Vice President Accounting 1999

Frank T. Hundley . ................. 43 Vice President Finance 2000

Eric D. Tanzberger................. 34  Vice President and Corporate 2000
Controller

Stephen J. Uthoft . ........... ... .. 51  Vice President Chief Information 2000
Officer

Sumner J. Waring, IIT.............. 34 Vice President Western Operations 2002

(1) Indicates the year a person was first elected as an officer although there were subsequent periods when
certain persons ceased being officers of the Company.
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Unless otherwise indicated below, the persons listed above have been executive officers or employees for
more than five years.

Mr. Hunter was appointed Vice Chairman of the Board in January 2000. For more than five years, prior
to February 2002, Mr. Hunter had been the Chairman of Huntco, Inc., an intermediate steel processor, and
was also its Chief Executive Officer prior to May 2000. In February 2002, Huntco, Inc., filed a petition for
bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code during a severe downturn in the steel
industry. Mr. Hunter has been a director of the Company since 1986 and also served as Vice Chairman of the
Board of the Company from September 1986 to May 1989,

Mr. Curtiss joined the Company as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in January 2000. In
August 2002, Mr. Curtiss’ responsibilities changed to include the respomsibilities of Treasurer of the Company.
From January 1992 until July 1999, Mr. Curtiss served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Browning-Ferris Industries, Inc., a waste services company.

Mr. Gerner joined the Company in January 1999 in connection with the acquisition of Equity
Corporation International (ECI) and in March 1999 was promoted to Vice President Corporate Controller. In
August 2002, Mr. Gerner’s responsibilities and position changed to Vice President Accounting. Before the
acquisition, Mr. Gerner had been Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of ECI since March 1995.
Prior thereto, Mr. Gerner was a partner with Ernst & Young LLP.

Mr. Hundley joined the Company as Vice President Treasurer in March 2000. In August 2002,
Mr. Hundley’s responsibilities and position changed to Vice President Finance. Prior thereto, Mr. Hundley
served for more than five years in various capacities at Banc of America Securities, LLC, its predecessors and
affiliates, including as Managing Director.

Mr. Uthoff joined the Company as Vice President Chief Information Officer in January 2000. From June
1994 through July 1999, Mr. Uthoff served as Vice President — Planning & Analysis of Browning-Ferris
Industries, Inc., a waste services company.

Each officer of the Company is elected by the Board of Directors and holds his office until his successor is
elected and qualified or until his earlier death, resignation or removal in the manner prescribed in the Bylaws
of the Company. Each officer of a subsidiary of the Company is elected by the subsidiary’s board of directors
and holds his office until his successor is elected and qualified or until his earlier death, resignation or removal
in the manner prescribed in the bylaws of the subsidiary.

PART I

Item 5. Market for the Company’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s common stock has been traded on the New York Stock Exchange since May 14, 1974,
On December 31, 2002, there were 6,984 holders of record of the Company’s common stock.

In October 1999, the Company suspended payment of regular quarterly cash dividends on its outstanding
common stock in order to focus on improving cash flow and reducing existing debt. Under the Company’s
bank credit agreement, the Company is restricted from paying dividends and making other distributions.

The table below shows the Company’s quarterly high and low common stock prices for the two years
ended December 31, 2002:

2002 2001
High Low High Low
First quarter . ... e $5.50 $4.55 $4.75 $1.56
Second quUaTteTr . .. ... 5.18 3.60 7.23 4.22
Third quarter ....... ... e 4.64 2.25 7.90 5.82
Fourth quarter ....... . ... . i i 3.71 2.42 6.45 4.64




SRV is the New York Stock Exchange ticker symbol for the common stock of the Company. Options in
the Company’s common stock are traded on the Philadelphia Stock Exchange under the symbol SRV.

On May 9, 2002, the Company issued 10,000 shares of common stock to each of ten non-employee
directors pursuant to the 2001 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors. On May 10, 2002, the Company
issued 5,012 shares of common stock to each of nine directors and, pursuant to deferrals, became obligated to
issue 5,012 to each of three directors in the future pursuant to the Director Fee Plan. The Company did not
receive any monetary consideration for the issuances. These issuances were unregistered because they did not
constitute a “sale” within the meaning of Section 2(3) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

For equity compensation plan information, see Part III of this report on pages 92 and 93.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
{Dollars im millions, except per share amounts)

The following selected consolidated financial data for the years December 31, 1998 through 2002 is
derived from the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements. This data should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

In 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142,
“Goodwill and CGther Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 142 addresses accounting for goodwill and other
intangible assets and redefines useful lives, amortization periods and impairment of goodwill. Under the new
pronouncement, goodwill is no longer amortized, but is tested for impairment annually by assessing the fair
value of reporting units, generally one level below reportable segments. As a result of the adoption of SFAS
No. 142, the Company recognized a non-cash charge reflected as a cumulative effect of accounting change of
$135.6 million, net of applicable taxes, related to the impairment of goodwill in its North American cemetery
reporting unit.

In 2000, the Company implemented Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements” (SAB No. 101). See note three to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of
this Form 10-K for more details on the implementation of SAB No. 101. As a result of this implementation,
the Company changed certain of its accounting policies regarding prearranged sales activities. The Company
recorded a non-cash charge reflected as a cumulative affect of accounting change of $909.3 million, net of
applicable taxes, as of January 1, 2000.

The selected consolidated statement of operations data presented below is reported on a pro forma basis
to reflect the application of SFAS No. 142 and SAB No. 101 to the financial data for the four years ended
December 31, 2001 and the two years ended December 31, 1999, respectively. Further, results of operations
have been reclassified for all periods presented to separately reflect results of discontinued operations. See note
seventeen to the consolidated financial statements of Item 8 of this Form 10-X for further discussion of
discontinued operations.




Selected Consolidated Financial Data

As Reported Pro Forma
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Selected Consolidated Statement of
Operations Data:
Revenue from continuing operations.... $ 2,272.4 $ 2,510.3 $ 2,564.7 $ 2,745.1 $ 2,354.8

(Loss) income from continuing

operations before extraordinary items

and cumulative effects of accounting

changes......... ..o iiiii., $ (101.2) $ (549.2) $ (372.7) $ (157.2) $ 1838
Net (loss) income .. ................ (231.9) (550.3)  (1,289.9) (137.7) 194.9
Earnings per share:

(Loss) income from continuing
operations before extraordinary items
and cumulative effects of accounting

changes

Basic.......coiiiii $ (34 $ (192) $ (137) $§ (58 § 72

Diluted ..ol (.34) (1.92) (1.37) (.58) .70
Net (loss) income

Basic........ooo i $ (79 $ (193) $ (474) $ (51) $ .76

Diluted ...t (.79) (1.93) (4.74) (.51) 5
Cash dividends per share ............. — — — 27 .36

Selected Consolidated Balance Sheet
Data (As reported):

Total assets ..........ccoiviiinen... $10,723.8  $11,579.9 $12,875.3 $12,978.2 $11,729.8
Long-term debt, less current maturities 1,884.5 2,314.0 3,091.3 3,636.1 3,764.6
Stockholders’ equity ................. 1,303.8 1,432.9 1,975.8 3,495.3 3,154.1

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(Dollars in millions, except average sales prices and per share data)

Introduction

The Company is the largest provider of funeral and cemetery services in the world. As of December 31,
2002, the Company operated 2,393 funeral service locations, 451 cemeteries and 189 crematoria located in
eight countries. The Company also has minority interest investments in funeral and cemetery operations in
certain countries outside of North America. As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s North America
operations represented approximately 77% of the Company’s consolidated revenues, 84% of consolidated gross
profits and 62% of the Company’s total operating locations.

The Company’s funeral and cemetery operations are organized into a North America division covering
the United States and Canada, a European division primarily responsible for the Company’s French operations
and an Other Foreign division relating to operations in the Pacific Rim and South America. The Company’s
operations in its North America division are segregated into Eastern and Western operations. The Eastern and
Western operations in North America are managed by separate operational and financial management teams.
Within these Eastern and Western operations in North America, the majority of the Company’s funeral
service locations and cemeteries are managed in groups called clusters. These clusters are geographical groups
of funeral service locations and cemeteries that can share common resources such as operating personnel,
preparation services, clerical and accounting staff, limousines, hearses and preneed sales activity.




Strategic Initiatives

Historically, the Company’s growth was largely attributable to acquiring funeral and cemetery businesses.
This acquisition program created the world’s largest network of funeral service locations and cemeteries.
During the mid-1990s, the funeral and cemetery acquisition market became extremely competitive resulting
in increased acquisition prices and substantially reduced returns on invested capital. In early 1999, the
Company announced plans to significantly reduce the level of its acquisition activity and pursue growth from
its existing operations. As a result, the Company’s strategic plan became focused on reducing overhead costs,
increasing cash flow and reducing debt, while at the same time developing key revenue initiatives designed to
drive future growth in the Company’s funeral and cemetery operations without the significant outlay of capital.
At the end of 2002, the Company’s capital structure and cash flows were dramatically improved compared to
1999 levels. At December 31, 2002, net debt was $1.78 billion and recurring operating free cash flow was
$210 million during 2002. These results, related to net debt and recurring operating free cash flow, were better
than guidance ranges previously communicated by the Company. Net debt is defined as total debt less cash
and cash equivalents and recurring operating free cash flow is defined in Financial Condition, Liquidity and
Capital Resources within Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

The Company’s operational goals during 2003 are to establish new avenues to grow its existing base of
funeral and cemetery revenues while diligently managing its cash expenses. The Company will also examine
during 2003 other opportunities to grow its North America funeral and cemetery operations primarily using its
strong cash flows from operations. These potential growth opportunities could include acquisitions of high-
quality funeral service locations and cemeteries in large or strategic North America markets, additional
construction of funeral service locations on Company-owned cemeteries and the construction of high-end
cemetery property development projects. The Company’s financial objectives in 2003 focus on continued
stabilization of the Company’s capital structure by generating strong cash flows, completing asset divestitures
and further debt reduction. A goal of the Company is to obtain a stable “BB” credit rating from Standard &
Poor’s and a stable “Ba2” credit rating from Moody’s, with general access to the capital markets.

The death care industry in North America is facing several challenges that need to be mitigated in order
for the Company to grow its core funeral and cemetery revenues. Such challenges in North America include
an increasing trend towards cremation, a lack of near-term projected growth in the number of deaths, pricing
competition and the ability to attract and retain high quality individuals to the industry. Additionally, the
Company’s expectations of valuations related to potential acquisitions of high-quality funeral service locations
and cemeteries in North America may be below current seller’s expectations.

In order to grow its existing base of funeral and cemetery revenues in North America and report near-
term improvement in these operations, the Company believes it must be successful in executing certain
tactical initiatives. The Company believes the following tactical initiatives will solidify the foundational base
and create a cultural environment on which to build and grow these operations in the near-term.

o Increasing the impact of the Company’s Dignity Memorial® branded funeral and cremation packages.
o Redesigning the Company’s sales processes and organization.
o Improving the Company’s business and financial processes.

o Developing the appropriate organizational structure in order to promote better teamwork, accountabil-
ity and execution.

o Developing other initiatives including the implementation of local market action plans.

In addition to the Company’s national brand name for its operations in North America, Dignity
Memorial® also represents a unique set of packaged funeral and cremation plans offered exclusively for the
Company’s network. The Dignity Memorial® funeral and cremation packages are designed to simplify
customer decision-making and include new products and services, which have traditionally not been available
through funeral service locations. The Company’s goal is to continue to increase in 2003 the customer
selection rate of the Dignity Memorial® packaged plans, which on average have a $2,000 higher average
revenue per funeral service compared to non-Dignity Memorial® sales.
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The Company has recently implemented significant changes to the organizational structure, processes
and quality of its sales efforts. These changes are expected to reduce costs and improve cash flows in 2003 in
the Company’s North America funeral and cemetery operations. Examples of these changes to the Company’s
sales processes and organization include eliminating ineffective lead procurement programs and shifting to
personal referrals, restructuring and aligning compensation and incentive programs, reducing sales manage-
ment positions and reducing turnover and other unproductive sales activities.

The Company is currently in the process of improving business and financial processes and systems that
support its North America funeral and cemetery operations. These changes are designed to ultimately reduce
the Company’s costs supporting the core funeral and cemetery operations. Examples of these business and
financial processes and system improvements include the implementation of a new point of sale system at the
individual funeral home or cemetery level, outsourcing certain accounting functions, redesigning reporting
systems and focusing remaining support services to be aligned with the field operational objectives.

The Company is also currently in the process of streamlining its organizational structure and focusing its
near-term training programs on leadership and development of key field management. These changes are
designed to foster an environment with the management of its funeral and cemetery operations in North
America that promotes teamwork, accountability and execution of the Company’s strategic initiatives. Other
initiatives the Company is developing include the implementation of local market action plans designed to
grow funeral and cemetery revenues and aligning all compensation programs within the Company with clear
and definable goals.

In addition to the Company’s tactical initiatives to improve its North America funeral and cemetery
operations in the near-term, the Company is currently developing its long-term strategic plan with an
empbhasis on three concepts that will be addressed and developed to create a strategic framework for future
growth in shareholder value.

» Growing core funeral and cemetery profits by attracting new business to existing locations.
» Expansion in large or strategic markets in North America.
» Investing in the Company’s human capital.

The Company believes it must attract new customers and business in order to grow core funeral and
cemetery profits over the long-term. Actions by the Company to attract new customers over the long-term
include developing a more contemporary marketing model that incorporates market segmentation such as
targeting traditional versus cremation consumers, leveraging and developing the power of the Company’s
Dignity Memorial® national brand in North America and continuing to develop affinity relationships with
organizations containing large groups of individuals to whom the Company could exclusively market its
products and services.

The Company’s long-term strategic plan being developed will also address Company plans to expand its
funeral and cemetery network in large or strategic markets in North America. The Company will address in
this plan the criteria for such expansion, including future capital deployment through acquisition, construction
or franchising of funeral and cemetery operations.

The Company also believes it must invest in its human capital and resources. Attracting, hiring,
developing and retaining high quality management and employees will be a key long-term objective of the
Company as it develops this long-term strategic plan.

Outlook for 2003

The Company’s outlook for 2003 projects strong cash flows and further improvements in its capital
structure compared to 2002. As disclosed earlier in this section, the Company’s operational goals during 2003
are to establish new avenues to grow its existing base of funeral and cemetery revenues while diligently
managing its cash expenses. The Company will also examine during 2003 other opportunities to grow its North
America funeral and cemetery operations primarily using its strong cash flows from operations. These
potential growth opportunities could include acquisitions of high-quality funeral service locations and
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cemeteries in large or strategic North America markets, additional construction of funeral service locations on
Company-owned cemeteries and the construction of high-end cemetery property development projects.

The Company intends to operate a core business of high-quality funeral service locations and cemeteries
in North America. Due to the uncertain timing of the Company’s expectation to joint venture its French
operations during 2003, the Company’s 2003 outlook includes its French operating results for the full year of
2003. If the Company executes such a transaction during 2003, the Company’s 2003 outlook would be affected
accordingly. The Company’s French operations are projected to have gross profits of approximately
$55-$65 million, cash flows from operating activities of approximately $40-$50 million and capital expendi-
tures of approximately $15-$20 million.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the possibility or timing of certain events during 2003, the Company’s
2003 outlook does not contain earnings per share guidance calculated in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Events which the Company believes could
possibly occur during 2003 and could have an effect on the Company’s 2003 earnings per share include, among
others, the following:

» The possibility of the completion of a joint venture transaction with the Company’s French operations.

» The possibility of gains or losses related to the Company disposing of funeral homes, cemeteries or
undeveloped cemetery property associated with previously announced asset disposition programs or in
the normal course of its business. ’

* The possibility of gains or losses from early extinguishments of debt.

= The possibility of the recognition of a cumulative effect of an accounting change from the adoption of
newly required accounting pronouncements.

» The possibility of the recognition of costs associated with settlements of litigation to which the
Company is currently a party.

The Company’s outlook for 2003 contains only operating and liquidity measures that are calculated in
accordance with GAAP. The Company’s results to be reported publicly in the future will primarily contain
financial results that are GAAP figures. The Company will continue to report results from comparable or
“same store” North America funeral and cemetery operations.

2003 Full Year Forecasted GAAP Measures
2003 Full Year Forecast

Operating Measures
North America Comparable (or “Same Store”) Operations:

Funeral RevenUES . . v v v vttt et e e e et e e e e e $1,090-$1,150

Cemetery RevenUES .. ..ottt ettt it e e $500-$550

Funeral Gross Margin Percentage ........ ... ... i, 18%-22%

Cemetery Gross Margin Percentage . ........oviniiiiin i, 9%-13%
International Operations:

REVEIUES . . ottt et ettt et ettt et e e e e $500-$550

Gross Margin Percentage. . ... ..ottt 10%-14%
General and Administrative Expenses .............. i $75-385
INtETESt EXPOISE « o o vttt ettt ettt et e $140-$155
Other INCOME . ..ottt e e e $10-$20
Consolidated Effective Tax Rate ...t 36%-38%
Liguidity Measures
Depreciation and Amortization . ... ...ttt $145-$165
Cash Flows From Operating Activities .. ..........oi i, $350-$400
Capital EXpenditures ... ..ottt e e $110-$130




The following qualitative commentary describes the Company’s assumptions, estimates and beliefs
supporting its 2003 outlook.

Operating Measures

= The Company’s 2003 outlook for North America comparable funeral revenues assumes an equivalent
amount to slightly fewer funeral services performed offset by projected low single digit percentage
increases in the average revenue per funeral service compared to 2002 levels. The North America
comparable funeral gross margin percentage should be positively impacted in 2003 by reductions in
costs related to changes in the Company’s sales structure and processes. This positive impact will be
somewhat offset by increased personnel (including pension) and insurance costs.

The Company’s 2003 outlook for North America comparable cemetery revenues is projected to be
below 2002 levels resulting from more normalized levels of completion of cemetery property
development projects in 2003 compared to 2002 as well as from projected reductions in revenues
resulting from changes in the Company’s sales structure and processes. The North America compara-
ble cemetery gross margin percentage should be flat to slightly down in 2003 as a result of the lower
projected cemetery revenues as well as from higher expected cemetery maintenance costs. These
negative impacts should be partially offset by cash savings resulting from the changes in the Company’s
sales structure and processes described earlier.

Revenues and the gross margin percentage from international operations are expected to be flat to
above 2002 levels primarily related to a projected improvement in operating performance in 2003 from
the Company’s French operations. In addition to projected operating improvement, the Company’s
French operations will not incur depreciation expense in 2003 in anticipation of the completion of the
joint venture of such operations in 2003. Approximately $8.9 million of depreciation expense was
recognized in 2002 related to the Company’s French operations. Significant movements in foreign
currency, particularly the Euro, could affect these projected results from the Company’s international
operations.

General and administrative expenses in 2003 are projected to be below 2002 levels. This projection
includes approximately $4 million of new expenses anticipated in 2003 resulting from the Company’s
decision to utilize a new long-term incentive compensation program, which will recognize expenses
currently as compared to the utilization of stock options in previous periods. As in 2002, the Company
will incur in 2003 approximately $13.5 million of accelerated non-cash amortization expense related to
existing capitalized system costs as a result of the Company’s decision to implement new information
systems. -

Interest expense is projected to be lower in 2003 compared to 2002 levels as the Company believes it
will continue to reduce its debt levels.

Other income in 2003 is projected to primarily consist of interest income and income from the
Company’s cash override agreement with a third party insurance company that funds prearranged
funeral contracts for consumers.

The Company’s consolidated effective tax rate is projected to increase to approximately 37% in 2003
primarily related to the utilization in previous years of the Company’s net operating loss carry-forwards
related to its French operations.

Liguidity Measures

» As stated above, the Company’s 2003 outlook for depreciation and amortization assumes no
depreciation expense related to the Company’s French operations in anticipation by the Company of
the completion of the joint venture of such operations in 2003. Approximately $8.9 million of
depreciation expense was recognized in 2002 related to the Company’s French operations. Amortiza-
tion expense of approximately $40 million is included in the Company’s 2003 outlook related to
preneed cemetery deferred selling costs in North America.
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e Cash flows from operating activities in 2003 is expected to be above 2002 levels. Approximately $85-
$95 million of net non-recurring sources of cash flows, primarily related to a $92 million cash tax
refund received in February 2003, is projected to be included in cash flows from operating activities

during 2003. In 2002, the Company had net non-recurring sources of cash flows of $82.1 million
included in cash flows from operating activities. The Company also does not expect to pay U.S. federal
income taxes for the next several years due to tax loss carry-forwards.

Capital expenditures are projected to be slightly higher in 2003 as the Company expects to invest more
growth capital into projects that are expected to increase future revenues. Of the Company’s total
projected capital expenditures in 2003 of $110-$130 million, the Company expects to spend approxi-
mately $75-385 million in capital expenditures deemed reasonably necessary to maintain the Com-
pany’s funeral homes, cemeteries, crematoria and other facilities in a condition consistent with
Company standards.

Critical Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are impacted by the accounting policies used and the
estimates and assumptions made by management during their preparation. The following is a discussion of the
Company’s critical accounting policies pertaining to revenue recognition, the impairment or disposal of long-
lived assets, and the use of estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Funeral revenue is recognized when funeral services are performed. The Company’s trade receivables
primarily consist of amounts due for funeral services already performed. The Company sells price guaranteed
prearranged funeral contracts through various programs providing for future funeral services at prices
prevailing when the agreements are signed. Revenues associated with sales of prearranged funeral contracts,
which include accumulated trust earnings and increasing insurance benefits, are deferred until such time that
the funeral services are performed (see note four to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K).

Sales of atneed cemetery interment rights, merchandise and services are recognized when the service is
performed or merchandise delivered. Preneed cemetery interment sales of constructed cemetery burial
property are not recognized until a minimum of 10% of the sales price has been collected. Once 10% of the
sales price is collected, all of the constructed interment sale revenue is recognized. Revenues related to the
preneed sale of unconstructed cemetery burial property is deferred until such property is constructed and the
minimum percentage of the sales price has been collected. Currently, the Company defers certain direct
selling costs, primarily commissions and fringe benefits, associated with preneed cemetery sales and then
expenses those costs as the associated revenue is recognized. (See notes three and five to the consolidated
financial statements in Item 8§ of this Form 10-K.)

Costs related to the sales of interment rights are the accumulation of property costs and development
costs specifically identified by project. At the completion of the project, costs are charged to operations as
revenue is recognized. Costs related to sales of merchandise and services are based on actual costs incurred.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment when changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets to be held
and used be reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value. Assets to be disposed of and assets not
expected to provide any future service potential to the Company are recorded at the lower of their carrying
amount or fair value less estimated cost to sell.

In 2002, the Company ceased depreciation of operating assets held for sale during the year. During the
year, the Company determined transactions to sell or joint venture certain assets would be delayed until after
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2002. As a result, the Company resumed normal depreciation of those assets held in France and Chile in the
third quarter of 2002.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the carrying values of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the amounts of revenues and
expenses recognized during the period. Actual results could differ from such estimates. Key estimates used by
management, among others, include:

Allowance for doubtful accounts — The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts
based on analysis of historical collection activity. These estimates could be impacted by changes in the
economy, among other things.

Depreciation of long-lived assets — The Company depreciates its long-lived assets over their
estimated useful lives. These estimates of useful lives may be affected by such factors as changing market
conditions or changes in regulatory requirements. In 2002, the Company changed the estimated useful
life of its existing information technology systems as a result of the decision to implement a new North
America point of sale system and an upgraded general ledger system. The Company recognized
approximately $13.5 million of additional amortization expense relate to this change in estimate.

Amortization of deferred selling costs — The Company changed the amortization period of its
deferred prearranged funeral selling costs from 20 years to 12 years, a period representing the estimated
life of the prearranged funeral contracts. The change in estimate was made in order to more accurately
reflect current trends regarding the timeframe from when a prearranged contract is sold to when it is
serviced atneed. This change in estimate reduced funeral gross profit by approximately $6.7 million. In
future years, this estimate could be further impacted by changes in mortality rates and changes in the
demographics of the Company’s customers.

Taxes — The Company’s ability to realize the benefit of its deferred tax assets requires the
Company to achieve certain future earnings levels. The Company has established a valuation allowance
against a portion of its deferred tax assets and could be required to further adjust that valuation allowance
if market conditions change materially and future earnings are, or are projected to be, significantly
different from its current estimates. The Company intends to permanently reinvest the unremitted
earnings of certain of its foreign subsidiaries in those businesses outside the United States and, therefore,
has not provided for deferred federal income taxes on such unremitted foreign earnings.

Preneed cemetery revenues — The Company recognizes revenues associated with preneed cemetery
merchandise and services upon evidence of delivery of such merchandise and services. The Company has
an ongoing review program of its obligations for delivery of cemetery merchandise and services. Included
in the Company’s backlog of preneed cemetery contract revenues of approximately $1.7 billion are
estimates made by management related to the status of delivery of cemetery merchandise and services.
Any changes in these estimates in future periods and resulting revenue recognition of these obligations
will vary and depend upon the outcome of such continuous obligation reviews.

Pension cost — The Company’s pension costs and liabilities are actuarily determined based on
certain assumptions including expected long-term rates of return on plan assets and the discount rate used
to compute future benefit obligations. The Company’s policy is to use a discount rate comparable to rates
of return on high-quality fixed income investments available and expected to be available during the
period to maturity of the Company’s pension benefits. Actuarial gains and losses resulting from changes
in the assumptions, or experience different from those assumptions, are amortized over the remaining
service period of active employees expected to receive benefits under the plans.
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Accounting Changes

In 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 addresses financial accounting and reporting for business
combinations and established the purchase method for accounting for such transactions. SFAS No. 142
addresses accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets and redefines useful lives, amortization periods
and impairment of goodwill. Under the new pronouncement, goodwill is no longer amortized, but is tested for
impairment annually by assessing the fair value of reporting units, generally one level below reportable
segments. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company recognized a charge reflected as a
cumulative effect of accounting change of $135.6 million or $.46 per diluted share related to the impairment of
goodwill in its North American cemetery reporting unit.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” which superceded SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets to be held and used
be written down to fair value when it is concluded that the carrying value of such assets are not recoverable on
an undiscounted cash flow basis. Assets to be disposed of by sale are required to be recorded at the lower of
their carrying amounts or fair value less estimated cost to sell. The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 during
the first quarter of 2002 with no impact on the results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivatives Instruments and Certain Hedging
Activities: An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” In accordance with these pronouncements, the
Company recognized a cumulative effect of accounting change of $7.6 million or $.03 per diluted share. The
charge primarily related to the recognition of net deferred charges from interest rate gains and losses realized
on the termination of swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges. These charges were previously
amortized into interest expense over the terms of the swap agreements, whereas the new standards require
recognition as the derivative gains and losses are incurred.

In 2000, the Company implemented SAB No. 101 which changed the Company’s accounting policies
regarding the manner in which it records prearranged sales activities. The implementation of SAB No. 101
had no effect on the consolidated cash flows of the Company. The accounting change, which occurred as a
result of the required implementation of SAB No. 101, has been treated as a change in accounting principle
effective as of the beginning of 2000. For a more detailed discussion of these changes, see note three to the
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. As a result of the implementation of SAB
No. 101, the Company recognized a cumulative effect of accounting change of $909.3 million or $3.34 per
diluted share.

Results of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company reported total revenues from continuing operations
of $2,272.4 million, representing a 9.5% decrease compared to total revenues from continuing operations for
2001 of $2,510.3 million. Gross profit from continuing operations improved 1.3% to $363.9 million and the
gross margin percentage increased in 2002 to 16.0% from 14.3% in 2001. The decline in revenues is primarily
attributable to operations disposed in 2001 and 2002, while the improvement in gross profit and margin
percentage is the result of the cost reduction initiatives and reduced changes in estimates of previously
deferred cemetery revenue during the year. Excluding non-recurring items and including pro forma adjust-
ments to 2001, the Company reported $92.1 million (8$.31 per diluted share) and $114.7 million ($.39 per
diluted share) of earnings before non-recurring items for the full year of 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In 2002, the Company ceased amortization of goodwill as required by SFAS No. 142; changed the
amortization period of deferred prearranged funeral obtaining costs from 20 to 12 years; changed the allocation
methodology of overhead costs in North America to be based on funeral and cemetery reporting unit revenues;
began recognizing revenues associated with delivered caskets previously prearranged on cemetery contracts as
part of funeral operations instead of cemetery operations; and ceased depreciation of operating assets held for
sale during 2002. In 2002, the Company determined transactions to sell or joint venture certain assets would
be delayed until after 2002. As a result, the Company resumed normal depreciation of those assets held in
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France and Chile in the third quarter of 2002. For purposes of the following discussion, the Company has
presented the financial information for 2001 and 2000 on a pro forma basis as if these changes had been
implemented in all years presented. Further, results in all periods presented are representative of the
Company’s comparable results, which excludes operations that were acquired or constructed after January 1,
2001 and divested by the Company prior to December 31, 2002. As a result, some acquisitions entered into in
2000 may not be included for the full year depending on the timing of the acquisition. Comparable financial
results are meant to be reflective of the Company’s “same store” results of operations. For further information,
refer to Non-GAAP Financial Measures in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K. The following is a discussion of the Company’s results of

comparable operations by geographic segment:
Comparable Year Ended December 31, 2602

North America % of revenue  Europe % of revenue  Other Foreign % of revenue Total % of revenue
Revenues:
Funeral............ $1,111.8 64.9% $479.9 100.0% $ 6.9 19.9% $1,598.6 71.7%
Cemetery .......... 602.4 35.1% — —% 27.8 80.1% 630.2 28.3%
$1,714.2 100.0% $479.9 100.0% $34.7 100.0% $2,228.8 100.0%
Gross profit and margin
percentage:
Funeral............ $ 2274 20.5% $ 474 10.0% $ 28 40.6% § 2776 17.4%
Cemetery.......... 77.4 12.8% — —% 4.7 16.9% 82.1 13.0%
$ 304.8 17.8% $ 47.4 10.0% $ 75 21.6% $ 359.7 16.1%
Comparable Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2001
North America % of revenue  Europe % of revenue  Other Foreign % of revenue Total % of revenue
Revenues:
Funeral............ $1,099.8 65.1% $431.3 100.0% $11.3 18.5% $1,542.4 70.7%
Cemetery .......... 590.1 34.9% — —% 49.9 81.5% 640.0 29.3%
$1,689.9 100.0% $431.3 100.0% $61.2 100.0% $2,182.4 100.0%
Gross profit and margin
percentage:
Funeral............ $ 2367 21.5% § 365 8.5% $ 27 239% § 2759 17.9%
Cemetery .......... 90.0 15.3% — — 12.4 24.8% 102.4 16.0%
$ 3267 19.3% §$ 36.5 8.5% $15.1 24.7% $ 3783 17.3%
Comparable Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2000
North America % of revenue  Europe % of revenue  Other Foreign % of revenue Total % of revenue
Revenues:
Funeral............ $1,086.6 68.4% $422.3 100.0% $11.9 20.6% $1,520.8 73.5%
Cemetery .......... 502.1 31.6% — —% 45.9 79.4% 548.0 26.5%
$1,588.7 100.0% $422.3 100.0% $57.8 100.0% $2,068.8 100.0%

Gross profit and margin

percentage:
Funeral............ $ 2445 225% $ 269 6.4% $ 36 30.3% $ 2750 18.1%
Cemetery .......... 46.3 9.2% — —% 7.8 17.0% 54.1 9.9%
$ 290.8 183% $ 269 6.4% 11.4 19.7% $ 329.1 15.9%
17




Funeral

Comparable Funeral Services Performed
North America Europe Other Foreign Total

December 31:
272,792 137,668 4,069 414,529
274,684 138,475 4,104 417,263
274,147 142,387 4,286 420,820

Comparable North America funeral revenues increased in 2002 compared to 2001 and 2000 despite a
decline in the comparable number of funeral services performed over those same periods. The decline in the
number of funeral services performed was offset by an increase in the average revenue per funeral service. The
average revenue per funeral service for comparable revenues was $4,042 in 2002, $3,976 in 2001 and $3,938 in
2000. This average revenue per funeral service continues to be positively impacted by the Company’s Dignity
Memorial® packaged funeral plans. The decline in the number of funeral services performed is consistent with
trends in mortality information, accumulated by the Company, experienced throughout North America.

Comparable North America gross profit and margin percentage declined in 2002 compared to 2001 and
2000 as a result of increased costs associated with full-time personnel. The gross margin percentage was within
the Company’s annual 2002 targeted range of 18% to 23% despite these increases in costs. In both 2002 and
2001, the Company has recorded reductions in the allowance for doubtful accounts associated with funeral
receivables in North America as collections have improved.

In the death care industry, there has been a growing trend in the number of cremations performed in
North America as an alternative to traditional funeral service dispositions. The west coast of the United States
and the state of Florida have the highest concentration of cremation consumers in North America. While
cremations performed by the Company in North America typically have higher gross profit margins than
traditional funeral services, cremations usually result in lower revenue and gross profit dollars to the Company
than traditional funeral services. In North America during 2002, 38.2% of all funeral services performed by the
Company were cremation cases, compared to 37.0% and 36.3% performed in 2001 and 2000. In recent years
the Company has continued to expand its cremation memorialization products and services in several North
America markets which has resulted in higher average sales for cremation cases compared to historical levels.
The Company’s cremation memorialization products and services include providing memorial services, several
options in memorialization gardens built in certain sections of the Company’s cemeteries, urns, and niches in
mausoleums or columbariums in which to place remains. The Company also continues to expand its nationally
branded cremation service company called National Cremation® Service (NCS). NCS currently operates in
fourteen states with high cremation rates and has plans to continue to expand to eighteen states by the end of
2003. The Company believes that the NCS consumer would not have chosen the Company’s traditional
funeral service locations as an alternative to NCS, and therefore is considered an incremental customer to the
Company.

Comparable international funeral revenues also increased in 2002 compared to 2001 and 2000 despite a
decline in the number of funeral services performed. The effect of foreign currency positively impacted 2002
by approximately $20.2 million and $6.0 million when compared to foreign currency exchange rates in effect
during 2001 and 2000, respectively, as a result in the strengthening of the Euro relative to the U.S. dollar.
Excluding this effect, revenues increased as a result of increases in the average revenue per funeral service,
incremental products and services offered to client families and delivery of burial monuments in France.
Comparable international gross profit and margin percentage improved in 2002 compared to 2001 and 2000.
The increase in the gross profit and margin percentage was the result of improved results in the Company’s
French operations, as discussed above.

Cemetery

Comparable North America cemetery revenues increased in 2002 compared to 2001 and 2000 as a result
of increases in completed cemetery property development projects and increases in the amount of cash
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receipts and down payments received from preneed property sales. Prenced cemetery property revenues are
recognized when development of the property is completed and customer payments are at least 10% of the
total contract amount.

Comparable North America cemetery gross profit and margin percentage declined in 2002 compared to
2001, but increased compared to 2000 as a result of the Company’s ongoing review of obligations to deliver
cemetery merchandise and services to customers in order to collect funds due to the Company from applicable
cemetery trust funds. As a result of these reviews, the Company recognized revenue related to changes in
estimates of previously Deferred preneed cemetery contract revenues. This change in estimate increased
revenues and gross profits $23.4 million and $18.3 million, respectively, in 2002 and $68.5 million and
$54.9 million in 200t. The Company will continue to review these obligations to deliver cemetery merchandise
and services to customers, however, the impact recognized in future periods may not be as significant as prior
years.

Comparable international cemetery revenues decreased in 2002 compared to 2001 and 2000 as a result of
the effect of foreign currency translation, which negatively impacted revenues in 2002 by approximately
$21.3 million and $25.0 million when compared to foreign currency exchange rates in effect during 2001 and
2000, respectively. In January 2002, the Argentine peso, which previously exchanged at a rate of one peso to
one U.S. dollar, was converted to a free floating currency. As a result, the Company’s South America
operations have experienced negative adjustments in foreign currency translation. Comparable international
cemetery gross profit and margin percentage decreased also as a result of the above mentioned currency
effects.

Other Income and Expenses

The Company’s corporate general and administrative expenses increased in 2002 to $89.8 million from
$70.3 million in 2001 and $79.9 million in 2000. Included in the 2002 amount of $89.8 million is $13.5 million
of accelerated non-cash amortization expense related to existing capitalized system costs as a result of the
Company’s decision in 2002 to implement new information systems. The prior periods did not include any
such accelerated non-cash amortization expense. In addition to the $13.5 million of accelerated non-cash
amortization expense in 2002, general and administrative expenses increased primarily related to approxi-
mately $12 million of professional fees and increases in the Company’s reserves for litigation matters
recognized in the fourth quarter of 2002. Expressed as a percentage of revenue from continuing operations,
general and administrative expenses were 3.9%, 2.8% and 3.1% for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Impairment losses and other operating expenses, previously disclosed as Restructuring and non-recurring
charges, were $289.1 million in 2002 and consisted of (i) $158.5 million for impairment losses from certain
funeral and cemetery operations being held for sale, (ii) $40.8 million to adjust the market value of certain
options associated with the Company’s 6.3% Senior notes due 2020 (putable in 2003), (iii) $39.3 million from
relieving certain individuals from their consulting and/or covenant-not-to-compete contractual obligations,
(iv) $16.2 million related to the additional estimated reduction in the value of the Company’s businesses in
Argentina due to the continued economic decline, (v) $18.7 million related to the permanent reduction in
value of equity investments in North American companies, (vi) $12.9 million of severance costs for former
employees and (vil) $2.7 million primarily related to changes in estimates of previously recorded charges for
impaired operations. The Company will continue to make adjustments as actual divestitures are consummated
or better estimates become available. For further information detailing these non-recurring items, see note
sixteen to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-X.

Impairment losses and other operating expenses recorded in 2001 were $644.1 million and consisted of
$663.5 million in charges related to (i) the loss on joint venturing the Company’s Australian operations,
(ii) losses from the disposition of operations in the Netherlands, Norway and Belgium, and (iii) the
impairment of certain international operations held for sale. These charges were offset by $19.4 million
consisting of favorable changes in estimates of previously recorded charges of certain divested North America
funeral homes and cemeteries and the Company’s equity investment in a Canadian funeral home and
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cemetery company. In 2000, the Company recorded impairment losses and other operating expenses of
$517.8 million which consisted of (i) $351.2 million of impairment losses related to the planned divestitures of
certain North America businesses, (ii) $139.9 million related to the permanent reduction in the carrying value
of equity investments, and (iii) $26.7 million in changes in estimates of previously recorded charges.

The Company recorded certain additional non-recurring items during 2002, 2001 and 2000, related to
extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of debt, net losses associated with the sales of the Company’s
discontinued operations and cumulative effects of accounting changes. For a detailed discussion of these and
other non-recurring items, see Non-GAAP Financial Measures included in this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K.

Interest expense decreased to $161.5 million in 2002 compared to $211.6 million and $281.5 million in
2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in interest expense reflects the successful reduction in the
Company’s debt balance. The Company’s average outstanding debt was $2.2 billion in 2002 compared to
$2.8 billion and $3.7 billion in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Other income was $19.0 million in 2002 compared to $15.1 million and $17.5 million in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Other income primarily consists of income from various notes receivable and cash investments,
equity earnings of investments in certain companies and cash overrides from prearranged funeral sales with
third party insurance companies. Other income increased in 2002 as a result of increased income on cash
investments offset by an increase in bad debt reserves on a loan to an international crematory made by the
Company.

Gains from dispositions were $16.4 million in 2002 compared to $16.2 million and $17.2 million in 2001
and 2000, respectively. Included in gains from dispositions are asset sales not associated with previously
recognized impairment charges. Also included in 2001 was a $2.1 million gain recognized on the sale of 85% of
the Company’s Spain and Portugal operations.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

December 31,

2302 2601 2060
Cash and cash equivalents .............. ... ..covviinn... $ 2006 $ 293 § 479
Total debt .. ..o e 1,984.8 2,534.6 3,268.1
Net debt (total debt lesscash) ........................... $1,784.2  $2,505.3  $3,220.2

The Company continued to improve its balance sheet and liquidity in 2002. The Company’s total debt
less cash and cash equivalents decreased by $721.1 million or 28.8% during 2002 as a result of strong cash
flows and a successful asset divestiture/joint venture program that produced approximately $325 million of net
pretax cash proceeds for the Company. The majority of these net pretax cash proceeds resulted from the
completion of a joint venture transaction in 2002 related to the Company’s operations in the United Kingdom,
which generated approximately $273 million of net pretax cash proceeds. Additionally, the Company’s debt
balance at December 31, 2001 included $113.5 million of debt associated with the financial restructuring of
the Company’s French subsidiary, which was satisfied with non-cash French financial assets during 2002. In
the third quarter of 2002, the Company completed an exchange of $172.2 million of the Company’s
6.0% senior notes due 2005 for 7.7% senior notes due 2009. In addition to extending $172.2 million of debt
maturities an additional four years, this transaction had the non-cash effect of reducing the Company’s net
debt by $21.1 million.

The Company’s 2003 outlook discussed in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations contains liquidity measures that are calculated in accordance with
GAAP. The Company’s results to be reported publicly in the future will primarily contain financial results that
are GAAP financial measures. In 2002 and 2001, the Company has reported the liquidity measure EBITDA
before non-recurring items and recurring operating free cash flow. These measures should be considered non-
GAAP financial measures and are provided to more clearly present the financial results that management uses
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to manage its funeral and cemetery businesses. Reconciliations of these non-GAAP financial measures to the
most directly comparable financial measures calculated in accordance with GAAP are presented in the section
Non-GAAP Financial Measures included in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

The Company calculates the non-GAAP financial measure EBITDA before non-recurring items for each
period presented by adding interest, tax, depreciation and amortization expenses back to earnings before non-
recurring items. The term earnings before non-recurring items is a non-GAAP financial measure representing
earnings excluding certain non-recurring items. The reconciliation of earnings before non-recurring items to
the net losses reported by the Company under GAAP in 2002 and 2001 are contained in the section Non-
GAAP Financial Measures included in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations. Reductions in EBITDA before non-recurring items in 2002 compared to 2001 are
primarily related to the Company’s asset divestiture and joint venture transactions that have occurred.
Calculations for EBITDA before non-recurring items for 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Full Year
2002 2001
Earnings before non-recurring items ............c.cocoiiiiiiiiiiiiia... $ 921 $1147
Add: Tnterest EXpense . ... ..ottt e 161.5 2116
Tax expense not associated with non-recurring items ................. 39.6 54.8
Depreciation and amortization(1) ........... ... ... ciiiii i 128.5 116.9
EBITDA before non-recurring items . . ... ..ovvoveninnneennnnenn.. $421.7  $498.0

(1) 2001 depreciation and amortization is presented in this table pro forma as if certain accounting changes
made in 2002 were implemented in 2001 to provide a more relevant comparison to the 2002 results.

The Company calculates the non-GAAP financial measure recurring operating free cash flow by
adjusting cash flows from operating activities to exclude (i) cash payments associated with the Company’s
restructuring and non-recurring charges and (ii) other cash receipts or payments (included in cash flows from
operating activities) which are of a non-recurring operational nature, and then subtracting maintenance capital
expenditures. Total operating free cash flow is calculated in the same manner as above except the amount
includes all non-recurring cash payments and receipts and non-recurring or growth capital expenditures. The
Company’s total operating free cash flow does not include proceeds from business sales or joint ventures. The
Company defines maintenance capital expenditures as capital expenditures considered reasonably necessary to
maintain the Company’s funeral service locations, cemeteries, crematoria and other facilities in a condition
consistent with Company standards. Growth capital expenditures are considered expenditures made for the
purpose of generating additional or incremental revenues. The reconciliation of recurring operating free cash
flow to cash flows from operating activities calculated under GAAP are contained in the Section Non-GAAP
Financial Measures included in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
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Results of Operations. The following table details the calculation described above for the Company’s total and
recurring operating free cash for 2002 and 2001.

Full Year
2002 2001

Operating free cash flow:

Consolidated cash flow provided by operating activities ................ $ 3522 § 3833
Payments on restructuring charges. . .......... ... ool 12.8 22.8
Adjusted cash flow from operating activities ....................... 365.0 406.1
Capital Expenditures ... ....ooot it e (100.1) (74.1)
Total operating free cash flow . . ... .. ... 264.9 332.0
Less: Net non-recurring réCeipts ... ...ovvuininneirinneeennineenn. {(54.9) (161.5)
Recurring operating free cash flow ....... ... ... ... .. $ 2100 $ 170.5

Net non-recurring receipts for 2002 consist of $57.1 million of non-recurring tax refunds, $25.0 million of
net non-recurring receipts primarily related to non-recurring funeral and cemetery trust receipts and escrow
amounts received related to divestitures, offset by $27.1 million of growth or non-recurring capital expendi-
tures. The $161.5 million of net non-recurring cash receipts in 2001 includes $116.3 million of non-recurring
tax refunds and the collection of receivables from funeral and cemetery trust funds of approximately
$79.8 million, offset by non-recurring payments of approximately $27.9 million related to the Company’s
curtailed pension plans and $6.7 million of other non-recurring cash payments.

The Company’s objectives in 2003 focus on continued stabilization of the Company’s capital structure by
generating strong cash flows, completing asset divestitures and further debt reduction. A goal of the Company
is to obtain a stable “BB” credit rating from Standard and Poor’s and a stable “Ba2” credit rating from
Moody’s, with general access to the capital markets.

The Company believes it currently has strong liquidity. As of February 26, 2003, the Company had
liquidity of approximately $350 million, comprised of a cash balance of approximately $250 million and
approximately $100 million of availability under the Company’s $185 million credit facility. The Company has
no cash borrowings under this credit facility, but has issued approximately $85 million of letters of credit under
the credit facility. At December 31, 2002, the Company had current maturities of long-term debt of
$100.3 million primarily consisting of approximately $84 million of 6.3% Senior Notes due in March 2003.
Based on the Company’s current cash balances, the Company believes it has adequate means to meet its
current maturities of long-term debt.

At February 26, 2003, the Company’s maturity schedule for certain of its outstanding senior public notes
due in the near and intermediate term is as follows:

Outstanding at
Febraary 26, 2003

(In miflions)

6.3% senior notes due March 2003 ......... ..., $ 76
7.375% senior notes due April 2004 ... ... ... ... .. $11t
8.375% senior notes due December 2004 .. ........ ... ... ... ...... $ 5t
6.0% senior notes due December 2005 .. ........ ... ... ... ... ..., $366

Based on the Company’s current cash balance, its expectation of future annual cash flows, its expectation
of future asset divestiture/joint venture proceeds of approximately $300-$400 million, and its current
borrowing capacity under its credit facility, the Company believes it has adequate means to meet its near and
intermediate maturities of current and long-term debt.

22




Contractual, Commercial and Contingent Commitments

The Company has assumed various financial obligations and commitments in the ordinary course of
conducting its business. The Company has contractual obligations requiring future cash payments under
existing contractual arrangements, such as management, consultative and non-competition agreements. The
Company also has commercial and contingent obligations which result in cash payments only if certain
contingent events occur requiring the Company’s performance pursuant to a funding commitment.

The following table details the Company’s known future cash payments (on an undiscounted basis)
related to various contractual obligations as of December 31, 2002.

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 2003 2004-2005 2006-2007 Thereafter
Current maturities of long-term debt(1) ......... $ 1003 %1003 $ — $§ — $ —
Long-term debt(1) .......... ... . o i 1,884.5 — 604.7 348.9 930.9
Casket purchase agreement(2) ................. 380.0 87.0 293.0 — —
Operating and capital lease agreements(3) ....... 210.8 529 84.3 389 34.7
Contingent purchase obligation(4) .............. 40.0 — 40.0 — —
Management, consultative and non-competition

agreements(S) . ...... ... it 218.7 80.2 77.2 41.8 19.5

Total contractual obligations ................ $2,834.3  $320.4  $1,099.2 $429.6 $985.1

(1) The Company’s outstanding indebtedness contains standard provisions including defaults on scheduled
principal and interest payments and changes of control clauses. In addition, the Company’s bank credit
agreement contains a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio. For further
information see note seven to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

(2) The Company has a purchase agreement with a major casket manufacturer for its North American
operations with an original minimum commitment of $750 million over a six-year period expiring at the
end of 2004. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s remaining maximum commitment under the
purchase agreement was $380.0 million. The agreement contains provisions for annual price adjustments.
Additionally, the agreement provides for a one-year extension period to 2005 in which the Company is
allowed to satisfy any remaining commitment that exists at the end of the original term.

(3) The majority of the Company’s operating leases contain options to (i) purchase the property at fair value
on the exercise date, (ii) purchase the property for a value determined at the inception of the leases, or
(iil) renew for the fair rental value at the end of the primary lease term. The Company’s operating leases
primarily relate to funeral service locations, automobiles, limousines, hearses, cemetery operating and
maintenance equipment and two aircraft. The Company has residual value exposures related to certain
operating leases of approximately $7.5 million. The Company believes it is unlikely that it will have to
make future cash payments related to these residual value exposures.

(4) In connection with certain acquisitions related to the Company’s South America operations, the
Company entered into contingent purchase obligations with certain former owners of those businesses.
These obligations require the Company to pay additional consideration if cumulative earnings thresholds,
as defined in such agreements, are met between 2003 and 2005. As of December 31, 2002, the contingent
consideration is estimated to be approximately $40 million. This additional consideration can be paid
partially in stock at the discretion of the former owners.

(5) The Company has entered into management employment, consultative and non-competition agreements
which contractually require the Company to make cash payments over the contractual period. The
agreements have been primarily entered into with certain officers and employees of the Company and
former owners of businesses acquired. The contractual obligation amounts pertain to the total commit-
ment outstanding under these agreements and may not be indicative of future expenses to be incurred
related to these agreements due to cost rationalization programs completed by the Company. See note
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sixteen to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for further discussion
regarding these cost rationalization programs.

The following table details the Company’s known potential or possible future cash payments (on an
undiscounted basis) related to various commercial and contingent obligations as of December 31, 2002.

Expiration by Period

Cemmereial and Contingent Obligations Total 2003 2004-2005  2006-2007 Thereafter
Surety obligations(1) ............. ... ... .oe.... $214.1  $214.1 $ — $ — $—
Lettersof credit(2) ..oty 85.8 85.8 — — —
Lending commitment(3) ....................... 9.6 9.6 — — —
Representations and warranties(4) ............... 30.3 4.3 13.8 37 8.5
Total commercial and contingent obligations .. .. $339.8 $313.8 $13.8 $37 8.5

(1) In support of the Company’s operations, the Company has entered into arrangements with certain high
quality surety companies whereby such companies agree to issue surety bonds on behalf of the Company,
as financial assurance and/or as required by existing state and local regulations. The surety bonds are
used for various business purposes; however, the majority of the surety bonds issued and outstanding have
been issued to support the Company’s prearranged funeral and preneed cemetery activities. The
underlying obligations these surety bonds assure are appropriately recorded on the Company’s consoli-
dated balance sheet as Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues and Deferred preneed cemetery
contract revenues. The total surety bonds outstanding at December 31, 2002 was $314.7 million
($303.7 million related to prearranged funeral and preneed cemetery obligations). In the event all of the
high quality surety companies cancelled or did not renew the Company’s outstanding surety bonds
(generally renewed on a rolling twelve-month basis), the Company would be required to obtain
replacement assurance or fund an estimate of $214.1 million as of December 31, 2002, primarily into
state mandated trust accounts. At this time, the Company does not believe it will be required to fund
material future amounts related to these surety bonds.

(2) The Compary is occasionally required to post letters of credit, issued by a financial institution, to secure
certain insurance programs or other obligations. Letters of credit generally authorize the financial
institution to make a payment to the beneficiary upon the satisfaction of a certain event or the failure of
the Company to satisfy an obligation. The letters of credit are generally posted for 1-year terms and are
usually automatically renewed upon maturity until such time as the Company has satisfied the
commitment secured by the letter of credit. The Company is obligated to reimburse the issuer only if the
beneficiary collects on the letter of credit. The Company believes that it is unlikely it will be required to
fund a claim under its outstanding letters of credit. In 2002, the full amount of the letters of credit were
supported by the Company’s credit facility which expires July 2005.

(3) The Company’s lending subsidiary had previously participated in a syndicated credit facility which
continues to be outstanding through June 2004. The borrower, Carriage Services, Inc., has the ability to
draw upon this undrawn portion of its credit line at any time through maturity, and the Company is
required to provide the funding requested up to its total commitment amount, which is $14.4 million.

(4) In addition to letters of credit described above, the Company currently has contingent obligations of
$30.3 million related to the Company’s asset sale/joint venture transactions. The Company has agreed to
guarantee certain representations and warranties associated with such disposition transactions with letters
of credit or interest bearing cash investments. The Company has interest bearing cash investments of
$15.3 million included in Deferred charges and other assets collateralizing these contingent obligations.
The Company does not believe it will ultimately be required to fund to third parties any claims against
these representations and warranties.
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Sources and Uses of Cash

Net cash provided by operating activities was $352.2 million in 2002 compared to $383.3 million in 2001,
a decrease of $31.1 million. The decrease is primarily the result of (1) lower tax refunds and (2) less cash
received from the collection of receivables related to certain cemetery and funeral trust funds, offset by
(3) lower cash interest payments and (4) improvements in working capital. Total cash tax refunds, net of
payments, were $54.6 million in 2002 and $100.1 million in 2001. Trust fund receipts from the collection of
receivables from certain funeral and cemetery trust funds were $10.8 million and $80.5 million in 2002 and
2001, respectively. Cash interest payments were $158.6 million and $218.4 million in 2002 and 2001
respectively. Also included in net cash provided by operating activities is approximately $95.5 million and
$93.0 million of cash receipts from the Company’s surety bonding program for 2002 and 2001, respectively.
See the further discussion of the Company’s surety bonds in the Financial Assurances section included in this
Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $326.9 million in 2002 compared to $325.4 million in 2001.
Net cash provided by investing activities was flat in 2002 compared to 2001, despite an increase in capital
expenditures of $25.9 million and lower proceeds from sales and joint ventures of operations of $44.4 million.
These changes were offset by reduced cash collateral requirements of $70.9 million as a result of settling
certain options and issuing letters of credit under the Company’s credit facility.

Net cash used in financing activities was $505.5 million in 2002 compared to $727.4 million in 2001.
Included in 2002 was a use of cash of $57 million related to the final settlement of certain options associated
with the Company’s senior notes due 2020 (putable 2003). Excluding this transaction, net cash used in
financing activities in both periods is related to the Company’s continued debt reduction initiatives. The
Company primarily used funds collected during these periods from tax refunds, receipts from certain funeral
and cemetery trust funds, proceeds from sales and joint ventures of operations and its cash flow from
operations to reduce its debt.

Prearranged Funeral and Cemetery Activities

In addition to selling its products and services to client families at the time of need, the Company also
sells prearranged funeral services in most of its service markets. Funeral prearrangement is a means through
which a customer contractually agrees to the terms of a funeral to be performed in the future. All or a portion
of the funds collected from prearranged funeral contracts are placed in trust accounts, pursuant to applicable
law, or are used to pay premiums on life insurance policies from third party insurers. In certain situations
pursuant to applicable laws, the Company will post a surety bond as financial assurance for a certain amount of
the preneed funeral contract in lieu of placing certain funds in trust accounts. See the Financial Assurances
section within this Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources section for further details on the
Company’s practice of posting such surety bonds.

Cemetery sales are also made on a preneed basis pursuant to installment contracts providing for monthly
payments. A portion of the proceeds from cemetery contracts is generally required by law to be paid into
perpetual care trust funds. Earnings from perpetual care trust funds are used to defray the maintenance costs
of cemeteries. Additionally, all or a portion of the proceeds from the sale of preneed cemetery merchandise
and services may be required by law to be paid into merchandise and services trusts until the merchandise is
delivered or the service is provided. In certain situations pursuant to applicable laws, the Company will post a
surety bond as financial assurance for a certain amount of the preneed cemetery contract in lieu of placing
certain funds into trust accounts. See the Financial Assurances section within this Financial Condition,
Liquidity and Capital Resources section for further details on the Company’s practice of posting such surety
bonds.

For purposes of discussion in this section, the use of the term “prearranged” or “prearrangement” refers
to funeral programs specifically or funeral and cemetery programs generally. The use of the term “preneed”
refers to cemetery programs specifically. Prearrangement is a means through which a customer contractually
agrees to the terms of a funeral and/or cemetery burial to be performed or provided in the future.
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Revenues associated with prearranged contracts are deferred until such time that the funeral or cemetery
services are performed or merchandise is delivered. Preneed sales of cemetery interment rights (cemetery
burial property) are not recognized until a minimum of 10% of the sales price has been collected and the
property has been constructed. Compensation costs incurred related to the acquisition of new prearranged
funeral trust contracts, primarily commissions and fringe benefits, are deferred as selling costs and amortized
over 12 years, a period representing the estimated life of the prearranged funeral contracts. Prior to 2002, the
amortization period was 20 years. As of January 1, 2002, the Company changed the estimated period to
12 years to more accurately reflect current trends regarding the timeframe from selling a preneed contract to
when it is serviced atneed. The amount of funeral deferred selling costs amortized in the consolidated
statement of operations for North America was $14.5 million and $6.4 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Had the Company changed the amortization period in 2001 from 20 to 12 years, the amortization expense
would have been $12.3 million in 2001. Cemetery deferred selling costs, primarily commissions and fringe
benefits, are expensed as the associated revenues are recognized. Other costs associated with the sales and
marketing of prearranged contracts — lead procurements costs, brochures and marketing materials, advertis-
ing and administrative costs — are expensed as incurred.

When prearranged funeral services and merchandise are funded through insurance policies purchased by
customers from third party life insurance companies, the Company earns a commission on the sale of such
policies for acting as an agent in selling such insurance contracts. Such general agency revenues are based on a
percentage per contract sold and are recognized, net of related expenses, when the insurance purchase
transaction between the customer and third party insurance provider has been completed. In 2002 and 2001,
$13.0 million and $6.0 million, respectively, of net general agency revenues were recognized. Excluding the
related expenses being netted against the associated general agency commissions, the Company recognized
$48.1 million and $43.3 million of general agency revenues in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Additionally, the
Company may receive cash overrides related to life insurance policies sold as a result of marketing agreements
entered into in connection with the sale of its insurance subsidiaries in 2000. These overrides are recorded in
Other income in the consolidated statement of operations.

The table below details the North America results of funeral and cemetery prearranged production for
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related deferred selling costs incurred to procure the
prearrangements. Additionally, the table reflects revenues recognized and previously deferred selling costs
recognized in the consolidated statements of operations associated with previously prearranged production for
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

North America

Funeral Cemetery
2002 2001 2002 2601

Origination:
Prearranged production ............. ... .o i, $411.1  $398.7 $303.2 $3227
Deferred selling costs. . ........covviini e $170 $ 144 $ 442 $ 4009
Maturity:
Previously prearranged production included in current

period revenues. .. ...t $314.2  $293.0 $297.1  $288.0
Amortization/recognition of deferred selling costs in

current period(1) ... ... ... $145 $ 64 $ 436 $ 378

(1) The amortization of funeral deferred selling costs reflects the historical amount recorded in 2001. If the
amortization period was changed from 20 to 12 years as of January 1, 2001, the amortization would have
been $12.3 million.

As described earlier, prearranged contracts can be funded through several alternatives. For prearranged
funeral or preneed cemetery contracts funded through trusts, generally all or a certain portion of the funds
collected are required to be placed into trust accounts, pursuant to applicable law. Funds not required to be
placed into trust accounts are retained by the Company and used for working capital purposes to help alleviate
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the current cost of those prearrangement programs. Realized investment earnings on funds placed into trust
accounts are generally accumulated and deferred until the maturity of each prearranged contract. However, in
certain states, the Company is allowed to distribute a portion of the realized investment earnings before the
prearrangement contract matures. When a prearranged trust contract matures, the Company receives the
principal and previously undistributed trust fund income and any remaining receivable due from the customer.
In certain situations, the Company can post a surety bond as financial assurance pursuant to applicable law in
an amount that would otherwise be required to be trusted. Funds collected on prearranged contracts where the
Company has posted a surety bond may be retained by the Company creating a source of working capital cash
flow generated from operating activities before the prearranged contract matures. When the prearranged
contract matures, the Company receives any remaining receivable due from the customer. Finally, the
customer may elect to purchase an insurance contract from a third party life insurance company to fund a
prearranged funeral contract, the funds of which are collected and used to pay premiums on life insurance or
annuity contracts. Increasing death benefits associated with life insurance contracts are accumulated and
deferred until the maturity of each prearranged contract. When a prearranged insurance contract matures, the
Company receives the proceeds from the third party insurance companies consisting of the original contract
amount and any increasing death benefits.

Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenue or preneed cemetery contract revenue is recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations at the time the service is performed or the merchandise is delivered. For
trust or bonded contracts, the revenue recognized is generally greater than the cash received by the Company
at the time a prearranged contract matures and creates a negative effect on working capital cash flow
generated from operating activities.

The cash flow activity from originating funeral production until the maturity of the prearranged funeral
contract is captured in the line item Net effect of prearranged funeral production and maturities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash flow is provided by the amount retained from funds collected from
the customer and distributed trust fund earnings. This is reduced by the payment of deferred selling costs and
the use of funds to service matured contracts.

The cash flow activity from originating the preneed cemetery contract until recognition of the deferred
revenue is reflected through Changes in receivables and Changes in other assets in the consolidated statement
of cash flows. Changes in receivables is affected by cash flow provided by the amount retained from funds
collected from the customer and distributed trust earnings, and is reduced by the use of funds to service
preneed cemetery contracts. Changes in other assets is affected by the cash use associated with the payment of
deferred selling costs when the preneed cemetery contracts are originated, offset by the reduction in deferred
selling costs associated with recognition of the preneed cemetery revenue.

The following table reflects the total North American backlog of deferred prearranged contract revenues
and the prearranged assets associated with the contracts at December 31. The difference between the amounts
of Deferred prearranged contract revenues and the prearranged assets associated with such contracts
represents future revenues to be recognized in which the associated cash has already been collected by the
Company.

North America

Funeral Cemetery Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Deferred prearranged

contract revenues . ...... $3,638.3  $3,571.8 $1,671.6  $1,733.7 $5,309.9  $5,305.5
Deferred net selling costs . . 90.1 93.8 2103 210.6 300.4 304.4
Prearranged assets:

Trust related assets ..... 980.9 984.5 859.3 915.1 1,840.2 1,899.6

Third party insurance

related assets......... 2,175.5 2,075.4 — — 2,175.5 2,075.4
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The deferred prearranged contract revenue associated with prearranged funeral contracts and preneed
cemetery contracts are reflected separately in the consolidated balance sheet. Both funeral and cemetery
deferred selling costs (net of an estimated allowance for cancellation) are included as a component of
Deferred charges and other assets. Prearranged assets associated with prearranged funeral contracts, which
consist of amounts due from trusts, customer receivables or third party insurance receivables (net of an
estimated allowance for cancellations), are reflected as Prearranged funeral contracts separately in the
consolidated balarnice sheet. Prearranged assets associated with preneed cemetery contracts, which consist of
amounts due from trusts and customer receivables (net of an estimated allowance for cancellation) are
reflected in Current and Long term receivables in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company estimates that deferred revenue and deferred selling costs to be recognized in 2003 for
North America funeral and cemetery operations are $322.0 million and $15.5 million for funeral, and
$216.0 million and $31.5 million for cemetery, respectively.

Financial Assurances

In support of operations, the Company has entered into arrangements with certain high quality surety
companies whereby such companies agree to issue surety bonds on behalf of the Company as financial
assurance and/or as required by existing state and local regulations. The surety bonds are used for various
business purposes; however, the majority of the surety bonds issued and outstanding have been used to support
the Company’s prearranged funeral and preneed cemetery activities. The underlying obligations these surety
bonds assure are appropriately recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as Deferred prearranged
funeral contract revenues and Deferred prenced cemetery contract revenues (see notes four and five to the
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 and Prearranged Funeral and Cemetery Activities within Financial
Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources of this Form 10-X for further details regarding the Company’s
prearranged funeral and preneed cemetery activities). The breakdown of bonds between funeral and cemetery
prearrangements, as well as surety bonds for other activities, is as follows:

December 31, 2002

Prearranged funeral . ... ... .. .. $108.3

Preneed cemetery:
Merchandise and SErvices . ... ... ..oiiiiitii i e 172.8
PreconStIUCHION. . . ..ottt e e e 22.6
Bonds supporting prearranged funeral and cemetery obligations ......... 303.7
Bonds supporting prearranged business permits ............ ... .. 0 .. 4.9
Other bonds ... .. i e 6.1
Total bonds outstanding .......... ... ... ... ... .. ..., $314.7

As the Company sells prearranged funeral contracts and preneed cemetery contracts, the Company
intends to post surety bonds where allowed by applicable law. The Company posts the surety bond in lieu of
trusting a certain amount of funds received from the customer. The amount of the bond posted is determined
by the total amount of the prearranged contract that would otherwise be required to be trusted, in accordance
with applicable state law. During 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized $95.5 million and $93.0 million,
respectively, in cash receipts attributable to bonded sales.

Surety bond premiums are paid annually and are automatically renewable, unless prior notice of
cancellation, until maturity of the underlying prearranged contracts. Except for cemetery preconstruction
bonds (which are irrevocable), the surety companies generally have the right to cancel the surety bonds at any
time with appropriate notice. In the event a surety company were to cancel the surety bond, the Company
would be required to obtain replacement assurance or fund a trust for an amount generally less than the posted
bond amount, unless the customer’s prearranged contract has been paid in full. A quantitative detail of this
subject is discussed in the Contractual, Commercial and Contingent Commitments section included within
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources. The Company does not believe it will be required to
fund material future amounts related to these surety bonds.

The applicable Florida law which allows posting of surety bonds for prearranged contracts expires
December 31, 2004. Unless the law is otherwise amended, the Company plans to shift from bonding to either
trust or insurance funding for prearranged funeral and cemetery programs in the state of Florida in the year
2005. Prearranged contracts entered into prior to December 31, 2004 where the Company posts surety bonds
will be allowed to continue to be bonded for the remaining life of those contracts. Of the total bonding
proceeds received by the Company for 2002 and 2001, approximately $70.3 million and $67.2 million,
respectively, were attributable to the state of Florida. Assuming the Company’s prearranged funeral and
cemetery sales production in Florida in 2005 is consistent with production for the full year of 2002, the pre-tax
forecasted cash flow impact of shifting to trusting is expected to be approximately $20 to $25 million lower in
that year before considering the cash flow impact of contracts going atneed. This forecast reduction in pre-tax
cash flow involves assumptions about the mix of preneed sales among property, merchandise and services and
the appropriate levels of trusting required by Florida law. Using the same general assumptions, there would
also be expected an estimated cash flow decrease in years 2006 through 2009 of approximately $2 to $7 million
per year.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company has reported certain operating and liquidity financial measures in this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations that exclude certain non-recurring
items. These figures should be considered non-GAAP financial measures and are provided to more clearly
present the financial results that management uses to manage its funeral and cemetery businesses. Non-
recurring items excluded from certain financial information are related to discontinued operations, non-
recurring charges for restructuring activities or planned sales of businesses, cumulative effects of accounting
changes and extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of debt.

The Company has also adjusted the results of operations in 2001 and 2000 to be consistent with the
accounting presentations in 2002. Cperating results for 2001 and 2000 have been presented in this
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in a pro forma
format as if certain changes made in 2002 were implemented in those years to provide a more relevant
comparison to the 2002 results. Such changes include (1) discontinuing amortization of goodwill pursuant to
new accounting standards, (2) changing the amortization period related to deferred prearranged funeral
selling costs from 20 to 12 years, (3) revising the estimated allocation of overhead costs between the funeral
and cemetery segments, (4) recognizing as part of funeral operations instead of cemetery operations, those
revenues associated with delivered caskets previously prearranged on cemetery contracts and (5) discontinu-
ing the depreciation of certain operating assets held for sale in 2002.
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The following two tables reconcile the non-GAAP financial measures earnings before non-recurring items
and diluted EPS before non-recurring items to net loss and diluted loss per share calculated under GAAP.

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Earnings before non-recurring items ....................... $ 921 $ 1147 § 588
Adjust for 2001 pro forma items (after tax):
Goodwill amortization ............coii i — (47.4) (52.8)
Amortization of deferred prearranged funeral obtaining costs — 3.6 3.8

Depreciation expense related to operations held for sale in
2002 . — (14.5) (21.5)

Adjust for 2002 and 2001 non-recurring items (after tax):
Gains from dispositions, impairment losses and other

OPETAtiNg EXPEIMSES « o v v vt ettt et eie e (193.3)  (653.0) (413.8)
Income from discontinued operations .................... — 1.7 13.3
Loss on sale of discontinued operations................... —_ _— (43.7)
Extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of debt .. ... .. 49 4.7 21.9
Cumulative effects of accounting changes................. (135.6) (7.6) (909.3)
Nt 0SS o v v ettt e $(231.9) $(597.8) $(1,343.3)
December 31,
2002 2001 2000

‘Diluted EPS before non-recurring items . . .................. $§ 31 $ 39 § 22
Adjust for 2001 pro forma items (after tax):

Goodwill amortization . ........ ... ... .. . i — (.17) (.19)

Amortization of deferred prearranged funeral obtaining costs — 01 .01

Depreciation expense related to operations held for sale in

2002 . e — (.05) (.08)
Effect of dilution ......... ... ... i, — .01 —

Adjust for 2002 and 2001 non-recurring items (after tax):
Gains from dispositions, impairment losses and other

OPETAtINE CXPEMSES « v v oo vt rie ittt ienteeannns (.65) (2.28) (1.52)
Income from discontinued operations .................... — .00 .05
Loss on sale of discontinued operations. .................. — — (.16)
Extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of debt ....... 01 .02 .08
Cumulative effects of accounting changes................. (.46) (.03) (3.34)

Diluted loss pershare .......... ... $ (79 $ (2.10) § (4.93)
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The Company calculates EBITDA for each period by adding interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
expenses back to earnings before non-recurring items. Reported EBITDA before non-recurring items for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is $421.7 million, $498.0 million and $489.3 million,
respectively. The following table reconciles EBITDA before non-recurring items to the Company’s operating
loss calculated under GAAP,

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
EBITDA before non-recurring items ........................ $ 4217 $ 4980 § 4893
Less: Depreciation and amortization. ........................ (128.5)  (1939) (224.1)
Impairment losses and other operating expenses............. (289.1) (644.1) (517.8)
Otherincome. ... ... .. i (19.0) (15.1) (17.5)
Operating loSS ..\ v vttt $ (14.9) $(355.1) $(270.1)

The Company calculates the non-GAAP financial measure recurring operating free cash flow by
adjusting cash flows from operating activities to exclude (i) cash payments associated with the Company’s
restructuring and non-recurring charges and (ii) other cash receipts or payments (included in cash flows from
operating activities) which are of a non-recurring operational nature and then subtracting maintenance capital
expenditures. The Company defines maintenance capital expenditures as capital expenditures considered
reasonably necessary to maintain the Company’s funeral homes, cemeteries, crematoria and other facilities in
a condition consistent with Company standards. The following table reconciles recurring operating free cash
flow to cash flows from operating activities calculated under GAAP. The following table reconciles recurring
operating free cash flow to cash flows from operating activities calculated under GAAP.

December 31,

20022001
Recurring operating free cash flow. ... ... ... i $210.0 $170.5
Add back: Net non-recurring items . . .......... ... 349 1615
Total operating free cash flow ... .. .. ... . i i 264.9 3320
Add back: Capital expenditures ........... .. i i 100.1 74.1
Less: Payments on restructuring charges. ............ ... ... ... ... _(12.8)  (22.8)
Cash flows from operating activities ..................... ... .. . $3522  §$3833

Other Matters

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FIN No. 46), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities an Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51.” FIN No. 46
clarifies the application of ARB No. 31, Consolidated Financial Statements, to certain entities in which equity
investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at
risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties.
FIN No. 46 defines the terms related to variable interest entities and clarifies if such entities should be
consolidated. The Company is currently assessing the impact of FIN No. 46 on the Company’s results of
operations, financial position and cash flows.

Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Statements

The statements in this Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements made in
reliance on the “safe harbor” protections provided under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These statements may be accompanied by words such as “believe,” “‘estimate,” “‘project,” “‘expect,”
“anticipate” or “predict,” that convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes. These statements are
based on assumptions that the Company believes are reasonable; however, many important factors could cause
the Company’s actual consolidated results in the future to differ materially from the forward-looking
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statements made herein and in any other documents or oral presentations made by, or on behalf of, the
Company. These factors are discussed below. The Company assumes no obligation to publicly update or revise
any forward-looking statements made herein or any other forward-looking statements made by the Company,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Risks Related to the Company’s Business

The Company’s ability to execute its strategic plan depends on many factors, many of which are beyond
the Company’s control.

The Company’s strategic plan is focused on reducing overhead costs, increasing cash flow, asset
redeployment, and reducing debt while at the same time developing key revenue initiatives designed to
generate future internal growth in its core funeral and cemetery operations without the outlay of significant
additional capital. Many of the factors necessary for the Company’s execution of its strategic plan are beyond
the Company’s control. The Company can give no assurance that it will be able to execute any or all of its
strategic plan. Failure to execute any or all of the strategic plan could have a material adverse effect on the
Company, its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

The Company's indebtedness limits funds available for its operations.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had approximately $2.0 billion in debt. The Company’s
indebtedness may limit its ability to obtain additional financing, limit its flexibility in planning for, or reacting
to, changes in its markets, require the sale of assets which it would otherwise want to retain and require the
dedication of more cash flow to service its debt than it desires. The Company’s ability to satisfy its
indebtedness in a timely manner will be dependent on the successful execution of its long-term strategic plan
and the resulting improvements in its operating performance.

The Company’s bank credit agreement and indentures contain covenants that may prevent the Company
from engaging in certain transactions.

The Company’s bank credit agreement and indentures contain, among other things, various affirmative
and negative covenants that may prevent the Company from engaging in certain transactions that might
otherwise be considered beneficial to the Company. These covenants limit, among other things, the ability of
the Company and its subsidiaries to:

= borrow money;

o pay dividends or distributions;

o purchase or redeem stock;

o make investments;

o engage in transactions with affiliates;

» engage in sale-leaseback transactions; and

e consummate certain liens on assets.

The credit agreement also requires the Company to maintain certain financial ratios and satisfy other
financial condition tests. Although the maturity of the Company’s bank credit agreement brings an end to the

restrictions created by it, any future credit agreements or indentures may contain terms and conditions that are
more or less restrictive than those of the existing bank credit agreement and indentures.

If the Company lost the ability to use surety bonding to support its prearranged funeral and preneed
cemetery activities, the Company could have to make material cash payments to fund certain trust
Sunds.

The Company has entered into arrangements with certain high quality surety companies whereby such
companies agree to issue surety bonds on behalf of the Company, as financial assurance and/or as required by
existing state and local regulations. The surety bonds are used for various business purposes; however, the
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majority of the surety bonds issued and outstanding have been issued to support the Company’s prearranged
funeral and preneed cemetery activities. In the event the surety companies canceled or did not renew the
outstanding surety bonds, the Company could have to obtain replacement assurance or fund certain trust
funds, which could result in material cash outflows. Furthermore, the Company’s future cash flows could be
materially affected if the Company lost access to using surety bonds for financial assurance in its normal
course of business.

The funeral home and cemetery industry is highly competitive.

In North America and most international markets in which the Company operates, the funeral and
cemetery industry is characterized by a large number of locally owned, independent operations. To compete
successfully, the Company’s funeral service locations and cemeteries must maintain good reputations and high
professional standards in the industry, as well as offer attractive products and services at competitive prices. In
addition, the Company must market itself in such a manner as to distinguish itself from its competitors. If it is
unable to successfully compete, the Company, its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
could be materially adversely effected.

The Company’s affiliated funeral and cemetery trust funds own investments in equity securities and
mutual funds, which are affected by financial market conditions that are beyond the Company’s control.

In connection with the Company’s prearranged funeral operations and preneed cemetery merchandise
sales, affiliated funeral and cemetery trust funds own investments in equity securities and mutual funds. The
Company’s earnings and investment gains and losses on these equity securities and mutual funds are affected
by financial market conditions that are beyond the Company’s control. If the Company’s earnings from
perpetual care trust funds decline, the Company would experience a decline in current revenues. If the
Company’s earnings from other trust funds decline, the Company would likely experience a decline in future
revenues. In addition, if the trust funds experienced investment losses, there would likely be insufficient funds
in the trusts to cover the costs of delivering services and merchandise or maintaining cemeteries in the future.
The Company would have to cover any such shortfall with cash flows, which could have a material adverse
effect on the Company, its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

As of December 31, 2002, net unrealized depreciation in the prearranged funeral and cemetery
merchandise and services trust funds amounted to $68.7 million and $50.1 million respectively. The perpetual
care trust funds had net unrealized appreciation of $7.0 million as of December 31, 2002. See notes four and
five to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The following table summarizes the
investment returns excluding fees on the Company’s trust funds for the last three years.

2002 2001 2000

Prearranged funeral trust funds ........ ... . ... (7.6)% 1.7% 2.8%
Cemetery merchandise and services trust funds . ........................ (55)% 1.0% 5.3%
Perpetual care trust funds . ........ ... . i i 53% 43% 9.4%

Increasing insurance benefits related to prearranged funeral contracts funded through life insurance or
annuity contracts may not cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral
service.

The Company sells price guaranteed prearranged funeral contracts through various programs providing
for future funeral services at prices prevailing when the agreements are signed. For prearranged funeral
contracts funded through life insurance or annuity contracts, the Company receives in cash a general agency
commission of approximately 14% of the total sale from the third party insurance company. Additionally, the
Company accrues an increasing insurance benefit associated with the contract of approximately 1% per year to
be received in cash by the Company at the time the funeral service is performed. There is no guarantee that
the increasing insurance benefit will cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral
service, which could materially adversely affect the Company’s future cash flows, revenues and profit margins.
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The Company may not be able to joint venture or sell its international operations on acceptable terms or
at all.

The Company’s long-term strategic plan includes the joint venture or sale of its remaining international
operations outside of North America in order to create cash proceeds to reduce debt. For example, the
Company believes it can joint venture its French operations in 2003, If the Company is unable to joint venture
or sell these operations on acceptable terms or otherwise, it could adversely affect the Company’s ability to
achieve its strategic plan.

The Company’s foreign operations and investments involve special risks.

The Company’s activities in areas outside the United States are subject to risks inherent in foreign
operations, including:

= Loss of revenue, property and equipment as a result of hazards such as expropriation, nationalization,
wars, insurrection and other political risks;

e The effects of currency fluctuations and exchange controls, such as devaluation of foreign currencies
and other economic problems; and

o Changes in laws, regulations and policies of foreign governments, including those associated with
changes in the governing parties.

The Company is the subject of lawsuits in Florida that, if decided against it, could have a negative effect
on its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows and the Company may be subject to
additional class action or other significant lawsuits in the future.

Since December 2001, private plaintiffs and the state of Florida have brought proceedings against the
Company for, among other things, allegedly deceiving customers by destroying caskets and remains and
overselling space in two south Florida cemeteries owned by a Florida operating subsidiary. The private lawsuit
is a purported class action which has not been certified but seeks substantial damages. The state actions
involve, among other things, the appointment of an examiner to oversee the remedial actions and burial
processes at the two cemeteries, as well as a criminal investigation by the Florida Department of Law
Enforcement Agency. The ultimate outcome of these cases cannot be determined at this time. The Company
has insurance policies which are designed to limit cash outflows in the event of a decision adverse to it in these
matters. If the costs or damages awarded against the Company in these matters exceed the insurance
coverage, if the insurance coverage is determined not to apply to these amounts, or if an insurance carrier is
unable to pay, the Company would have to pay them out of its own funds, which could have a material adverse
effect on the Company, its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, the Company
is in the ordinary course of business involved in other litigation proceedings. There is a risk that one of the
lawsuits that the Company does not view as significant at the moment, or an additional lawsuit brought in the
future, could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows.

The Company is the subject of securities fraud class action lawsuits that, if decided against it, could
have a negative effect on its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

In January 1999, numerous putative class-action lawsuits were filed in the United States District Courts
for the Southern and Eastern Districts of Texas, on behalf of persons and entities who (1) acquired shares of
the Company’s common stock in the merger with Equity Corporation International, or ECI; (2) purchased
shares of the Company’s common stock in the open market during the period from July 17, 1998 through
January 26, 1999 (referred to herein as the class period); (3) purchased call options in the open market during
the class period; (4) sold put options in the open market during the class period; (S) held employee stock
options in ECI that became options to acquire the Company’s stock pursuant to the ECI merger; and (6) held
employee stock options to purchase the Company’s common stock under a plan during the class period. These
actions have been consolidated into one lawsuit in the federal court in Houston, Texas. The consolidated
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complaint alleges that the Company and three of its current or former executive officers and directors violated
federal securities laws by making false and misleading statements and failing to disclose material information
concerning the Company’s prearranged funeral business and other financial matters, including in connection
with the ECI merger. Plaintiffs allege damages based on the market loss, during the class period, of the
outstanding shares, including those exchanged in the ECI merger. In October 1999, the Company filed a
motion to dismiss the consolidated complaint that has not been ruled on by the court.

Four similar cases were also brought in the state courts of Texas by former officers, directors and
shareholders of ECI alleging violations of Texas securities laws and statutory and common law fraud in
connection with the ECI merger.

The ultimate outcome of the stockholder class-action and employee cases cannot be determined at this
time. The plaintiffs have not been required to quantify their claim of damages, but the Company believes they
are likely to seek substantial amounts. Certain insurance policies held by the Company may limit the
Company’s cash outflows in the event of a decision adverse to the Company in these matters. If the legal costs
or the damages awarded against the Company exceed the insurance coverage, if the insurance coverage is
determined not to apply to these amounts, or if an insurance carrier is unable to pay, the Company would have
to pay them out of its own funds, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Risks Related to the Death Care Indust}y
If the number of deaths in the Company’s markets declines, its cash flows and revenues may decrease.

The United States Bureau of the Census estimates that the number of deaths in the United States will
increase by approximately one percent per vear from 2000 to 2010. However, longer life spans could reduce
the number of deaths. If the number of deaths declines, the number of funeral services and interments
performed by the Company will decrease and the Company, its financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows may be materially adversely effected.

The growing trend in the number of cremations performed in North America could resuit in lower
revenue and gross profit dollars.

In the death care industry, there has been a growing trend in the number of cremations performed in
North America as an alternative to traditional funeral service dispositions. While cremations performed by the
Company in North America typically have higher gross profit margins than traditional funeral services,
cremations usually result in lower revenue and gross profit dollars to the Company than traditional funeral
services. In North America during 2002, 38.2% of all funeral services performed by the Company were
cremation cases compared to 37.0% and 36.3% performed in 2001 and 2000, respectively. In recent years the
Company has continued to expand its cremation memorialization products and services in several North
American markets, which has resulted in higher average sales for cremation cases compared to historical
levels. The Company also continues to expand its nationally branded cremation service locations called
National Cremation® Service. If the Company is unable to successfully expand its cremation memorialization
products and services or its nationally branded cremation service locations, the Company, its financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows could be materially adversely effected.

The funeral home and cemetery businesses are high fixed-cost businesses.

The majority of the Company’s operations throughout the world are managed in groups called “clusters”.
Clusters are geographical groups of funeral service locations and cemeteries that lower their individual
overhead costs by sharing common resources such as operating personnel, preparation services, clerical staff,
motor vehicles and preneed sales personnel. Personnel costs, the largest of the operating expenses for the
company, are the costs components most beneficially affected by clustering. The Company must incur many
of these costs no matter the number of funeral services or interments performed. Because the Company cannot
necessarily decrease these costs when it experiences declines in sales, declines in sales can cause margins,
profits and cash flows to decline at a greater rate than the decline in revenues.
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The funeral home and cemetery industry is highly regulated.

The Company’s operations are subject to regulation, supervision and licensing under numerous foreign,
federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations, including extensive regulations concerning trust
funds, preneed sales of funeral and cemetery products and services, and various other aspects of our business.
The impact of such regulations varies depending on the location of the Company’s funeral and cemetery
operations. Violations of applicable laws could result in fines or other sanctions to the Company.

In addition, from time to time, governments and agencies propose to amend or add regulations, which
could increase costs and decrease cash flows. For example, foreign, federal, state, local and other regulatory
agencies have considered and may enact additional legislation or regulations that could affect the death care
industry. Some states and regulatory agencies have considered or are considering regulations that could
require more liberal refund and cancellation policies for preneed sales of products and services, limit or
eliminate the ability of the Company to use surety bonding, increase trust requirements and prohibit the
common ownership of funeral homes and cemeteries in the same market. If adopted by the regulatory
authorities of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates, these and other possible proposals could have a
material adverse effect on the Company, its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows,

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Marker Risk

The information presented below should be read in conjunction with notes eight and nine to the
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

The Company historically used derivatives primarily in the form of interest rate swaps and cross-currency
interest rate swaps in combination with local currency borrowings in order to manage its mix of fixed and
floating rate debt and to hedge the Company’s net investment in foreign assets. The Company generally does
not participate in derivative transactions that are leveraged or considered speculative in nature. The Company
was not a party to any derivative transactions at December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, 99% of the Company’s total debt consisted of fixed rate debt at a
weighted average rate of 6.87% and 6.75%, respectively.

The Company does not have a significant investment in foreign operations that are in highly inflationary
economies. Approximately 8% of the Company’s net investment and 21% of its operating income excluding
impairment charges and other operating expenses are denominated in foreign currencies at December 31,
2002. At December 31, 2001, approximately 16% of the Company’s net investment and 26% of its operating
income excluding impairment charges and other operating expenses were denominated in foreign currencies.

Marketable Equity and Debt Securities — Price Risk

In connection with the Company’s prearranged funeral operations and preneed cemetery merchandise
and service sales, the related funeral and cemetery trust funds own investments in equity securities and mutual
funds, which are sensitive to current market prices. Cost and market values as of December 31, 2002 and 2001
are presented in notes four and five to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-X.

Market-Rate Sensitive Instruments — Interest Rate and Currency Risk

The Company performs a sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of interest rate and exchange rate risks
on earnings. This analysis determines the effect of a hypothetical 10% adverse change in market rates. In
actuality, market rate volatility is dependent on many factors that are impossible to forecast. Therefore, the
adverse changes described below could differ substantially from the hypothetical 10% change.

At December 31, 2002, the Company was not a party to any derivative transactions. At December 31,
2001, the Company was party to two derivative instruments that were subject to interest rate and currency
exchange rate exposures. Although the derivative instruments outstanding at December 31, 2001 were
sensitive to market rates, they have been excluded from this analysis since they qualify and are designated as
effective hedges of net foreign investments. Given this, the changes in the market values of these instruments,
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caused by market rates, do not affect interest expense. Therefore, the effect of the sensitivity analysis
described below results solely from the Company’s debt instruments.

A sensitivity analysis of debt instruments with variable interest rate components was modeled to assess
the impact that changing interest rates could have on pretax earnings. The sensitivity analysis assumes an
instantaneous 10% adverse change to the then prevailing interest rates with all other variables held constant.
Given this model, the Company’s pretax earnings, on an annual basis, would not change in 2002 and would be
negatively impacted by approximately $150 thousand on December 31, 2001.

A similar model was used to assess the impact of changes in exchange rates for foreign currencies on
interest expense. At December 31, 2002, the Company's debt exposure was primarily associated with the
Euro. At December 31, 2001, the Company’s debt exposure was primarily associated with the British pound.
A 10% adverse change in the strength of the U.S. dollar would have negatively affected the Company’s
interest expense, on an annual basis, by approximately $190 thousand and $800 thousand on December 31,
2002, and 2001, respectively.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED SCHEDULE

Financial statements;
Report of Independent Accountants
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three years ended December 31, 2002
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2002 and 2001
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31, 2002
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity for the three years ended December 31, 2002 . .
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule:
IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted because the required information is not applicable or is not present
in amounts sufficient to require submission or because the information required is included in the consolidated
financial statements or the related notes thereto.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Service Corporation International

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Service Corporation International and its subsidiaries at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed
in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read
in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in note three to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill on January 1, 2002, changed its method of accounting for derivative financial
instruments and hedging activities on January 1, 2001 and changed its method of accounting for prearranged
sales activities on January 1, 2000.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
March 14, 2003
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2062 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
REVEMUES . . ..ot e e $ 2,272,423  $ 2,510,343 $ 2,564,730
Costs and eXPENSES .. ... vit i e (1,908,508)  (2,150,957)  (2,237,088)
Gross profits . ... 363,915 359,386 327,642
General and administrative expenses . ..................... (89,752) (70,309) (79,932)
Impairment losses and other operating expenses ............ {289,054) (644,147) (517,776)
Operating 1oss . ... ..o v i i (14,891) (355,070) (270,066)
Interest eXpense ... ... e (161,494) (211,626) (281,548)
Other iNCOME .. ..ot e 19,021 15,044 17,455
Gains from diSpositions .. ......cviitiiie i 16,401 16,224 17,181
Loss from continuing operations before income
taxes, extraordinary items and cumulative effects
of accounting changes ........................ (140,963) (535,428) (516,978)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes ...................... 39,740 (61,199) 91,455
Loss from continuing operations before extraordinary items
and cumulative effects of accounting changes ............ (101,223) (596,627) (425,523)
Income from discontinued operations (net of income tax
expense of $936 and $6,543 respectively) ................ — 1,701 13,347
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations (net of income
tax expense of $73,839) ... ... ... i, — — (43,733)
Extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of debt {net of
income tax expense of $2,880, $3,024, and $12,630,
TESPECHIVELY ) o e 4,903 4731 21,973
Cumulative effects of accounting changes (net of income tax
benefit of $11,234, $5,318 and $522,491, respectively) ..... (135,560) (7,601) {909,315)
Net 10sS . oo e e $ (231,880) $ (597,796) $(1,343,251)
Basic and diluted earnings per share:
Loss from continuing operations before extraordinary items
and cumulative effects of accounting changes .......... $ (34) $ (2.09) $ (1.56)
Income from discontinued operations ................... — .00 05
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations .............. — — (.16)
Extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of debt ... ... 01 .02 .08
Cumulative effects of accounting changes................ (.46) (.03) (3.34)
Nt 1088 . . e e $ (79 $ (2.10) $ (4.93)
Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares........ 294,533 285,127 272,172

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31,

2002

2001

(In thousands, except
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..................c0iiiiiiiiiiinannnn. $ 200625 $§ 29,292
Receivables, net of allowances ........ ... ... . i i 291,765 386,479
Ve OIS .« ottt e e 135,529 168,975
O her . . 126,980 245,207
Total current assets . ...t e e 754,899 829,953
Prearranged funeral contracts, net of allowances ......................... 4,273,790 4,109,195
Long-term receivables, net of allowances ............................... 1,156,458 1,249,492
Cemetery property, at COSt ... oottt ittt et it n 1,567,584 1,924,773
Property, plant and equipment, at cost (net) .............. v, 1,188,340 1,357,410
Deferred charges and other assets . ............. ... 598,536 699,805
Goodwill (Net) ..ot 1,184,178 1,409,309
$10,723,785  $11,579,937
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ................... . ... . ..., $§ 361910 $ 484,150
Current maturities of long-term debt. ............ ... . ... .. L. 100,330 220,640
INCOME tAXES « ottt e 2,043 5,812
Total current liabilities ........... . i 464,283 710,602
Long-term debt ... ... 1,884,508 2,313,973
Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues .. ............ ... ... ... 4,659,994 4,596,116
Deferred preneed cemetery CONtract revVenUES . ........o..veuneurneennnn.. 1,672,661 1,756,041
Deferred Income taxXes . ... .ottt e 522,453 546,747
Other Habilities. . . ... i e e e 216,115 223,597
Commitments and contingencies (note ten)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $1 per share par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized,
297,010,237 and 292,153,765 issued and outstanding (net of 2,516,396
and 2,502,190 treasury shares at par) .............coiiieiiiiinnn.nn 297,010 292,154
Capital in excess of parvalue. ...... ... i 2,259,936 2,246,055
Accumulated deficit. . ... .. . e e (1,046,029) (814,149)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss......... ... ... L (207,146)  (291,199)
Total stockholders’ equity .. ... ... oo 1,303,771 1,432,861
$10,723,785  $11,579,937

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

N 088 vttt et ettt e e $(231,880) $(597,796) $(1,343,251)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax .........c.... i — (1,701) (13,347)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax .............couiiiiiii i —_ — 43,733
Extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of debt, netof tax ................... ..ol (4,903) (4,731) (21,973)
Cumulative effects of accounting changes, net of tax............ ... ... i i 135,560 7,601 909,315
Depreciation and amortization ........ ... . i s 128,546 193,937 224,031
Provision for deferred income taxes ...... ..ot e e s 104,345 72,695 45,039
Impairment losses and other operating eXpenses. ... .......vuiireerivir i, 289,054 644,147 517,776
Payments on restructuring charges .. ... ...t (12,806) (22,794) (46,655)
Gains from dispositions ... . ...ttt (16,401) (16,224) (17,181)
Net effect of interest rate component of swap terminations ...............c.cooviirvnnenn. — — (32,840)
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and dispositions:
Decrease (increase) in receivables ... 27972 50,360 191,137
Decrease (increase) in Other @ssets ........ ..ottt 88,587 100,516 (265,504)
Decrease in other liabilities . . .. ... ..o i (178,126)  (106,409) (109,975)
Net effect of prearranged funeral production and maturities. ............................. 19,605 45,979 112,520
(011 1T 2,619 17,755 30,775
Net cash provided by continuing operations ............ it 352,172 383,335 223,600
Net cash provided by discontinued operations ............. ..ot — — 144,640
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ..........ooeiittiiiiie i, 352,172 383,335 368,240
Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital eXPenditUrES . . ...\ttt e e (100,045) (74,164) (83,370)

Proceeds from joint ventures and sales of equity investments, net of cash retained ............... 291,795 285,688 278,025

Proceeds from divestitures and sales of property and equipment ............... ... 76,292 126,792 92,593

Net withdrawals (deposits) of restricted funds . ... i i 58,035 (12,874) (68,753)

Proceeds from sales of loans by lending subsidiary........... ... o — — 84,803

Principal payments received on loans by lending subsidiary ................. .. ...l — — 21,649

10377 PN 848 (32) (8,913)
Net cash provided by continuing Operations ... .........cuuueeiiurernnerneneieneeraeanen.. 326,925 325,410 316,034
Net cash used in discontinued OPErations .. .......... ..ttt — — (122,966)
Net cash provided by investing activities .. ... ...ttt i i i e 326,925 325,410 193,068
Cash flows from financing activities:

Net decrease in borrowings under credit agreements ...........oov it (29,061)  (734,186) {395,096)

Payments of debt . ... ..o e (75,857)  (166,262) (126,342)

Proceeds from long-term debt issued ... ... .. — 345,000 —

Early extinguishments of debt. .. ... ... . i e (307,232)  (155,545) (194,097)

Net effect of cross-currency component of swap terminations .................coooiieion... — — 143,498

Settlement of OptiONS . .. ..ot it i e (57,000)

Bank overdrafts and other ... ... . e (36,332) (16,445) 7,574
Net cash used in financing activities .. .......o.i .ttt e e (505,482)  (727,438) (564,463)
Effect of fOTeign CUITENCY ..o\ttt e e e e e e (2,282) 76 (131)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .......... ... . oo i 171,333 (18,617) (3,286)
Adjust for change in cash and cash equivalents associated with discontinued operations ............ — — 6,619)
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations at beginning of period ....................... 29,292 47,909 57,814
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations at end of period. ................. ..ol $ 200,625 § 29,292 § 47,909

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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Accumulated
Capital in Retained Other
Common Excess of Earnings Comprehensive

Stock Par Value {Deficit) Income (Loss) Total
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Balance at December 31, 1999....... ... .. ... $ 272,064 $2,156,301 $ 1,126,898 $ (59,990) § 3,495,273
Comprehensive loss:
Net 1SS . oo (1,343,251) (1,343,251)
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation .......................... (202,709) (202,709)
Unrealized loss on securities, net...................... (4,792) (4,792)
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net.............. (12,724) (12,724)
Reclassification adjustment for realized loss on securities. . 27,014 27,014
Reclassification adjustment for realized loss on foreign
currency translation ............ ... . . ... 16,044 16,044
Total other comprehensive loss ..................... (177,167)
Comprehensive 10ss . ...t (1,520,418)
Common Stock issued:
Stock option exercises and stock grants .................. 33 100 133
ACQUISIHIONS ...\ttt e s 61 186 247
Contributions to employee 401(k) ....................... 356 456 812
Repurchase of common stock.............. ... ... ... ... (7) (219) (226)
Balance at December 31,2000................. ... ... ... 272,507 2,156,824 (216,353) (237,157) 1,975,821
Comprehensive loss:
Nt 1088 . ottt (597,796) (597,796)
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation .................coovv... (76,403) (76,403)
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net.............. (16,629) (16,629)
Reclassification adjustment for realized loss on foreign
currency translation .. ...t 38,990 38,990
Total other comprehensive loss ..................... (54,042)
Comprehensive 1088 ... ...t (651,838)
Common Stock issued:
Stock option exercises and stock grants .................. 627 2,367 2,994
Contributions to employee 401 (k) and cash balance plan ... 3,576 15,559 19,135
Debenture CONVErsions . . .....oovvu vt i iie e 244 5,284 5,528
Debenture extinguished using common stock.............. 15,200 66,021 81,221
Balance at December 31,2000 ................. . iinn... 292,154 2,246,055 (814,149) (291,199) 1,432,861
Comprehensive loss:
Net Joss . .o e (231,880) (231,880)
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation .. ........................ 43,776 43,776
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net.............. (7,202) (7,202)
Reclassification adjustment for realized loss on foreign
currency translation ........... ... ... o oL 47,479 47,479
Total other comprehensive income .................. 84,053
Comprehensive loss .......... ..o i (147,827)
Common Stock issued:
Stock option exercises and stock grants .................. 173 414 587
Contributions to employee 401(k) ........... ... ....... 4,683 13,467 18,150
Balance at December 31, 2002. ... ... i $ 297,010 $2,259,936 $(1,046,029)  $(207,146) § 1,303,771

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Note One
Natare of Operations

Service Corporation International (SCI or the Company) is the largest provider of death care services in
the world through its funeral service and cemetery operations. At December 31, 2002, the Company operated
2,393 funeral service locations, 451 cemeteries and 189 crematoria located in eight countries. The Company
also has minority interest investments in funeral and cemetery operations in four countries outside of North
America.

The funeral service locations and cemetery operations consist of the Company’s funeral service locations,
cemeteries, crematoria and related businesses. Company personnel at the funeral service locations provide all
professional services relating to funerals, including the use of funeral facilities and motor vehicles. Funeral
related merchandise is sold at funeral service locations and certain funeral service locations contain
crematoria. The Company sells prearranged funeral services whereby a customer contractually agrees to the
terms of a funeral to be performed in the future. The Company’s cemeteries provide cemetery interment rights
(including mausoleum spaces, lots and lawn crypts) and sell cemetery related merchandise. Cemetery items
are sold on an atneed or preneed basis. Company personnel at cemeteries perform interment services and
provide management and maintenance of cemetery grounds. Certain cemeteries also operate crematoria.
There are 190 combination locations that contain a funeral service location within a Company owned
cemetery. :

Note Two
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SCI and all majority-owned subsidiaries.
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have
been made to prior years to conform to current period presentation with no effect on the consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In 2002, the Company began recognizing revenues associated with delivered caskets previously prear-
ranged on cemetery contracts as part of funeral operations. Previously, such casket revenue was recognized in
cemetery operations. The Company reclassified prior year operating results to conform to the current period
presentation with no effect on previously reported results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Use of Estimaies in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. As a result, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The Company has an ongoing review program of its obligations to deliver cemetery merchandise and
services to customers in order to collect funds from applicable cemetery trust funds. As a result of this ongoing
review, the Company has recognized changes in estimates of Deferred preneed cemetery contract revenues
which had the effect of increasing revenues and gross profits in 2002 by $23,400 and $18,300, respectively,
compared to $68,500 and $54,900, respectively, in 2001. The Company intends to continue to review these
obligations, however, the impact recognized in future periods will depend on the outcome of such reviews.
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In 2002, the Company changed the amortization period related to deferred prearranged funeral selling
costs from 20 years to 12 years. This change in estimate was made in order to more accurately reflect current
trends regarding the timeframe from when a prearranged contract is sold to when it is serviced atneed. This
change in estimate reduced funeral gross profit and net loss by approximately $6,700 and $4,200, or $.01 per
diluted share in 2002.

The Company changed its allocation methodology of overhead costs in North America to be based on
funeral and cemetery reporting unit revenues. The change in overhead allocation has not impacted the
Company’s reported results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In addition, in 2002, the Company decided to implement new information technology systems, including
a new North America point of sale system and an upgraded general ledger system. As a result of this decision,
the Company accelerated amortization of its existing capitalized systems costs beginning in the second quarter
of 2002 to reflect the remaining estimated useful lives of these systems. The Company recognized
approximately $13,500 of additional amortization in 2002 related to this change in estimate. This change in
estimate impacted net loss approximately $8,500 or diluted loss per share $.03 in 2002.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents.

Inventories and Cemetery Property

Funeral merchandise and cemetery burial property and merchandise are stated at the lower of average
cost or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
whereas renewals and major replacements are capitalized. Costs of property sold or retired and the related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the consolidated balance sheet; resulting gains and losses are
included in the consolidated statement of operations.

Goodwill

The excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in business
combinations accounted for as purchases is inciuded in Goodwill. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
based on the fair value of the Company’s reporting units pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142 for its
Funeral operations (North America, France, Germany, Singapore and Argentina) and Cemetery operations
(North America, Argentina, Chile and Uruguay). See note three to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets. Property and plant are depreciated over a period ranging
from seven to fifty years, equipment is depreciated over a period from five to twenty years and leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or a range of five to fifty years. For the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 depreciation expense from continuing operations was $90,036,
$100,263, and $109,995, respectively.
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Prepaid management, consultative and non-competition agreements, primarily with former owners and
key employees of businesses acquired, are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lives (generally from five
to ten years) of the respective contracts. Amortization expense associated with these agreements for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $15,532, $19,715, and $21,527, respectively.

Deferred selling costs incurred pursuant to the sales of trust funded prearranged funeral contracts are
deferred and amortized over 12 years, a period representing the estimated life of the prearranged funeral
contracts. Amortization associated with these deferred selling costs for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, and 2000 was $14,592, $7,318, and $7,116, respectively. See Use of Estimates in the Preparation of
Financial Statements within this note for further information regarding deferred selling costs.

For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, amortization expense of goodwill from continuing
operations was $59,237 and $65,541, respectively. See note three to the consolidated financial statement for
further information regarding accounting for goodwill. Other miscellaneous amortization from continuing
operations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $8,386, $7,404, and $19,852,
respectively.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment when changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets to be held and used be reported at the lower of carrying amount
or fair value. Assets to be disposed of and assets not expected to provide any future service potential to the
Company are recorded at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less estimated cost to sell.

In January 2002, the Company ceased depreciation of operating assets held for sale. The Company later
determined transactions to sell or joint venture certain assets would be delayed until after 2002. As a result,
the Company resumed normal depreciation of those assets held in France and Chile in the third quarter of
2002.

Stock Options

The Company accounts for employee stock-based compensation expense under the intrinsic value
method. Under the intrinsic value method, no compensation expense is recognized on stock options if the
grant price equals the market value on the date of grant.

If the Company had elected to recognize compensation cost for its option plans based on the fair value at
the grant dates for awards under those plans, net loss and loss per share would have been changed for the years
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ended December 31 to the pro forma amounts indicated below. For further information see note eleven to the
consolidated financial statements.

2002 2001 2000

Nt 1088 . oot $(231,880) $(597,796) $(1,343,251)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value based method for

all awards, net of related tax expense .............. (13,537) (17,680) (24,735)
Proformanetloss .......... ..o $(245,417) $(615,476) $(1,367,986)
Basic and diluted net loss per share............... ... $ (79 $ (2.10) $ (4.93)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value based method for

all awards, net of related tax expense .............. (.04) (0.06) (0.10)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share......... $ (83) $§ (216) § {5.03)

Foreign Currency Translation

All assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange
rates in effect as of the end of the reporting period. The resulting translation adjustments are included in
stockholders’ equity as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated
statement of stockholders’ equity. Revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the reporting period.

With respect to transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
Company’s operations, transactional currency gains and losses are recorded through the consolidated
statement of operations.

Funeral Operations

Funeral revenue is recognized when funeral services are performed. The Company’s trade receivables
consist of amounts due for funeral services already performed. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been
provided based on historical experience. The Company sells price guaranteed prearranged funeral contracts
through various programs providing for future funeral services at prices prevailing when the agreements are
signed. Revenues associated with sales of prearranged funeral contracts, which include accumulated trust
earnings and increasing insurance benefits, are deferred until such time that the funeral services are performed
(see note four to the consolidated financial statements).

Cemetery Operations

Sales of atneed cemetery interment rights, merchandise and services are recognized when the service is
performed or merchandise delivered. Preneed cemetery interment right sales of constructed cemetery burial
property are not recognized until a minimum of 10% of the sales price has been collected. Revenues related to
the preneed sale of unconstructed cemetery burial property are deferred until such property is constructed and
the minimum percentage of the sales price has been collected. Further, the Company defers certain direct
selling costs associated with these sales which are expensed as revenue is recognized (see notes three and five
to the consolidated financial statements).

Costs related to the sales of interment rights are the accumulation of property costs and development
costs specifically identified by project. At the completion of the project, costs are charged to operations as
revenue is recognized. Costs related to sales of merchandise and services are based on actual costs incurred.
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Allowances for customer cancellations are provided at the date of sale based upon historical experience.
Pursuant to state law, all or a portion of the proceeds from cemetery merchandise or services sold on a preneed
basis may be required to be paid into trust funds. Merchandise and services funds trusted at December 31,
2002 and 2001 were $859,338 and $915,127, respectively. The Company defers realized investment earnings
related to these merchandise and services trusts until the associated merchandise is delivered or services are
performed.

A portion of the proceeds from the sale of cemetery property is required by state law to be paid into
perpetual care trust funds. Realized investment earnings from these trusts are recognized in current cemetery
revenues and are intended to defray cemetery maintenance costs, which are expensed as incurred. Perpetual
care funds trusted at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $564,277 and $543,893, respectively. The principal of
such perpetual care trust funds generally cannot be withdrawn by the Company and therefore is not included
in the consolidated balance sheet.

See note six to the consolidated financial statements regarding preneed cemetery activity.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are recognized in the consolidated balance sheet at their fair values. For
derivatives that qualify and are designated as hedges of future cash flows or net foreign investments, the
changes in fair values are recorded in Other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
stockholders equity. For derivatives that qualify and are designated as fair value hedges, the changes in fair
values are recorded in earnings, offset by the recognition of the changes in fair values of the underlying hedged
asset or liability. The changes in fair values of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting and the
ineffective portion of derivatives that do qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in earnings. The Company
had no outstanding derivatives at December 31, 2002.

Income Taxes

The Company calculates taxes on a consolidated basis. Deferred income taxes are computed using the
liability method and are provided on all temporary differences between the financial basis and the tax basis of
assets and liabilities. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets when
uncertainty regarding their realization exists. The Company intends to permanently reinvest the unremitted
earnings of certain of its foreign subsidiaries in those businesses outside the United States and, therefore, has
not provided for deferred federal income taxes on such unremitted foreign earnings.

Note Three
Accounting Changes and New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for business combinations and establishes the purchase method for
accounting for such transactions. SFAS No. 142 addresses accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets
and redefines useful lives, amortization periods and impairment of goodwill. Under the new pronouncement,
goodwill is no longer amortized, but is tested for impairment annually by assessing the fair value of reporting
units, generally one level below reportable segments. The Company identified North America, France,
Germany, Singapore and Argentina as reporting units for its funeral operations and North America,
Argentina, Chile and Uruguay as reporting units for its cemetery operations. In order to assess impairment of
goodwill, the Company determined the fair value of its reporting units based on a combination of present value
of expected future cash flows and multiples of revenues. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in the
first quarter of 2002, the Company recognized a charge reflected as a cumulative effect of accounting change
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of $135,560 (net of a tax benefit of $11,234) or $.46 per diluted share related to the impairment of goodwill in
its North America cemetery reporting unit.

The following table shows the historical results compared to unaudited pro forma effects of SFAS

No. 142 had goodwill not been amortized during that period.

2001 2000

Loss from continuing operations before extraordinary items and

cumulative effects of accounting changes....................... $(596,627) § (425,523)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of taxes .................... 47,455 52,842
Pro forma loss from continuing operations before extraordinary items

and cumulative effects of accounting changes................... $(549,172) $ (372,681)
Nt 108 .« oottt it i e e $(597,796) $(1,343,251)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of taxes .. .................. 47,455 53,360
Pro forma net 0SS . ..ottt $(550,341) $(1,289,891)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share before extraordinary items

and cumulative effects of accounting changes................... $ (2.09) $ (1.56)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of taxes .. .................. 17 .19
Pro forma basic and diluted loss per share before extraordinary items

and cumulative effects of accounting changes................... $  (1.92) § (1.37)
Basic and diluted net loss pershare ............................. $ (2.10) % (4.93)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of taxes . ................... .17 .19
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share .................... $  (193) § (4.74)

The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill for the Company’s segments are as follows:

Funeral Cemetery

Segment Segment Total
Balance as of December 31,2001 .................... $1,246,273 $ 163,036  $1,409,309
Impairment loss recorded upon adoption of SFAS

No. 142 — (146,794) (146,794)

Goodwill reduced related to disposition programs....... (68,078) (14,220) (82,298)
Effect of foreign currency and other.................. 4,076 (115) 3,961
Balance as of December 31, 2002.................... $1,182,271 $ 1907 $1,184,178

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS

No. 143 addresses obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated
asset retirement costs. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 143, the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation should be recognized in the period in which it is incurred, if a reasonable estimate can be
made. The associated costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset and are
allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS
No. 143 to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations, or
cash flows. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 143 during the first quarter of the year ending
December 31, 2003.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-

Lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144 supercedes SFAS No. 121, and addresses the impairment or disposal of long-
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lived assets. SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets to be held and used be written down to fair value
when it is concluded that the carrying value of such assets are not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow
basis. Assets to be disposed of by sale are required to be recorded at the lower of their carrying amounts or fair
value less estimated cost to sell. The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 during the first quarter of 2002 with no
impact on the results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145 eliminates the
requirement that gains and losses from the extinguishment of debt be aggregated and classified as
extraordinary items as well as certain other items. When the pronouncement is adopted, gains and losses from
early extinguishments of debt will be included in Gther income in the consolidated statement of operations.
The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 145 during the first quarter of 2003 as it relates to the
classification of extinguishments of debt for all periods presented. The other provisions of SFAS No. 145 are
generally effective for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 146 nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including
Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” The principal difference between this pronouncement and
Issue 94-3 is that the statement follows FASB Concepts Statement No. 6 in that a liability for a cost
associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized when the liability is incurred, not at the entity’s
commitment to an exit plan. The Company does not anticipate a significant impact on its results of operations,
financial position or cash flows as a result of adopting this pronouncement. The Company is required to adopt
SFAS No. 146 for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion” and specifies additional methods of transition for companies that adopt the fair value method of
accounting for stock options and amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123. The Company
adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148 for the year ended December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN No. 45), “Guarantor’s
Accounting Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others, an Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation
No. 34.” FIN 45 clarifies the disclosures required by a guarantor about its obligations and it requires grantors
to recognize a liability, at fair value at the time of issuance. The provisions for initial recognition and
measurement are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of periods that end after December 15, 2002.
The Company has disclosed the guarantees related to FIN No. 45 within note ten to the consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FIN No. 46), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities an Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51.” FIN No. 46
clarifies the application of ARB No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, to certain entities in which equity
investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at
risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties.
FIN No. 46 defines the terms related to variable interest entities and clarifies if such entities should be
consolidated. The Company is currently assessing the impact of FIN No. 46 on the Company’s results of
operations, financial position and cash flows.

In 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging
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Activities: An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” The change in the Company’s accounting policies
resulting from the implementation of SFAS 133 has been treated as a change in accounting principle effective
January 1, 2001. In accordance with these pronouncements, the Company recognized a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle, net of applicable taxes, of $7,601 or $.03 per diluted share. It was impractical
for the Company to obtain the amounts on a pro forma basis for the year ended December 31, 2000.

In September 2001, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on EITF
Issue 01-5 entitied “Application of FASB Statement No. 52 to an Investment Being Evaluated for
Impairment that Will Be Disposed Of.” This consensus requires the inclusion of accumulated foreign currency
translation amounts in the assessments of impairment of long-lived assets expected to be disposed of. Prior to
issuance of the consensus, related accumulated foreign currency translation amounts were included in results
of operations at the time of disposal. The Company applied this consensus in connection with impairment
assessments of assets to be disposed of performed after July 19, 2001, the effective date of the consensus. See
note sixteen to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion on impairment charges recorded in
2001 related to the Company’s foreign investments.

In 2000, the Company implemented SAB No. 101 “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements”
which changed the Company’s accounting policies regarding the manner in which the Company records
preneed sales activities. The implementation of SAB No. 101 had no effect on the consolidated cash flows of
the Company. As a result of the required change, the Company’s prearranged sales activities are affected as
follows:

» Preneed sales of cemetery interment rights (cemetery burial property) — revenue and all costs
associated with the sales of preneed cemetery interment rights are recognized in accordance with the
retail land sales provisions of SFAS No. 66 “Accounting for the Sales of Real Estate”. Under SFAS
No. 66, revenue and associated costs from constructed cemetery property are not recognized until a
minimum percentage (10%) of the sales price has been collected. Revenues related to the preneed sale
of unconstructed cemetery property are deferred until such property is constructed and meets the
criteria of SFAS No. 66 described above. Previously, the preneed interment rights revenue and
associated costs were recognized at the time the contract was signed with the customer.

» Prenced sales of cemetery merchandise (primarily markers and vaults) — revenue and all costs
associated with the sales of preneed cemetery merchandise are deferred until the merchandise is
delivered. Previously, the preneed cemetery merchandise revenue and associated costs were recognized
at the time the contract was signed with the customer.

» Preneed sales of cemetery services (primarily merchandise delivery and installation fees and burial
opening and closing fees) — revenue and all costs associated with the sales of preneed cemetery
services are deferred until the services are performed. Previously, the revenue and associated costs were
recognized at the time the contract was signed with the customer.

+ Prearranged funeral and preneed cemetery customer selling costs — costs incurred related to obtaining
new preneed cemetery and prearranged funeral business are accounted for under the provisions of
SFAS No. 60 “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises”. Under SFAS No. 60, obtaining
costs, which include only costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of new
preneed cemetery and prearranged funeral business, are deferred. As a result, the Company’s policy is
to defer only commission and related fringes of prearranged funeral and preneed cemetery business.
Previously, deferred selling costs for prearranged funeral business included variable and fixed direct
selling costs as well as direct marketing costs; and, selling costs for preneed cemetery business were
previously expensed as incurred.
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o Cemetery merchandise and services trust investment earnings — investment earnings generated by
assets included in merchandise and services trusts are deferred until the associated merchandise is
delivered or services performed. Previously, the trust earnings were recognized as earned in the trust.

The change in the Company’s accounting policies resulting from implementation of SAB No. 101 has
been treated as a change in accounting principle effective as of January 1, 2000. The cumulative effect of the
accounting change through December 31, 1999 resulted in a charge to net income of $909,315 (net of a
$552,491 tax benefit), or $3.34 per diluted share recorded on January 1, 2000.

Note Four
Prearranged Funeval Activities

The Company sells price guaranteed prearranged funeral contracts through various programs providing
for future funeral services at prices prevailing when the agreements are signed. Payments under these
contracts generally are used to pay premiums on life insurance or annuity contracts, or are placed into trust
accounts, pursuant to applicable law.

The balance in Prearranged funeral contracts represents amounts due from trust funds, customer
receivables or third party insurance companies related to unperformed, price guaranteed prearranged funeral
contracts. A corresponding credit is recorded to Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues.

Funeral revenue is recognized on prearranged funeral contracts at the time the funeral service is
performed. Trust earnings and increasing insurance benefits are accrued and deferred until the services are
performed, at which times these funds are also recognized in funeral revenues. Such amounts are intended to
cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service. Deferred selling costs
incurred pursuant to the sales of prearrangements are included in Deferred charges and other assets. These
selling costs, which include sales commissions and certain other direct costs that vary with and are primarily
related to the acquisition of new prearranged funeral business, are deferred and amortized over 12 years, a
period representing the estimated life of the prearranged funeral contracts. Previous to 2002, the amortization
period was 20 years, see note two to the consolidated financial statements. Deferred selling costs as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $92,741 and $99,245, respectively.

Prearranged Funeral Contracts

As previously mentioned, the balance in prearranged funeral contracts represents amounts due from trust
funds, customer receivables or third party insurance companies related to unperformed, price guaranteed
prearranged funeral contracts. The components of prearranged funeral contracts in the consolidated balance
sheet at December 31 are as follows:

2002 2001

Trusts:
Receivables due from trust assets ..............iiirinrnnn.. $ 983,357 $1,177,354
Receivables from customers .. ...t 220,541 271,645
Trust related assets . ....c.it it 1,203,898 1,448,999
Receivables from third party insurance companies ................. 3,442,170 3,027,696
Trust and insurance related assets . ......... ... .. 4,646,068 4,476,695
Allowance for cancellation ..............o. i, (372,278) (367,500)
Prearranged funeral contracts ..............covviviiiiiinn.... $4,273,790  $4,109,195




SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NOTES TO CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The allowance for cancellation is based on historical experience and is equivalent to approximately 8.7%
of the total balance at December 31, 2002 and 8.9% of prearranged funeral contracts at December 31, 2001.
Accumulated earnings from trust funds and increasing insurance benefits of third party insurance companies
have been included to the extent that they have been accrued through December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The cumulative trust funded total has been reduced by allowable cash withdrawals for trust
earnings and amounts retained by the Company pursuant to various state laws.

The activity in prearranged funeral contracts for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2002 2001
Beginning balance — Prearranged funeral contracts ................ $4,109,195  $4,080,367
Nt SAlES . .. 601,816 503,287
Acquisitions (dispositions) of businesses................... .. ... (293,888) (122,926)
Realized earnings and increasing insurance benefits for third party
INSUTANCE COMPAMIES . .. v vttt ettt et e 43,217 49,239
Maturities . ..o (370,336) (333,125)
Distributed €arnings. . ... ...t — (49,153)
Change in cancellation reserve .. ........oiii i, (4,778) (16,568}
Effect of foreign currency and other .......... ... ... ... ... ... 188,564 (1,926)
Ending balance — Prearranged funeral contracts ................... $4,273,790  $4,109,195

The cost and market value of the assets held in the trust funds underlying the Company’s prearranged
funeral contracts at December 31 are detailed below. The Company believes the unrealized losses related to
the assets held in trust funds are temporary in nature.

2002 2001
Cost Market Cost Market

Cash and cash equivalents . ............... $ 78,010 $ 78,010 § 84,601 $ 84,601
Fixed Income Securities:

US. Treasury . ...oovvvininiiieenn.. 88,017 91,979 45414 43,455

Foreign government .................... 54,954 56,000 208,408 211,772

Corporate . ...... ..ot 11,763 12,401 11,748 11,693

Mortgage-backed ............ .. ... ... 103,793 105,024 196,065 191,779

Asset-backed ........... ... ... ... 2,722 2,320 1,174 1,197

Municipal ....... ... oo — — 1,168 1,217

Other..... ... i, 452 458 749 724
Equity securities:

Preferred stock ........................ — — 214 214

Common stock . ..........coiiiiiiit. 473,257 413,488 440,146 439,174
Mutual funds:

Equity ...... .0 59,487 50,172 72,581 61,761

Fixed income .......... ... ... ... . ... 54,639 56,155 51,271 52,301
Private equity and other .................. 56,263 48,106 63,815 63,649
Prearranged funeral trust assets ............ $983,357 $914,613  $1,177,354  $1,163,537
Market value as of a percentage of cost ... .. 93.0% 98.8%
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Deferred Prearranged Funeral Contract Revenues

Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues represent the original contract price, trust earnings and
increasing insurance benefits on unperformed funeral contracts generally funded by trust or third party
insurance companies. The total amounts associated with unperformed prearranged funeral contracts consists
of contracts funded by trust, surety bonds in lieu of trust funds, or third party insurance.

The following table summarizes for the years ended December 31 the activity in deferred prearranged
funeral contract revenues:

2002 2001

Beginning balance — Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues $4,596,116  $4,537,669

Nt SaleS . oot e 647,119 543,785

Acquisitions (dispositions) of businesses........................ (361,005) (159,809)

Realized earnings and increasing insurance benefits from third party

INSUTANCE COMPANIES .« . vttt et ettt iee et it ie e 43,307 48,864

Maturities . . ...t (387,144) (357,105)

Change in cancellation reserve ........... ... ... (4,778) (16,568)

Effect of foreign currency and other ........................... 126,379 (720)
Ending balance — Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues . ... $4,659,994  $4,596,116

Note Five

Preneed Cemetery Activities

The Company sells price guaranteed prenced cemetery contracts providing for future merchandise,
services or property at prices prevailing when the agreements are signed. A portion of the payments under
these contracts may be required to be placed into trust accounts, pursuant to applicable law.,

Cemetery revenue is recognized on preneed cemetery contracts when the service is performed or
merchandise is delivered. The Company defers certain direct selling costs associated with preneed cemetery
sales which are deferred, and expenses such costs when the corresponding revenue is recognized. Deferred
selling costs related to preneed cemetery contracts of $213,086 and $213,414 as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively, were included in Deferred charges and other assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

Preneed Cemetery Contracts

The balance in preneed cemetery contracts are included in current and long-term receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet and the components at December 31 are as follows:

2002 2001

Receivables due from trust assets ..........cooiviiiiineennnnnn.. $ 859,338 § 915,127
Cemetery receivables due from customers ........................ 652,986 738,063
Less: Unearned finance charges . ......... ... ... cooivviiiaion.. (102,394) (112,254)

1,409,930 1,540,936
Less: Atneed receivables from customers ......................... (51,326) (56,364)

1,358,604 1,484,572
Less: Allowance for contract cancellations ...............covvventn (211,853) {209,540)

$1,146,751  $1,275,032
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The activity in preneed cemetery contracts for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2002 2001
Beginning balance — preneed cemetery contracts .................. $1,275,032  $1,396,139
Net sales . .o 317,062 402,383
Acquisitions (dispositions) of businesses........................ (18,194) (53,859)
Realized earnings (losses) ..., (30,798) 2,289
Distributed earnings and net cash receipts ...................... (238,214) (337,631)
Deliveries and maturities. ...... ... i (128,925) (143,459)
Change in cancellation reserve . ........ ... .ot (2,313) 13,336
Effect of foreign currency and other ........................... (26,899) (4,166)
Ending balance — preneed cemetery contracts. .................... $1,146,751  $1,275,032

Merchandise and Services Trusts

Amounts paid into cemetery merchandise and services trusts are included in Current and long-term
receivables, at cost, in the consolidated balance sheet. The cost and market values associated with the assets
held in the cemetery merchandise and services trust funds underlying these receivables at December 31 are
detailed below. The Company believes the unrealized losses related to the assets held in trust funds are
temporary in nature.

2002 2001
Cost Market Cost Market

Cash and cash equivalents ................... $ 85,526 $ 85,526 % 49,874 $ 49,874
Fixed Income Securities:

US. Treasury ... .ooovvii i 120,140 131,133 82,897 80,280

Foreign government . ...................... 11,096 11,096 10,579 10,646

Corporate ... 4,464 4,867 20,278 20,540

Mortgage-backed ........... ... ... 150,007 156,891 225,648 226,726

Asset-backed ........ ... . ... ... L 1,549 1,657 2,116 2,151

Municipal ....... .. 2,046 2,188 2,268 2,241

Other....... ..., 2,142 2,152 305 294
Equity securities:

Preferred stock .......... ... .. ... — -— 176 180

Common stock . .........ooviiiii i, 320,116 273,937 334,560 331,721
Mutual funds:

Equity ... 88,609 70,794 109,655 91,800

Fixedincome ............... ... ... ... .... 41,807 42,273 44,676 45,555
Private equity and other ..................... 31,836 26,702 32,095 29,291
Preneed cemetery merchandise and services trust

ASSELS .t e $859,338  $809,216  $915,127  $891,299
Market value as a percentage of cost .......... 94.2% 97.4%
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As a result of implementing SAB No, 101 (see note three to the consolidated financial statements), all
realized investment earnings related to these cemetery merchandise and services trust funds are deferred until
the associated merchandise is delivered or service is performed. Prior to 2000, the realized investment earnings
were recognized as earned in the trusts. The realized investment earnings recognized in the consolidated
statement of operations related to these cemetery merchandise and services trust funds were $24,734, $15,081,
and $19,947 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Deferred Preneed Cemetery Contract Revenues

The Company defers revenues associated with certain preneed cemetery sales activities until cemetery
burial property is constructed and meets the minimum down payment requirement (10%), merchandise is
delivered or services are performed. The activity in deferred preneed cemetery contract revenues for the years
ended December 31 is as follows:

2002 2001
Beginning balance — Deferred preneed cemetery contract revenues ... $1,756,041  $1,815,157
Nt SAlES . ot 302,691 324,640
Acquisitions (dispositions) of businesses.......................... (45,312) (82,467)
Realized earnings (losses) on merchandise and services trust funds . . . (30,291) 2,514
Deliveries and maturities. ... ...t (297,209) (288,897)
Change in cancellation T€Serve . .. ...ttt ie i 3,149 11,275
Effect of foreign currency and other ............................. 3,369 (4,019)
Non-cash adjustments . . ...ttt (19,777) (22,162)
Ending balance — Deferred preneed cemetery contract revenues . . ... $1,672,661  $1,756,041
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Perpetual Care Trusts

A portion of the proceeds from the sale of cemetery property is required by state law to be paid into
perpetual care trust funds. The principal of such perpetual care trust funds generally cannot be withdrawn by
the Company and therefore is not included in the consolidated balance sheet. The cost and market values
associated with the assets held in perpetual care trust funds at December 31 are detailed below.

Cash and cash equivalents

Fixed Income Securities:
US. Treasury ........ ... ..
Foreign government .......................
Corporate ...t
Mortgage-backed
Asset-backed

Equity securities:
Preferred stock . ............ ... .. ... ... ...
Common stock ...........................

Mutual funds:

Equity
Fixed income

Private equity and other

Perpetual care trust assets....................

Market value as a percentage of cost

2002 2001
Cost Market Cost Market
63932 $ 63,932 $ 30,826 § 30,826
64,473 67,226 29,588 29,829
20,978 21,726 14,993 16,644
57,488 60,470 70,102 71,174
94,996 98,359 133,472 133,226
18,052 19,588 14913 15,022
— — 33 32
2,731 3,295 4,933 4,495
13,906 12,632 3,096 3,143
25,428 23,717 32,308 34,475
29,311 28,470 32,440 32,528
142,086 136,281 146,990 141,789
30,896 35,563 30,199 34,374
$564,277  $571,259  $543,893  $547,557
101.2%

100.7%

Realized investment earnings from these perpetual care trust funds are recognized in current cemetery
revenues and are intended to defray cemetery maintenance costs, which are expensed as incurred. The realized
investment earnings related to these perpetual care trust funds were $26,611, $29,926, and $26,660 for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

Note Six

Income Taxes

The provision or benefit for income taxes includes United States federal income taxes, determined on a
consolidated return basis, foreign, state and local income taxes.

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary items and cumulative effects of
accounting changes for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

United States. . ...,
i) (= 14+ P
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2002 2001 2000
$(198,950) $(570,024) $(474,256)
57,987 34,596 (42,722)

$(140,963) $(535,428) $(516,978)
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Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations for the years ended December 31 consisted of
the following:

2002 2001 2000
Current:
United States. .. ....ovi i i $(127,426) $(25,432) $(149,465)
0 (= 1 1 (15,161) 9,935 12,436
Stateandlocal........ ... ... . (1,498) 4,001 535
(144,085)  (11,496)  (136,494)
Deferred:
United States. . ...t 84,904 66,287 47,923
Foreign . ... e 22,207 2,856 (13,717)
Stateandlocal.......... .. ... ... ... . .. ... . ... (2,766) 3,552 10,833
104,345 72,695 45,039
Total (benefit) provision .................cvvvunn. $ (39,740) $ 61,199 § (91,455)

The Company made income tax payments on continuing operations of approximately $8,920, $22,423,
and $56,007, excluding income tax refunds of $63,547, $122,522 and $35,032, for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. Income tax refunds include approximately $21,962 and
$116,300 related to losses on sales of investments and refunds of approximately $35,306 and $0 related to the
approval of a change in tax accounting method in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The differences between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and the Company’s effective tax rate
for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Computed tax (benefit) provision at the applicable federal
statutory income tax rate ..., $(49,337) $(187,400) $(180,942)
State and local taxes, net of federal income tax benefits . .. 3,252 4,909 7,389
Dividends received deduction and tax exempt interest. . ... (638) (1,668) (2,005)
Amortization of goodwill ............. ... ... . ... — 9,619 11,485
Foreign jurisdiction tax rate difference.................. (8,333) (16,173) (14,472)
Foreign net operating loss utilization ................... (9,895) — —
Write down of @SSetS ... oottt 28,554 111,984 92,155
Valuation allowance associated with assets held for sale . .. 5,683 143,646 —
Other ... e (9,026) (3,718) (5,065)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes ............... $(39,740) $ 61,199 $ (91,455)
Total effective tax rate . ... .. (28.2)% 11.4% (17.7%)

Deferred taxes are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets
and liabilities and are measured using the enacted marginal tax rates. The tax effects of temporary differences
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and carry-forwards that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31
consisted of the following:

2002 2001
Inventories and cemetery property, principally due to purchase
accounting adjustments ... ... $ 452,545 § 511,432
Property, plant and equipment, principally due to depreciation and to
purchase accounting adjustments .. ........ ...t 152,934 148,744
Other . . 194,993 142,009

Deferred tax liabilities .. ..........o o 800,472 802,185

Receivables, principally due to sales of cemetery interment rights and

related products . ... ..o e (65,872)  (181,243)
Deferred revenue on prearranged funeral and cemetery contracts,

principally due to earnings from trust funds ...................... (13,682)  (121,303)
Accrued liabilities ...... . . e (91,097) (48,363)
Loss and foreign tax credit carry-forwards ......................... (282,896)  (185,931)
Deferred tax assets. .. ..ot (453,547)  (536,840)
Valuation allowance . ... i 158,001 168,528

Net deferred INCOME taXES ..o ivi ittt e et e $ 504,926 § 433,873

Current refundable income taxes and current deferred tax assets are included in Other current assets,
long-term deferred tax assets are included in Deferred charges and other assets, with current taxes payable and
current deferred tax liabilities being reflected as Income taxes on the consolidated balance sheet. The
Company has a receivable recorded in Other current assets on the consolidated balance sheet of $92,445 at
December 31, 2002, which was subsequently received in February 2003.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, United States income taxes had not been provided on $73,852 and
$88,261, respectively, of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries since it is the Company’s intention not
to remit these earnings. The Company intends to permanently reinvest the unremitted earnings of certain of its
foreign subsidiaries in those businesses outside the United States and, therefore, has not provided for deferred
income taxes on such unremitted foreign earnings,

Various subsidiaries have international, federal and state operating loss carry-forwards of $1,365,145 with
expiration dates through 2022. The Company believes that some uncertainty exists with respect to future
realization of these loss carry-forwards, therefore a valuation allowance has been established for the carry-
forwards not expected to be realized. The valuation allowance is primarily attributable to the U.S. capital loss
recorded in connection with the financial statement writedown of assets held for sale.

The loss carry-forwards will expire as follows:

2003 . $ 11,277
2004 . o 5,111
2005 . e 23,342
2006 . o 44,032
2007 . PP 16,782
Thereaf e . o o e e e 1,264,601

TOtal Lot $1,365,145
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Note Seven
Debt
Debt as of December 31 was as follows:
2002 2001

Bank credit agreements . ... ...t $ — $ 29,061
8.72% amortizing notes due in 2002 . ......... ... .. ... — 4,653
6.3% notes due in 2003 ... ... e 84,801 251,284
7375% notes due in 2004 . ... ... ... 111,190 228,000
8375% notes due in 2004 ... .. ... ... .. 50,797 51,840
6.0% notes due in 2005 . .. ... ... ... 387,241 581,550
7.2% notes due in 2006 . . ... 150,000 150,000
6.875% notes due in 2007 .. ... ... ... 150,000 150,000
6.5% notes due in 2008 . . ... ... 200,000 200,000
6.75% convertible subordinated notes due in 2008, conversion price of

B6.92 e e 328,005 345,000
7.7% notes due in 2009 . . ... ... 199,000 200,000
7.7% notes due in 2009 .. ... .. e 172,183 —
6.95% amortizing notes due in 2010 .......... ... .. ... .. .. ... 42,106 45,929
7.875% debentures due in 2013 . ... ... ... 55,627 55,627
7.0% notes due in 2015 . ... e e 25 58,460
Convertible debentures, interest rates range from 4.75% to 5.5%, due

through 2013, conversion prices range from $12.55 to $50.00 ...... 39,531 46,031
Mortgage notes and other debt, maturities through 2050 ......... ... 76,733 181,520
Deferred loan costs and net hedging losses. ....................... (62,401) (44,342)
Total debt ... e e e 1,984,838 2,534,613
Less current maturities . ........oiiiniiinet e, (100,330) (220,640)

Total long-term debt ............. ... ... ... i $1,884,508  $2,313,973

The aggregate maturities of debt for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2002, are as follows:

2003 . o e e $ 100,330
2004 . L e e 185,582
20005 . e 419,085
2006 . . e e e 182,297
2007 o e e 166,599
2008 and thereafter .. ... o i 930,945
Total ...... U $1,984,838

Bank Credit Agreements

In July 2002, the Company executed a bank credit agreement for general corporate purposes that matures
in July 2005. The new credit facility provides a total commitment of $185,000, including a sublimit of
$125,000 to support letters of credit, and is secured by the stock, inventory and receivables of certain of the
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Company’s domestic subsidiaries. These same domestic subsidiaries have guaranteed the Company’s obliga-
tions associated with this facility. The bank credit agreement contains certain financial covenants, including a
minimum interest coverage ratio, a maximum leverage ratio and limits on capital expenditures. Additionally,
the Company is restricted from paying dividends and making other distributions. Interest rates for outstanding
borrowings are based on various indices as determined by the Company. The Company also pays a quarterly
fee on the unused commitment, ranging from 0.50% to 0.75%, which is based on the percentage of the facility
used and was 0.625% at December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2002, the Company had no borrowings and
$85,845 in letters of credit outstanding under the bank credit agreement related to insurance and surety
vendors.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had two primary bank credit agreements, which were used for
general corporate purposes: a 5-year multi-currency revolver and a 2-year term loan. The S-year multi-
currency revolver allowed for borrowings up to $400,000 at December 31, 2001, of which $285,714 could be
denominated in foreign currencies. No borrowings were outstanding under the 5-year revolver at either
December 31, 2001, or at its maturity in June 2002. The 2-year term loan had an outstanding balance of
$29,061 at December 31, 2001, which was repaid in February 2002. Interest rates for the multi-currency
revolver and the term loan were based on various indices as determined by the Company. The weighted
average rate of these borrowings at December 31, 2001 was 4.75%. A quarterly fee was paid on the total
commitment amount, ranging from 0.25% to 0.50%, which was based on the Company’s senior unsecured
credit rating and was 0.50% at December 31, 2001.

New Issuances and Exchanges of Debt

In September 2002, the Company issued $172,183 of unregistered 7.70% notes due 2009 in connection
with an exchange offering to holders of an equivalent principal amount of its existing 6.00% notes due 2005.
Ubpon settlement of the exchange offer, the Company paid approximately $11,480 in closing fees, incentive
payments and accrued interest. Subsequent to December 31, 2002, the Company exchanged substantially all
of the unregistered notes issued in September 2002 for an equivalent principal amount of registered
7.70% notes due 2009 with substantially identical terms.

In June 2001, the Company issued $345,000 of convertible subordinated notes. The notes are convertible
into common stock at an initial conversion price of $6.92 and have an interest rate of 6.75%. The notes are
callable after June 2004 and mature in June 2008. The proceeds from the convertible subordinated notes were
used to refinance the Company’s debt, including borrowings under the Company’s bank credit agreements.

Settlements and Extinguishments of Debt

Aside from the $172,183 of 6.00% notes due 2005 that were extinguished in the previously mentioned
exchange offering, the Company also purchased the following notes in the open market during the year ending
December 31, 2002: $2,850 of the 7.00% notes due 2015 (putable 2002); $166,483 of the 6.30% notes due
2003; $116,810 of the 7.375% notes due 2004; $1,043 of the 8.375% notes due 2004; $22,126 of the
6.00% notes due 2005; $16,995 of the notes due 2008; $1,000 of the 7.70% notes due 2009; and $15,618 of
mortgage notes and other debt. As a result of these transactions, the Company recognized extraordinary gains
on early extinguishments of debt totaling $4,903 (net of tax expense of $2,880). As of February 26, 2003, the
Company purchased the following bonds in the open market in 2003: $8,528 of the 6.30% notes due 2003;
$21,000 of the 6.00% notes due 2005; $1,200 of the 6.875%; $1,830 of the 7.70% notes due 2009; $7,997 of the
7.70% notes due 2009; and $25 of the 7.00% notes due 2015.

In May 2002, the Company’s French subsidiary satisfied $113,500 of debt associated with the financial
restructuring of the Company’s French subsidiary with non-cash French financial assets. At December 31,
2001, this debt was included in Current maturities of long-term debt and the assets were included in Other
current assets.
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On June 1, 2002, substantially all of the holders of the 7.00% notes due 2015 (putable 2002) presented
the notes for payment pursuant to the terms of the embedded put option. The Company paid the holders in
accordance with the terms of the agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company purchased $35,720 of the medium-term notes
due through 2019 and $127,580 of the 7.00% notes due 2015 (putable 2002) in the open market. In addition,
the Company exchanged 15,200 shares of its common stock for $48,716 of the 6.30% notes due 2020 (putable
2003); $22,000 of the 7.375% notes due 2004; $10,000 of the 6.00% notes due 2005; and $2,995 of other notes.
As a result of these transactions, the Company recognized extraordinary gains on early extinguishments of
debt totaling $4,731 (net of tax expense of $3,024).

Additional Debi Disclosures

The Company’s consolidated debt had a weighted average interest rate of 6.87% at December 31, 2002,
compared to 6.72% at December 31, 2001. Approximately 99% of the total debt had a fixed interest rate at
December 31, 2002 and 2001.

Cash interest payments for the three years ending December 31, 2002, were as follows:

200 $158,585
200 o 218,429
2000 .o 244,638

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, the Company had deposited $23,592 and $81,627 in
restricted interest-bearing accounts that were held as security for various credit instruments included in
Deferred charges and other assets in the consolidated balance sheet. In addition, the Company had assets of
approximately $40,845 and $27,051 pledged as collateral for the mortgage notes and other debt at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Included in mortgage notes and other debt, the Company had
capital lease obligations totaling $26,822 at December 31, 2002 primarily related to vehicles in the Company’s
international operations.

Note Eight
Derivatives

The Company occasionally participates in hedging activities using various derivative instruments
including interest rate and cross-currency swap agreements, and forward currency exchange contracts. These
instruments are used to hedge potential exposures in the interest rate and foreign exchange rate markets. The
Company has documented policies and procedures to monitor and control the use of derivative instruments
and only enters into transactions with a limited group of creditworthy financial institutions. The Company
generally does not engage in derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes, nor is it a party to
leveraged derivatives.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, in connection with the purchase of the 6.30% notes due 2020
(putable 2003), the Company terminated options embedded in the extinguished securities by exchanging
them for new options with economically equivalent terms. The initial liability of $16,213 was recorded with the
early extinguishment of debt in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and
subsequently the Company recognized a charge of $40,787 in Impairment losses and other operating expenses
in the consolidated statement of operations. In October 2002, the Company paid $57,000 in full settlement of
the options associated with the 6.30% notes due 2020 (putable 2003) hereafter presented as the 6.30% notes
due 2003.
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In 2001, the Company executed certain forward currency exchange contracts to hedge its net foreign
investments. At December 31, 2001 the outstanding hedges had notional values of £70,000 and €40,000,
equivalent to an aggregate notional value of approximately $130,761, and were recorded at a fair value of
$5,326 in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. During 2002, the
Company executed additional forward currency exchange contracts to hedge its foreign net investment with
notional value of €60,000, equivalent to an aggregate notional value of $37,901. The Company settled all
outstanding forward exchange contracts during 2002, with an aggregate payment of $11,836. A corresponding
entry was recorded in Foreign currency translation adjustment in the consolidated statement of stockholders’
equity for the amount of the payment.

In 2001, in conjunction with adopting SFAS No. 133, the Company reclassified $23,195 of net deferred
hedging losses related to interest rate losses incurred upon termination of the fair value hedges of the
Company’s debt. These deferred losses, previously recorded in Deferred charges and other assets, have been
reclassified to Long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized over the life of the
underlying bonds.

Note Nine
Credit Risk and Faiv Value of Financial Instruments

The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments has been determined using
available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and accounts payable approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of
these instruments. It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of receivables due on cemetery contracts or
prearranged funeral contracts (other than prearranged funeral trust funds and cemetery merchandise and
services trust funds; see notes four and five to the consolidated financial statements) without incurring
excessive costs because of the large number of individual contracts with varying terms. The carrying value of
other notes receivable approximates fair value as the Company regularly reviews the loans for impairment. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, other notes receivable included in Current and Long-term receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet was $138,985 and $154,715, respectively. The Company also had $9,615 and
$13,269 in outstanding undrawn commitments at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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The fair market value of the Company’s debt at December 31 was as follows:

2001
Bank credit agreements ... ..., ... e $ — $ 28,189
8.72% amortizing notes due in 2002 ....... .. ... ... il — 4,653
6.3% notes due in 2003 . ... .. 83,953 243,745
7.375% notes due in 2004 . . ... .. 110,773 214,320
8.375% notes due in 2004 . ... ... .. 50,797 49,248
6.0% notes due 1n 2005 . .. ot e 364,007 500,133
72% notes due in 2006 . ... ... .t e 142,500 132,000
6.875% notes due in 2007 . ... ... ... e 137,250 129,000
6.5% notes due in 2008 . ... ... 179,000 172,000
6.75% convertible subordinated notes due in 2008, conversion price of
86,92 302,995 346,725
7.7% notes due in 2009 .. ... ... 187,060 170,000
7.7% notes due in 2009 ... ... 161,852 —
6.95% amortizing notes due in 2010 . ........ ... ... .. ... . 39,087 38,581
7.875% debentures due in 2013 .. ... ... 49,578 44,502
7.0% notes due in 2015 ... ... .. ... 24 58,460
Convertible debentures, interest rates range from 4.75% to 5.5% due
through 2013, conversion prices range from $12.55 to $50.00 ...... 34,728 35,126
Mortgage notes and other debt, maturities through 2050 ............ 76,732 181,520
Total debt ..o $1,920,336  $2,352,202

The fair value of the fixed rate long-term borrowings and convertible securities was estimated by
discounting the future cash flows, including interest payments, using rates currently available for debt of
similar terms and maturity, based on the Company’s credit standing and other market factors. Mortgage notes
and other debt have been reported at face value because of the muititude and non-trading nature of these
notes.

The Company grants credit in the normal course of business, and the credit risk with respect to funeral,
cemetery and prearranged funeral and preneed cemetery receivables due from customers is generally
considered minimal because of the diversification of the customers served. Bad debts have not been significant
in relation to the volume of deferred revenues. Customer payments on prearranged funeral or preneed
cemetery contracts that are placed into state regulated trusts or are used to pay premiums on life insurance
contracts generally do not subject the Company to collection risk. Insurance funded contracts are subject to
supervision by state insurance departments and are protected in the majority of states by insurance guaranty
acts.

The Company’s cash deposits, some of which exceed insured limits, were distributed among various
regional and national banks in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates. In addition, the Company
regularly invests excess cash in financial instruments, which are not insured, such as commercial paper,
money-market funds, and Eurodollar time deposits that are offered by a variety of financial institutions and
corporations with high quality credit ratings. The Company believes that the associated credit risk of such
instruments is nct material.
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Note Ten
Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company’s leases principally relate to funeral home facilities, transportation equipment and two
aircraft. The majority of the Company’s operating leases contain options to (i) purchase the property at fair
value on the exercise date, (ii) purchase the property for a value determined at the inception of the leases, or
(iii) renew for the fair rental value at the end of the primary lease term. Rental expense for these leases was
$89,291, $92,895, and $94,629 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. In 2002,
the Company entered into certain capital leases primarily related to vehicles in its international operations. As
of December 31, 2002, future minimum lease payments for operating and capital leases exceeding one year are
as follows:

Operating Capital

2003 . o e $ 45939 § 6,930
2004 . . 39,388 6,455
2005 e e 31,323 7,165
2006 . e e e 18,994 4,609
2007 .+ e e e e e e e 13,045 2,249
2008 and thereafter .. ... ... i e 30,956 3,754
Subtotal. .. ... e 179,645 31,162
Less: Subleases................. e e e e (4,006) —
Total o e $175,639 31,162
Less: interest on capital 18ases ..........oviiiiiiitie i (4,340)
Total principal payable on capital leases . ................. i, $26,822

Purchase Commitments

The Company has a purchase agreement with a major casket manufacturer for its North American
operations with an original minimum commitment of $750,000 over a six-year period expiring at the end of
2004. During 2002, the Company made minimum purchases of approximately $87 million under this purchase
agreement. The agreement contains provisions for annual price adjustments. The agreement provides for a
one-year extension period to 2005 in which the Company is allowed to satisfy any remaining commitment that
exists at the end of the original term.

Management, Consultative and Non-Competition Agreements

The Company has entered into management, employment, consultative and non-competition agreements,
generally for five to ten years, with certain officers and employees of the Company and former owners of
businesses acquired. The Company has modified several of the above agreements as part of cost rationalization
programs (see note sixteen to the consolidated financial statements). During the years ended December 2002,
2001, and 2000, the Company recognized expense of $56,878, $70,758, and $75,141, respectively, related to
these agreements. The decrease in expense is a result of the cost rationalization programs recorded through
Impairment charges and other operating expenses. The Company has estimated the maximum future cash
commitment under these agreements; as a result, this commitment is not indicative of the future expense to be
recognized due to amounts recorded in Impairment charges and other operating expenses. At December 31,
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2002, the maximum estimated future cash commitment under agreements with remaining commitment terms
was as follows:

Contingent Purchase Obligations

In connection with certain acquisitions made with the Company’s South America operations, the
Company entered into contingent purchase obligations with certain former owners of those businesses. These
obligations require the Company to pay additional consideration if cumulative earnings thresholds, as defined
in such agreements, are met between 2003 and 2005. As of December 31, 2002, the contingent consideration
is estimated to be $40,000. This additional consideration may be paid partially in common stock at the
discretion of the former owners.

Representations and Warranties

The Company has contingent obligations of $30,329 related to the Company’s international asset sales
and joint venture transactions. In some cases, the Company has agreed to guarantee certain representations
and warranties with such disposition transactions with letters of credit or interest bearing cash investments.
The Company has interest bearing cash investments of $15,329 included in Deferred charges and other assets
collateralizing these contingent obligations. The Company does not believe it will ultimately be required to
fund to third parties any claims against these representations and warranties.

The Company enters into other representations and warranties associated with North American asset
sales that it does not believe are material in nature.

Litigation

The Company is a party to various litigation matters, investigations and proceedings. The Company
reserves for estimated losses relating to these contingencies if amounts can be reasonably estimated and are
probable to occur. The following discussion describes certain litigation and proceedings as of March 14, 2003.

In Re Service Corporation International;, Cause No. H-99-0280; In the United States District Court for
the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division (the Consolidated Lawsuit). The Consolidated Lawsuit was
filed in January 1999 and includes numerous separate lawsuits that were filed in various United States District
Courts in Texas. The Consolidated Lawsuit has been certified as a class action and names as defendants the
Company and three of the Company’s current or former executive officers or directors (the Individual
Defendants).

The Consolidated Lawsuit has been brought on behalf of all persons and entities who (i) acquired shares
of Company common stock in the merger of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company into Equity
Corporation International (ECI); (ii) purchased shares of Company common stock in the open market during
the period from July 17, 1998 through January 26, 1999 (the Class Period); (iii) purchased Company call
options in the open market during the Class Period; (iv) sold Company put options in the open market during
the Class Period; (v) held employee stock options in ECI that became options to purchase Company common
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stock pursuant to the merger; and (vi) held Company employee stock options to purchase Company common
stock under a stock plan during the Class Period. Excluded from the class definition categories are the
Individual Defendants, the members of their immediate families and all other persons who were directors or
executive officers of the Company or its affiliated entities at any time during the Class Period (with one
amendment by the Court to include James P. Hunter, III as a class member). Mr. Hunter was the Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer of ECI at the time of its merger with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The plaintiffs in the Consolidated Lawsuit allege that defendants violated federal securities laws by
making materially false and misleading statements and failing to disclose material information concerning the
Company’s prearranged funeral business. The Consolidated Lawsuit seeks to recover an unspecified amount of
monetary damages. Since the litigation is in its preliminary stages and no discovery has occurred, the
Company cannot quantify its ultimate liability, if any, for the payment of damages or predict the outcome of
the litigation. However, the Company believes that the allegations in the Consolidated Lawsuit do not provide
a basis for the recovery of damages because the Company made all required disclosures on a timely basis. The
Company intends to aggressively defend this lawsuit. At the Court’s direction, meetings were held in 2001
between the parties and their insurers to discuss possible resolution of the case, but no progress was made. A
Motion to Dismiss the Consolidated Lawsuit filed by the Company and the Individual Defendants is pending
before the Court.

Several other lawsuits have been filed against the Company, the Individual Defendants and other
defendants, including, in the second and third lawsuits listed below, the Company’s independent accountants,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, in Texas state courts by former ECI shareholders, officers and directors. These
lawsuits include the following matters:

No. 32548-99-11; James P. Hunter, III, et al. v. Service Corporation International, et al.; In the
District Court of Angelina County, Texas (“Hunter” matter);

No. 2000-63917, Jack T. Hammer v. Service Corporation International, et al.; In the 165th Judi-
cial District Court of Harris County, Texas (“Hammer” matter);

No. 33701-01-01; Jack D. Rottman v. Service Corporation International, et al.; In the District Court
of Angelina County, Texas (“Rottman” matter); and

No. 31820-99-2; Charles Fredrick, Individually, and as a Representative of the Class v. Service
Corp. International, In the District Court of Angelina County, Texas.

These lawsuits allege, among other things, violations of Texas securities law and statutory and common
law fraud, and seek unspecified compensatory and exemplary damages. Since these lawsuits are in their
preliminary stages and no discovery has occurred, the Company cannot quantify its ultimate liability, if any,
for the payment of damages or predict the outcome of these lawsuits. However, the Company believes the
allegations in these lawsuits, like those in the Consolidated Lawsuit, do not provide a basis for the recovery of
damages because all required disclosures were made on a timely basis. The Company intends to aggressively
defend this litigation. The Company is seeking arbitration in the Hunter, Hammer, and Rottman matters.

In the Hunter matter, the Texas state district court denied the motion to compel arbitration filed by the
Company and the Individual Defendants. On review by appeal, the Texas Supreme Court reversed the finding
of the Texas state district court and granted the motion to compel arbitration against Hunter and remanded
the issue of whether the Hunter Family Trust must also arbitrate. Cause No. 01-0650, In Re Service
Corporation International, et al, 85 S'W. 3d 171 (Tex. 2002). The Texas state trial court in Hunter has not
issued a further order on this matter. In the Hammer matter, the Texas state district court ordered the case to
arbitration.
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On November 5, 2002, Hunter and the Hunter Family Trust filed a demand for arbitration styled Case
No. 70 Y 168 00717 02; James P. Hunter, III and the James P. Hunter, III Family Trust v. Service

Corporation International, Robert L. Waltrip, L. William Heiligbrodt, and George R. Champagne, before the
American Arbitration Association in Houston, Texas. The Hunter plaintiffs’ arbitration demand also asserts
claims against the Company and the Individual Defendants with respect to the Company’s acquisition of ECL.
Hunter also individually asserts claims that he was instructed to resign as an officer of the Company several
months after the merger and suffered lost income as a result.

Since the arbitration is in its preliminary stages and no discovery has occurred, the Company and the
Individual Defendants cannot quantify their ultimate liability, if any, for the payment of damages or predict
the outcome of the arbitration. However, the Company and the Individual Defendants believe that the
allegations in the Hunter arbitration do not provide a basis for recovery of damages on several legal grounds.
The Company and the Individual Defendants intend to aggressively defend this arbitration action which is set
for hearing in June 2003.

Copies of certain pleadings in these cases are filed as exhibits to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Certain insurance policies held by the Company to cover potential director and officer liability may
reduce cash outflows with respect to an adverse outcome of the above lawsuits. If an adverse decision in these
matters exceeds the insurance coverage or if the insurance coverage is deemed not to apply to these matters,
an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

Thomas G. Conway et al v. Service Corporation International, et al; Cause No. CV-02-2818; In the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York, filed May 10, 2002 and Demand for
Arbitration, No. 13 168 02061 02, before the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) (“Conway”
action). The Conway action was filed against the Company and two former officers of the Company who were
also former officers of ECI, James P. Hunter III (“Hunter”) and Jack D. Rottman (“Rottman”). On
August 28, 2002, the Conway plaintiffs filed a Demand for Arbitration and Statement of Claim against the
Company, ECI and SCI Delaware Funeral Services, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company (“SCI Delaware”), in
New York City. The American Arbitration Association ruled that the arbitration would be conducted in
Houston, Texas. The Conway plaintiffs have indicated that they will refuse to recognize the transfer on the
grounds that it is improper to conduct the arbitration in Houston, Texas. The Company, ECI and SCI
Delaware have initiated an action in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas to
compel the Conway plaintiffs to arbitrate their claims in Houston, Texas.

The plaintiffs in the Conway action owned funeral homes in Queens County and Suffolk County, New
York, which were sold and merged into a subsidiary of ECI in January 1998. The plaintiffs are also included in
the definition of class members in the Consolidated Lawsuit described above. In the Conway action, plaintiffs
assert that ECI failed to disclose that ECI was negotiating the merger with the Company in breach of
covenants in the agreements between ECI and the plaintiffs. ECI purchased the plaintiffs’ funeral homes with
ECI stock and cash, and the Plaintiffs’ ECI stock was exchanged for stock in the Company in the merger of
January 1999. Plaintiffs allege damages from the loss in value of the Company’s stock from 1999 to the
present. The plaintiffs seek to recover compensatory damages alleged at a minimum of $8 million and punitive
damages alleged at a minimum of $14 million. The plaintiffs allege that SCI and SCI Delaware are liable as
the alleged “successor” entities to ECI.

Since the arbitration is in its preliminary stages and no discovery has occurred, the Company cannot
quantify the ultimate liability of the Company or its subsidiaries, if any, for the payment of damages or predict
the outcome of the litigation. However, the Company and its subsidiaries believe that the allegations in the
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Conway action do not provide a basis for recovery of damages on several legal grounds. The Company and its
subsidiaries intend to aggressively defend this lawsuit,

Shareholder Derivative Demand; The Company received a letter dated January 14, 2002, addressed to
the Board of Directors, from a law firm stating that it represented a shareholder of the Company. The letter
asserts a shareholder derivative demand that the Company take legal action against its directors and officers
based upon alleged conduct that is the subject of:

(1) a putative class action lawsuit filed on December 19, 2001, in Broward County, Florida against
the Company and one of its subsidiaries;

(2) a lawsuit filed against the Company by former employees of the Company in Atlanta,
Georgia; and

(3) certain events described in newspaper articles referred to in the plaintiffs’ consolidated
complaint in the Consolidated Lawsuit (described above).

The Board of Directors responded to the letter by forming a committee of certain independent directors
to conduct an inquiry into the allegations in the letter. The committee retained independent counsel to assist it
in its inquiry. The letter does not seek a specified amount of legal damages. Based on its investigation, the
Committee determined that a lawsuit or derivative proceeding against the directors or officers of SCI is not in
the best interest of SCI. The Committee reported its decision to the Executive Committee of the Board of
Directors on September 11, 2002.

Maurice Levie, Derivatively on behalf of Nominal Defendant, Service Corporation International v. R. L.
Waltrip, et al and Service Corporation International; No. 2002-42417; In the 164th Judicial District Court of
Harris County, Texas, Filed August 20, 2002 (*“Levie” action). The Levie action was filed against the
Company and the members of its Board of Directors individually as a result of the Shareholder Derivative
Demand of January 14, 2002, described above. In response to the filing of the lawsuit before the conclusion of
the Committee’s investigation, the Company and the individual directors filed an answer denying the
allegations in the lawsuit and a motion to dismiss.

Since the litigation is in its preliminary stages and no discovery has occurred, the Company cannot
quantify its ultimate liability or that of its individual directors, if any, for the payment of damages or predict
the outcome of the litigation. However, the Company and the individual directors believe that the allegations
in the Levie action do not provide a basis for recovery of damages on several legal grounds. The Company and
the individual directors intend to aggressively defend this lawsuit. The Company filed the motion to dismiss
the entire lawsuit against it and individual directors based on the results of the investigation and determination
of the Committee in response to the shareholder demand letter. This motion is currently pending before the
trial court.

Joan Light, Shirley Eisenbert and Carol Priscov. SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc. d/b/a Menorah
Gardens & Funeral Chapels, and Service Corporation International; Case No. 01-21376 CA 08; In the Circuit
Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida, General Jurisdiction Division (the
Consumer Lawsuit). The Consumer Lawsuit was filed December 19, 2001 and names the Company and a
subsidiary as defendants. It is a putative class action which has not been certified. A hearing on the Motion for
Class Certification has taken place but a ruling is not expected on what, if any, class might be certified until
April 2003 or later.

The Consumer Lawsuit has been brought on behalf of all persons with burial plots or family members
buried at Menorah Gardens & Funeral Chapels in Florida. Excluded from the class definition are persons
whose claims have been reduced to judgment or have been settled as of the date of class certification.
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The plaintiffs allege that defendants have failed to exercise reasonable care in handling remains by
secretly: (i) dumping remains in a wooded area; (ii) burying remains in locations other than the ones
purchased; (iii) crushing vaults to make room for other vaults; (iv) burying remains on top of the other or
head to foot rather than side-by-side; (v) moving remains; and (vi) co-mingling remains.

The plaintiffs in the Consumer Lawsuit allege that the above conduct constitutes negligence, tortious
interference with the handling of dead bodies, infliction of emotional distress, and violation of industry specific
state statutes, as well as the state’s Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act. The plaintiffs seek an
unspecified amount of compensatory and punitive damages. The Court has granted plaintiffs’ motion for leave
to amend their complaint to include punitive damages. Plaintiffs also seek equitable/injunctive relief in the
form of a permanent injunction requiring defendants to fund a court supervised program that provides for
monitoring and studying of the cemetery and any disturbed remains to insure their proper disposition.

On April 21, 2002, additional plaintiffs filed a lawsuit styled So! Guralnick, Linda Weiner, Joan Nix,
Gilda Schwartz, Paul Schwartz, Ann Ferrante, Steve Schwartz, Nancy Backlund, Jamie Osit, Corey King,
Marc King, Barbara Feinberg Clark v. SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc. d/b/a Menorah Gardens and
Funeral Chapels and Service Corporation International, In the Circuit Court in the 15th Judicial Circuit,
Palm Beach County, Florida; Case number CA024815AE (the Guralnick Lawsuit), making essentially the
same allegations as the Consumer Lawsuit with the exception that it does not contain class allegations.

Since the Consumer and Guralnick Lawsuits, and related discovery, are in preliminary stages, the
Company cannot quantify its ultimate liability, if any, for the payment of damages or predict the outcome of
the litigation. The Company intends to continue its investigation and to aggressively defend itself in the
litigation as well as continue to cooperate with state officials in resolving the issues presented.

In addition to the litigation described above, the Florida Attorney General and State Comptroller filed an
action against the Company on March 1, 2002 styled Office of the Attorney General, Department of Legal
Affairs, State of Florida and Office of the Comptroller, Department of Banking and Finance, State of
Florida v. Service Corporation International, a Texas Corporation and S.C.1. Funeral Services of Florida, Inc.,
a Florida Corporation doing business as Menorah Gardens & Funeral Chapels; Case No. CA 02-02666AG; In
the Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida (the AG Lawsuit).

The AG Lawsuit alleges similar claims as the Consumer Lawsuit including that defendants conducted
their business through the willful use of false and deceptive representations regarding: (i) the certainty of plot
location and size; (ii) the permanence of interment; and (iii) the nature and quality of the care that
defendants intended to provide.

The AG Lawsuit alleges that defendants violated Florida statutes by engaging in the above referenced
conduct. The AG Lawsuit seeks: (i) the appointment of a receiver or administrator to manage and correct the
operations of the defendants’ Florida Menorah Gardens facilities; (ii) a full accounting of all plots sold and
offered for sale by defendants at their Florida Menorah Gardens facilities; (iii) an award of unspecified actual
damages sustained by consumers; (iv) an award of unspecified punitive damages pursuant to Florida statute;
(v) imposition of civil penalties for each violation of the Florida statutes; (vi) an award of attorneys’ fees and
costs; and (vii) & permanent injunction against the defendants prohibiting them from (a) engaging in the
funeral and/or cemetery business at their Florida Menorah Gardens facilities; (b) using false or misleading
representations in their advertising and sales materials directed to the State of Florida; and (c) violating the
Florida statutes.

In connection with the allegations in the Consumer and AG Lawsuits, the Florida Department of Law
Enforcement caused a search warrant to be issued to investigate possible criminal activity. The Company is
continuing to fully cooperate in the investigation.
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As with the Consumer and Guralnick Lawsuits, since the AG Lawsuit litigation is in its preliminary
stages, the Company cannot quantify its ultimate liability, if any, for the payment of damages or predict the
outcome of the litigation. The Company has agreed to the appointment of an examiner who is charged with
overseeing the remapping and burial processes at the cemeteries. The Company has insurance policies which
are intended to limit the Company’s outflows in the event of a decision adverse to the Company in the
Consumer Lawsuit, the Guralnick Lawsuit and the AG Lawsuit. If an adverse decision in these matters
exceeds the Company’s insurance coverage or if the insurance coverage is deemed not to apply to these
matters, an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.

Note Eleven
Stockholders’ Equity

The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $1 per share par value. No shares
were issued as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, 500,000,000 common shares
of $1 par value were authorized and the Company had 297,010,237 and 292,153,765, respectively, shares
issued and outstanding, net of 2,516,396 and 2,502,190 shares held in treasury at par at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

The Board of Directors has adopted a preferred share purchase rights plan and has declared a dividend of
one preferred share purchase right for each share of common stock outstanding. The rights become exercisable
in the event of certain attempts to acquire 20% or more of the common stock of the Company and entitle the
rights holders to purchase certain securities of the Company or the acquiring company. The rights, which are
redeemable by the Company for $.01 per right, expire in July 2008 unless extended.

Stock Benefit Plans

The Company has benefit plans whereby shares of the Company’s common stock may be issued pursuant
to the exercise of stock options granted to officers and key employees. The Company’s Amended 1996
Incentive Plan reserves 24,000,000 shares of common stock for outstanding and future awards of stock options,
restricted stock and other stock based awards to officers and key employees of the Company. The Company’s
1996 Non-qualified Incentive Plan reserves 8,700,000 shares of common stock for outstanding and future
awards of nonqualified stock options to employees who are not officers of the Company.

The plans allow for options to be granted as either non-qualified or incentive stock options. The options
are granted with an exercise price equal to the then current market price of the Company’s common stock.
The options are generally exercisable at a rate of 33's% each year unless alternative vesting methods are
approved by the Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, 5,005,623 and 35,215,623 options were outstanding with alternative vesting methods. Under the
alternative vesting methods, partial or full accelerated vesting will occur when the price of Company common
stock reaches pre-determined prices. If the pre-determined stock prices are not met in the required time
period, the options will fully vest in periods ranging from eight to ten years from date of grant. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, 6,168,833 and 7,349,923 shares, respectively, were reserved for future option
grants under all stock option plans.
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The following tables set forth certain stock option information:

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Options
Outstanding at December 31, 1999..... ... .. ...t 19,893,110
Granted ... ... . e 7,288,650
Exercised . ... e —
Cancelled . ... oo (1,887,967)
Outstanding at December 31, 2000............ ... oonn... 25,293,793
Granted ... ... 9,083,100
Exercised . ... oo (136,414)
Cancelled . ... e (4,291,215)
Outstanding at December 31,2000 ................cvvvivnn... 29,949,264
Granted ... .. 5,699,100
EXercised ... i e (42,633)
Cancelled .. ... ... (5,604,481)
QOutstanding at December 31,2002............... ..ot 30,001,250
Exercisable at December 31,2000 .......... ... ... ... .. .. ... 12,262,434
Exercisable at December 31, 2001 ........ ... ... .. . . ... 12,824,879
Exercisable at December 31,2002 ........ ... ... i, 16,194,767

Options Qutstanding

$23.36
4.89

24.92

17.92
3.98
4.32

21.94

Options Exercisable

Number Number
Qutstanding at Weighted-Average Exercisable at
Range of December 31, Remaining Weighted-Average December 31, Weighted-Average

Exercise Price 2002 Contractual Life Exercise Price 2002 Exercise Price
$ 0.00- 4.00 8,184,200 5.8 $ 3.33 2,588,986 $ 3.30
4.00- 5.00 4,485,738 32 4.40 2,023,959 4.39
5.00-10.00 5,600,450 6.1 5.80 1,702,848 6.71
10.00-20.00 6,632,245 3.8 16.05 6,601,624 16.06
20.00-43.00 5,098,617 23 31.96 3,277,350 32.03
$ 0.00-43.00 30,001,250 4.4 ' $11.63 16,194,767 $14.81
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If the Company had elected to recognize compensation cost for its option plans based on the fair value at

the grant dates for awards under those plans, net loss and loss per share would have been changed for the years
ended December 31 to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2002 2001 2000

Nt 108S . . oot e $(231,880) $(597,796) $(1,343,251)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value based method for

all awards, net of related tax expense .............. (13,537) (17,680) (24,735)
Proformamnetloss ......... ... .. $(245,417) $(615,476) $(1,367,986)
Basic and diluted net loss per share.................. $ 79 $ (2.10) §$ (4.93)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value based method for

all awards, net of related tax expense .............. (.04) (0.06) (0.10)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share......... $ (.83) § (2.16) § (5.03)

The fair value of the Company’s stock options used to compute the pro forma net loss and loss per share
disclosures is determined by calculating the estimated present value at grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Assumptions 2002 2001 2000
Dividendyield ............ ... .. 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility . .............. ... .ot 66.3% 62.0% 57.2%
Risk-free interest rate . ............ ... ., 3.6% 5.1% 6.7%
Expected holding period . ...............oo it 6.1 years 7.1 years 7.0 years
Weighted average fair value.......................... $2.90 $2.68 $3.18

In 2001, the Company replaced its 1995 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors, which expired, with its 2001
Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors. Under this new plan, non-employee directors automatically receive
yearly awards of restricted stock through the year 2005. Each award will not exceed 15,000 shares of common
stock per director per year and vests after one year of service. In 2002 and 2001, each non-employee director
was awarded 10,000 shares of common stock. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, 100,000, 110,000 and 33,000 shares of restricted stock were awarded at fair values of $4.25, $5.86
and $4.03, respectively. Further in 2001, the Company voted to create a Director Fee Plan to allow for partial
payment of compensation to Non-Employee Directors through common stock. In 2002 and 2001, 45,108 and
36,784, respectively, shares of common stock was granted under the Director Fee Plan. Further 21,724 and
6,688 shares have been deferred by certain officers and reserved for future use under the Director Fee Plan in
accordance with the Plan agreement at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company’s components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31 are as
follows:

Foreign Currency  Unrealized Gain Minimum Pension Accumulated Other

Translation (Losses) on Liability Comprehensive
Adjustment Securities Adjustment Income (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 1999 .... $ (37,768) $(22,222) $ — $ (59,990)
Activityin 2000 .. ... ... ...... (202,709) (4,792) (12,724) (220,225)
Reclassification adjustment for
discontinued operations....... 16,044 _ 27,014 = __ 43,058
Balance at December 31, 2000 . ... (224,433) — (12,724) (237,157)
Activity in 2001 . .............. (76,403) — (16,629) (93,032)
Reclassification adjustment for
sold businesses . ............. 38,990 — — 38,990
Balance at December 31, 2001 . ... (261,846) — (29,353) (291,199)
Activity in 2002 .......... ... .. 43,776 — (7,202) 36,574
Reclassification adjustment for
sold businesses .............. 47479 = = 47,479
Balance at December 31, 2002 . ... $(170,591) $ — $(36,555) $(207,146)

Included in Foreign currency translation adjustment are net losses of $162,715 and an associated deferred
tax asset of $59,662 related to the Company’s international operations held for sale. Accordingly, if these sale
transactions are consummated, Foreign currency translation adjustment and Accumulated other comprehen-
sive loss will be reduced by this amount. The Minimum pension liability adjustment of $36,555 at
December 31, 2002 is net of deferred taxes of $23,146.

Note Twelve
Retivement Plans

The Company has a non-contributory, defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all United
States employees (US Pension Plan), a supplemental retirement plan for certain current and former key
employees (SERP), a supplemental retirement plan for officers and certain key employees (Senior SERP),
and a retirement plan for certain non-employee directors (Directors’ Plan). In 2000, the Company also
established a 401 (k) employee savings plan.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company curtailed its US Pension Plan, SERP, Senior SERP and
Directors’ Plan and recognized a curtailment loss of $3,572 in 2001.

Retirement benefits for the US Pension Plan are generally based on years of service and compensation.
This contribution is an actuarially determined amount consistent with the funding requirements of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, Assets of the pension plan consist primarily of bank
money market funds, fixed income investments and marketable equity securities. The marketable equity
securities include shares of Company common stock with a value of $4,394 and $6,603 at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Retirement benefits under the SERP are based on years of service and average monthly compensation,
reduced by benefits under the pension plan and Social Security. The Senior SERP provides retirement
benefits based on years of service and position. The Directors’ Plan provides for an annual benefit to directors
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following their retirement, based on a vesting schedule. The retirement benefits under the SERP, Senior
SERP and Directors’ Plan are an unfunded obligation of the Company; however, the Company purchased
various life insurance policies on the participants in these plans with the intent to use the proceeds or any cash
value buildup from such policies to assist in meeting, at least to the extent of such assets, the plans’ benefit
requirements.

Most foreign employees are covered by their respective foreign government mandated or defined
contribution plans which are adequately funded and are not considered significant to the financial condition or
results of operations of the Company. The plans’ liabilities and their related costs are computed in accordance
with the laws of the individual countries and appropriate actuarial practices.

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Service cost — benefits earned during the period ............ $ — § 5081 §$ 1591
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ................ 9,824 14,474 14,965
Return on plan assets ........ ... .. ot (8,539) (13,569) (13,688)
Curtailment charge .. ....... ... i — 3,572 —
Amortization of unrecognized transition asset............... — (418) (440)
Amortization of prior service cost.................. .00 .... 197 114 1,126
Recognized net loss (gain) ...t 4,834 2,826 (449)

$ 6316 $ 12,080 § 17,455

The plans’ funded status at December 31 were as follows (based on valuations as of September 30):

2002 2001

Change in Benefit Obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year ............ ... ... ... .. ..... $193,325  $198,977
S IVICE COSE. o\ttt ettt e e e — 5,081
Contributions paid by participants .......... ... ... i — 1,098
Interest COSt ..ot e e e e 9,824 14,474
Plan amendments. .. ... .ot — 1,802
Settlement/curtailment charge . ........... .. ... . i (13,325) (9,333)
Actuarial loSS . ... i e 3,642 7,136
Benefits paid .. ... ... e (6,683)  (24,891)
Effects of dispositions ...t e (43,941) —
Effect of foreign currency ... — (1,019)
Benefit obligation at end of year ......... .. ... ... oL, $142,842  $193,325

75




SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
NQOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~— (Continued)

2002 2001
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year......................... $147,075  $152,766
Actual return on plan @ssels . ... ... e (10,528)  (22,136)
Employer contributions . ........ ..ot e e 3,214 42,901
Contributions paid by participants ........ ... ... i i — 1,098
Settlement charge .......... ..t e (13,325) —
Benefits paid . . ... (7,299)  (26,242)
Effects of dispositions ............c.iiiiiiiin i (41,676) —
Effect of foreign currency . ...t e — (1,312)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year............. ... .. .. ... .. ... $ 77,461  $147,075
Funded status of plan ....... ... . i $(65,381) $(46,250)
Fourth quarter contributions . . ....... ... ... . it — 354
Unrecognized actuanial 0SS . ... 59,701 58,904
Unrecognized prior SErviCe COST . v v vvtvi vttt et i it ie e 1,357 2,163
Unrecognized net transition asset. ... ..ot — (1,253)
Effect of foreign currency . ... i e — 99
Net amount recognized . ...ttt e $ (4,323) $ 14,017
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:
Prepaid benefit cost .. ... i i e $ — § 8,146
Accrued benefit liability ........ ... ... .. (65,381)  (43,621)
Intangible asset. ... ...t e 1,357 1,554
Accumulated other comprehensive loss............ ... ... 59,701 47,938
Net amount recognized .. ... r it e $ (4,323) § 14,017
The plans’ weighted-average assumptions were as follows:

2002 2001
Discount rate used to determine obligations . ......................... 7.00% 6.97%
Assumed rate of compensation increase ............ ... i, 0.00% 3.50%
Assumed rate of return on plan assets. ...t 9.00% 8.43%

The 2001 balances included a defined benefit pension plan for the Company’s United Kingdom
operations (UK Plan). In 2002, the Company joint ventured the United Kingdom operations and as such,
retirement plans included in 2002 are for U.S. employees only. Discount rates for the U.S. plans were 7.00%
and 7.25% in 2002 and 2001, respectively, and 6.00% in 2001 for the UK Plan. The assumed rate of
compensation increase for the year ended December 31, 2001 refiects the assumptions for the UK Plan only as
all other plans subject to this disclosure were curtailed effective January 1, 2001.

The Company has an employee savings plan that qualifies under section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue
Code for the exclusive benefit of their United States employees. Under the plan, participating employees may
contribute a portion of their pretax and/or after tax income in accordance with specified guidelines up to a
maximum of 50%. The Company then matches a percentage of the employee contributions through
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contributions of the Company’s common stock. For 2002 and 2001, the Company match was based upon the
following:

Years of Vesting Service Percentage of Deferred Compensation
O-5years ... ...t 75% of the first 6% of deferred compensation
6-10years ... 110% of the first 6% of deferred compensation
11 OF MOTE YEATS ...\t veeeieeen e, 135% of the first 6% of deferred compensation

The amount of Company matched common stock contributions in 2002 and 2001 was $18,150 and
$12,635, respectively.

Note Thirteen
Segment Reporting

The Company’s operations are product based and geographically based, and the reportable operating
segments presented below include funeral and cemetery operations. The Company’s geographic segments
include North America, Europe and Other Foreign. The Company conducts funeral and cemetery operations
in its North America and Other foreign segments and conducts funeral operations in its European segment. In
the first quarter of 2002, the Company completed a joint venture of its United Kingdom operations (see note
sixteen to the consolidated financial statements), which conducted both funeral and cemetery operations in
this European segment.

In 2002, the Company began recognizing revenues associated with delivered caskets previously prear-
ranged on cemetery contracts as part of funeral operations. Previously, such casket revenue was recognized in
cemetery operations. The Company has reclassified the prior year operating results to conform to the current
period presentation with no effect on previously reported results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In addition in 2002, the Company changed its allocation methodology of overhead costs in North
America to be based on funeral and cemetery reporting unit revenues. The change in overhead allocation has
not impacted the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In 2000, the Company completed sales of its wholly owned insurance operations. As such, these
operations have been reclassified and reported as discontinued operations (see note seventeen to the
consolidated financial statements).

The Company’s reportable segment information is as follows:

. Reportable
Funeral Cemetery Segments

Revenues from external customers:

2002 L e $1,635,395  $637,028  $2,272,423

2000 . e 1,821,430 688,913 2,510,343

2000 .. 1,926,601 626,635 2,553,236
Depreciation and amortization:

2002 L e e e $ 75758 $ 18,076 $§ 93834

2000 . e 141,024 33,487 174,511

2000 .. 157,174 40,162 197,336
Gross profits:

2002 $ 279,568 § 84,347 § 363,915

2000 265,163 94,223 359,386

2000 L e e 274,728 50,619 325,347
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Reportable
Funeral Cemetery Segments
Total assets:
2002 . $6,980,500  $3,350,929  $10,331,429
200] .. e 7,123,855 4,007,642 11,131,497
2000 . .. e e 7,865,099 4,464,622 12,329,721
Capital expenditures:
2002 . e $ 69940 § 44271 § 114211
2000 .. 56,824 26,596 83,420
2000 . . e 40,660 43,943 84,603
Operating locations at year end (unaudited):
2002 . 2,526 507 3,033
2000 ..o e 3,210 541 3,751
2000 . .. e e 3,751 629 4,380

Subsequent to the sale of substantially all remaining loans held by the Company’s lending subsidiary,
results of operations from remaining loans are included in Other income in the consolidated statement of
operations and assets have been consolidated with corporate assets. The following table reconciles certain

reportable segment amounts to the Company’s corresponding consolidated amounts:

Reportable Lending
Segments Subsidiary Corporate Consolidated
Revenues from external customers:
2002 . $ 2,272,423  § — 3 —  $2,272,423
2001 ... 2,510,343 — — 2,510,343
2000 ... .. 2,553,236 11,494 — 2,564,730
Depreciation and amortization:
2002 .. $ 93834 § —  $34712 § 128,546
2001 ... 174,511 — 19,426 193,937
2000 ... e 197,336 — 26,695 224,031
Total assets:
2002 L. $10,331,429 $ —  $392,356  $10,723,785
2001 .. 11,131,497 — 448,440 11,579,937
2000 ... e 12,329,721 40,120 505,433 12,875,274
Capital expenditures(1):
2002 . $ 114,211 $ —  $12,924 $§ 127,135
2001 ... 83,420 — 2,574 85,994
2000 ..o e 84,603 — 13,192 97,795

(1) Consolidated capital expenditures include $27,090, $11,830, and $14,425 for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively, for capital leases and purchases of property, plant and
equipment, cemetery property, and goodwill of acquired businesses. The 2001 amount relates to assets
previously held by the Company’s lending subsidiary exchanged for collateral in bankruptcy proceedings.
The 2000 amount above related to the Company acquiring by deed in lieu of foreclosure the collateral
underlying certain loans from the Company’s lending subsidiary. Excluding these capital expenditures
related to acquired businesses the Company had consolidated capital expenditures of $100,045, $74,164,

and $83,370 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
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The following table reconciles gross profits from reportable segments shown above to the Company’s
consolidated income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary items:

2002 2001 2000

Gross profit from reportable segments ................. $ 363915 $ 359,386 $ 325,347

Lending subsidiary income from operations........... — — 2,295

General and administrative expenses ................ (89,752) (70,309) (79,932)

Impairment losses and other operating expenses....... (289,054)  (644,147) (517,776)
Operating 108s .. ...ttt (14,891)  (355,070)  (270,066)

Interest eXpense. . .. ...t (161,494)  (211,626)  (281,548)

Other income. . ......viiie e 19,021 15,044 17,455

Gains from dispositions .................... .. ..... 16,401 16,224 17,181
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes,

extraordinary items and cumulative effects of

accounting changes ..................oviiiiiiinn, $(140,963) $(535,428) $(516,978)

Although total amounts reported have not changed, the Company has made certain reclassifications
within geographic segments in order to more accurately reflect the results in all years with alignment of
current management objectives.

The Company’s geographic segment information was as follows:

North Other
America Europe Foreign Total

Revenues from external customers:

2002 . $1,741,382 § 496,409 $ 34632 $2,272,423

2001 .. 1,781,159 647,714 81,470 2,510,343

2000 ... 1,737,014 686,199 141,517 2,564,730
Depreciation and amortization

2002 . $ 119,060 $ 8943 § 543 $§ 128,546

2000 . 144,581 40,614 8,742 193,937

2000 ... 159,864 50,758 13,409 224,031
Operating income (loss):

2002 . $ (56,693) $ 50488 § (8,686) § (14,891)

2000 .o 209,247 (317,394)  (246,923) (355,070)

2000 ... (308,409) 19,823 18,520 (270,066)
Impairment and other operating expenses:

2002 L. $ 272,040 §$ 777§ 16,237 § 289,054

2000 o 17,657 370,232 256,258 644,147

2000 ... 496,336 20,424 1,016 517,776
Long-lived assets:

2002 .. $4,241,601 $§ 254,694 $ 42,343  $4,538,638

2000 ..o e 4,741,276 603,016 47,005 5,391,297

2000 ... 4,882,795 1,154,260 521,178 6,558,233
Operating locations at year end

(unaudited):

2002 . 1,866 1,143 24 3,033

2001 . 1,999 1,726 26 3,751

2000 .. 2,256 1,942 182 4,380
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Included in the North American figures above are the following United States amounts:

2002 2001 2000

Revenues from external customers. .................. $1,667,884  $1,701,574  $1,657,553
Operating income (loss) (1) ..........cooiiiiiiiin. (69,664) 187,282 (225,359)
Long-lived assets ............ ... . ity 4,122,815 4,618,405 4,648,778
Operating locations at year end (unaudited) .......... 1,714 1,842 2,092
Included in the European figures above are the following French amounts: '

2062 2001 2000
Revenues from external customers ....................... $473,643  $425,129  $415,615
Operating income (loss) (1) ..o, 46,797  (102,349) 5,235
Long-lived @8sets . . ...... .ot 265,415 202,141 344,369
Operating locations at year end (unaudited) ............... 1,125 1,139 1,169

(1) Operating income (loss) includes $270,866, $27,154, and $345,917 in impairment losses and other
operating expenses in the United States and $(63), $126,612, and $8,913 in France for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

During 2002 and 2001, the Company divested of certain North America and international funeral service
locations and cemeteries not considered part of its core operations. These divested operations do not qualify as
discontinued operations under SFAS No. 144 because either the divested operations were held for sale in
accordance with previous accounting pronouncements related to dispositions or they do not meet the criteria
as defined in SFAS No. 144, Summary operating results of the Company’s divested operations are as follows.

North America Europe
2002 2001 2002 2001
Revenues:
Funeral ... $22,485 $74,687 $14,284 $190,673
Cemetery. . oot 4,648 16,568 2,190 25,745

$27,133  $91,255 §$16,474 $216,418

Operating income (excluding impairment losses and
other operating expenses):

Funeral ... ... 0 $(1,393) $(4,271) §$ 3,358 § 22,682
Cemetery . .ottt 1,513 4,149 740 8,336

$ 120 $ (122) $ 4,098 S 31,018
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Other Foreign Total
2002 2001 2002 2001
Revenues:
Funeral ... ... .. $ —  $13,637 $36,769 $278,997
Cemetery. ... — 6,609 6,838 48,922

$ — 820,246 $43,607 $327,919

Operating income (excluding impairment losses and
other operating expenses):

Funeral ........... ... .. . . i § — $ (637) $ 1965 $ 17,774
Cemetery. ..ot e — 2,036 2,253 14,521

$ — $1,399 §4218 § 32,295

The net assets of the Company’s United Kingdom subsidiary (divested in the first quarter of 2002) were
as follows:

December 31, 2001

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ........ .. ... ... ... . .. . i $ 1,673
Receivables, net of allowances . ... ... . i 24,113
IVEntOmIES . .t e 7,845
Other . . e 14,124
Prearranged funeral contracts .. .......... o i i 229,859
Cemetery property, 8t COSt . ..o v v ittt i 245,018
Property, plant and equipment, net ........ ... . i 117,658
Deferred charges and otherassets .......... ... ... ... ... i, 3,956
Goodwill, met ... e e 35,276
Total ASSEES . . ot e 679,522
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ........... ... ... . ... L. 41,863
INCOmME taXeS ... vttt e e e 672
Deferred prearranged funeral contract revenues............. ... ....... 304,437
Deferred cemetery contract Tevenues .............c.uvirnenieenneinnnn. 32,358
Deferred income taxes. ... ... ..o e 22,437
Other labilities .. ... ... i e 40,915
Total lHabilities ... ..o i 442,682
BN B Ty - $236,840
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Note Fourteen
Supplementary Information

The detail of certain balance sheet accounts was as follows:
December 31,

2002 2001
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash $ 35338 § 21,791
Commercial paper and temporary investments................... 165,287 7,501

$ 200,625 $§ 29,292

Receivables and allowances:

Current:
Trade accounts ........ ... e $ 149968 $§ 209,471
Cemetery contracts and trusted cemetery merchandise and
SeTVICES SAlES . i i i e 204,497 246,087
Loans and other notes receivable . .. ............ ... ... ...... 12,717 24,771
367,182 480,329
Less:
Allowance for contract cancellations and doubtful accounts...... 43,920 61,683
Unearned finance charges .. ...t ... 31,497 32,167
75,417 93,850
$ 291,765 $ 386,479
Long-term:
Cemetery CONIACTS . ..o vt ettt ii ettt e e ie e $ 453,375 $ 506,045
Trusted cemetery merchandise and services sales .............. 854,452 901,058
Loans and other notes receivable . ........................... 126,268 129,944
1,434,095 1,537,047
Less:
Allowance for contract cancellations and doubtful accounts. .. ... 206,740 207,468
Unearned finance charges .. ... ... ..ottt 70,897 80,087

277,637 287,555
$1,156,458  $1,249,492

Interest rates on cemetery contracts and loans and other notes receivable range from 3.5% to 14.5% at
December 31, 2002 and 2001. Included in Loans and other notes receivable in the consolidated balance sheet
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is $1,808 and $354 of notes with officers, employees and former employees of the Company, and $4,638 and
$4,712 of notes with other related parties at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

December 31,

2002 2001
Inventories:
Developed land, lawn crypts and mausoleums ................... $ 43297 § 51,882
Caskets, vaults, urns, markers and bases........................ 92,232 117,093

$ 135529 § 168,975

Cemetery property:
Undeveloped land. ...... ... . . i $1,308,182  $1,671,953
Developed land, lawn crypts and mausoleums ................... 259,402 252,820

$1,567,584  $1,924,773

Property, plant and equipment:

Land .. $ 252,769 § 299,169
Buildings and improvements . ............. ... .. e 1,170,342 1,192,755
Operating equipment .. ... ...ttt 373,294 430,020
Leasehold improvements . . ....... ... ... i 23,412 53,660

1,819,817 1,975,604
Less: accumulated depreciation ........... ... ... .. ... (631,477) (618,194)

$1,188,340  $1,357,410

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

Trade payables .. ... $ 56,387 $§ 78852
Payroll ... 91,836 92,670
Interest L. 21,427 40,753
Insurance. . ..o e e 44,089 50,419
Bank overdraft accrual ...... ... .. .. ... 16,349 26,010
Employee termination costs and costs to exit activities............ 28,179 71,916
Property, sales and use tax payables ............. ... oot 29,516 30,551
Ot . oo 74,127 92,979

$ 361,910 § 484,150
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Non-Cash Transactions
Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2800

Common stock issued under restricted stock plans.......... $ 425 $§ 645 § 133
Minimum liability under retirement plans ................. (7,202) (16,629)  (12,724)
Debenture conversions to common stock .................. — 5,528 —
Debt extinguished using common stock . .................. — 81,221 —
Common stock issued in acquisitions ..................... — —_ 247
Common stock contributions to employee 401(k) .......... 18,150 12,635 812
Common stock contributions to cash balance plan.......... — 6,500 —
Debt extinguished using non-cash French assets............ 113,500 — —
Capital leases. ...t i 26,822 — —
Debt exchange 6.00% notes due 2005 for 7.70% notes due

2000 o e 172,183 — —

Note Fifteen
Earnings Per Share

The basic and diluted per share amounts were the same in all periods presented because the Company
reported a loss from continuing operations before extraordinary items and cumulative effects of accounting
changes for the three years ended December 31, 2002,

2002 2001 2000
{In thousands, except per share amounts)

Loss (numerator):

Loss before extraordinary items and cumulative effects
of accounting changes — basic ................... $(101,223) $(596,627) $(425,523)

After tax interest on convertible debentures .......... —_ — —

Loss before extraordinary items and cumulative effects

of accounting changes — diluted.................. $(101,223) $(596,627) $(425,523)
Shares (denominator):

Shares — basiC ... 294,533 285,127 272,172
Stock options . ... — — _ 23
Convertible debentures . .. ..................... — — 349

Shares — diluted . ................... e 294,533 285,127 272,544

Loss income per share before extraordinary items and
cumulative effects of accounting changes:

Basic . .t e $ (034) $ (209) $§ (L.56)

Dituted .............. ... ... P (0.34) (2.09) (1.56)
Net loss per share:

BaSIC . $ (79 $ (210) § (4.93)

Diluted .. ..ot e (.79) (2.10) (4.93)

The computation of diluted earnings per share excludes outstanding stock options and convertible
debentures because the inclusion of such options and debentures would be antidilutive in the periods
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presented. Total options and convertible debentures that could impact dilutive earnings per share are as
follows:

2002 2001 2000
Antidilutive options ($2.26 to $42.53) .......... ... .. 30,001 29,949 25294
Antidilutive convertible debentures ($6.92 to $50.00) ............. 51,408 51,763 2,066
Total common stock equivalents excluded from computation . .. .. 81,409 81,712 27,360

Note Sixteen
Impairment Losses and Other Operating Expenses

The Company has recorded Impairment losses and other operating expenses, previously disclosed as
restructuring and non-recurring charges, in 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999. The Company continues to adjust the
estimates of certain items included in the original charges, as better estimates become available or actual
divestitures occur.

At December 31, 2002, approximately $80,193 of the remaining total restructuring charge balance relates
to severance costs and contractual obligations, the majority of which will be paid by 2012. Further, of the
$80,193 remaining reserves, $28,179 is included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consoli-
dated balance sheet based on the expected timing of payment.

The activity related to impairment losses and other operating expenses was as follows:

2002 Activity

Utilization for Twelve
Months Ended

Balance at Additions or Balance at
Original December 31,  Adjustments December 31, 2002 December 31,
Charge Amount 2001 During 2002 Cash Non-cash 2002
First Quarter 1999 '
Charge.............. $ 89,884 $ 2,743 $ — $1326 % 853 $ 564
Fourth Quarter 1999
Charge.............. 272,544 67,517 (1,418) 7,308 10,537 48,254
2000 Charges .......... 434,415 19,011 (23,490) 175 (4,654) —
2001 Charges .......... 663,548 15,959 20,983 1,682 31,875 3,385
2002 Charges .......... 292,979 — 292,979 2,315 262,674 27,990

$1,753,370 $105,230 $289,054  $12,806  $301,285 $80,193

The Company’s 2002 charges of $292,979 relate primarily to $158,481 for certain funeral and cemetery
operations being held for sale, $40,787 for adjusting to market value certain options associated with the
Company’s Senior notes due 2003, $39,327 from relieving certain individuals from their consulting and/or
covenant-not-to-compete contractual obligations, $18,701 to reduce the value of equity investments in North
America companies, $12,902 of severance costs for former employees and $22,781 as disposal losses of long-
lived assets. The Company also recorded a reduction in Impairment losses and other operating expenses of
$3,925 as changes in estimates of charges previously recorded in 2001, 2000 and 1999, of which $16,237 was
related to additional estimated reductions in the value of the Company’s Argentina business due to continued
economic decline, offset by $20,162 primarily related to reductions in estimates as a result of evaluating
properties held for sale. The Company reviewed properties held for sale under previously recorded charges and
in accordance with new accounting pronouncement SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
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Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company transferred certain locations no longer being actively marketed
to held and used. As a resuli, the Company recorded a reduction to its 2000 charges.

The $158,481 for certain funeral and cemetery operations being held for sale in North America represents
80 funeral service locations, 38 cemeteries and 22 businesses being sold for their real estate values. The
$39,327 related to relieving 248 individuals from their consulting and/or covenant-not-to-compete contractual
obligations under such agreements. Individuals will continue to be paid by the Company pursuant to such
contractual terms, the majority of which will be paid by 2012. The severance charges relate to 411 employees
involuntarily terminated in North America related to sales and administrative positions. Also included were
severance charges for three executive officers. The remaining 2002 reserve is primarily related to the severance
and terminated consulting and/or covenant-not-to-compete contractual obligations.

2001 Activity

Utilization for Twelve
Meonths Ended

Balance at Additions or Balance at
Original December 31, Adjustments December 31, 2001 December 31,
Charge Amount 2060 During 2001 Cash Non-cash 2001

First Quarter 1999

Charge ......... $ 89,884 $ 6,210 $ — $ 198 § 1,481 $ 2,743
Fourth Quarter

1999 Charge . ... 272,544 86,959 — 19,694 (252) 67,517
2000 Charges ..... 434,415 — (19,401) — (38,412) 19,011
2001 Charges ..... 663,548 — 663,548 1,114 646,475 15,959
$1,460,391 $93,169 $644,147 $22,794  $609,292 $105,230

The Company’s 2001 charges relate primarily to impairment charges associated with international
businesses sold or held for sale. The total charge recorded in 2001 of $663,548 consists of $51,780 related to
the joint venture of the Company’s Australia operations; $26,519 related to the sales of the Company’s
operations in the Netherlands, Norway and Belgium; $573,394 related to the planned joint venture or
disposition of its remaining investments outside the United States; and $11,855 of severance and asset write
downs related to on-going cost rationalization programs.

In the first quarter of 2002, the Company joint ventured its United Kingdom operations, receiving pretax
proceeds of approximately $273,000 (which included approximately $9,000 in retained cash) and securities
with a face value of $21,600, which includes a 20% equity interest in the United Kingdom operations and a
12% subordinated note.

In 2001, the Company joint ventured its Australia operations and received net pretax proceeds of
approximately $148,807 and securities with a face value of $24,400, which includes a 20% equity interest in
the Australia operations and a 12% subordinated convertible note. Also included in this charge, the Company
recognized $38,781 of the cumulative foreign currency translation effect into earnings, previously included as a
separate component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.

In August 2001, the Company sold 85% of its operations in Spain and Portugal. In connection with this
transaction, the Company received net pretax proceeds of $101,082 and recorded a gain of $2,062 which is
included in Gains from dispositions in the consolidated statement of operations. Included in the gain, the
Company recognized $209 of the cumulative foreign currency effect into earnings, previously included as a
separate component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.

The $573,394 write down in 2001 related to assets held for sale in the Company’s international
jurisdictions. As part of computing the write down, the Company included a loss of $189,613 related to the
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cumulative foreign currency translation effect included in accumulated other comprehensive income. Re-
flected in the cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment at December 31, 2002 is a remaining loss of
$162,715 related to assets held for sale. This amount will be removed from accumulated other comprehensive
income when the asset sales are completed. See note three to the consolidated financial statements regarding
accounting changes and note eleven to the consolidated financial statements regarding Other comprehensive
losses.

The original charge consisted of the following:
2001 Charge Number of Locations

United Kingdom ........ ... ... i i $218,153 525
France. .. ... o 126,734 1,139
South America. .. ... 193,856 22
Other Foreign ....... ..ot i e 34,651 66

$573,394 1,752

The $11,855 consists of $7,597 for severance costs related to the termination of 123 employees in North
America and 63 employees in Argentina. Nineteen individuals under employment, consultant and/or
covenants-not-to-compete contractual agreements have been relieved from their obligations or restrictions
under such agreements. Individuals will continue to be paid by the Company pursuant to such contractual
terms, the majority of which will be paid by 2005. The remaining $4,258 related to assets impaired as a result
of changes in the Company’s technology strategy and termination of lease obligations related to facility
closures.

In 2001, the Company has recognized $19,401 as a reduction from changes in estimates of previously
recorded charges of certain divested North American funeral homes and cemeteries and its equity investment
in a Canadian funeral home and cemetery company. These changes in estimates are the result of better than
anticipated market values as these previously impaired properties have been sold. The Company will continue
to make adjustments as actual divestitures are consummated or better estimates become available. The
Company received pretax proceeds of $35,799 related to the sale of its equity investment in the Canadian
funeral home and cemetery company.

The 2000 Charges totaled $491,119 related to the planned divestitures as a result of a North American
facility review and the reduction of the carrying value of an equity investment in North America. Of the total
2000 Charges, $351,159 of charges related to the planned divestitures of 230 funeral service locations
anticipated to be sold as funeral businesses, 174 funeral service locations anticipated to be sold as real estate
and 105 cemeteries and $139,960 of charges to reduce the carrying value of equity investments.

In 2000, the Company also recognized $26,657 related to changes in estimates for certain items originally
included in the Fourth Quarter 1999 Charge. The changes primarily related to increasing the provision for
asset impairment by $27,989 to further write down to estimated fair value loans made by the Company’s
lending subsidiary; $12,000 to write down to fair value assets held in the Company’s European operations;
offset by reductions of $8,969 for assets previously written down to their fair value, which were no longer being
held for sale; and $4,363 in previously estimated severance costs in the Company’s international operations.

The First Quarter 1999 Charge totaled $89,884 relating to a cost rationalization program initiated in 1999
and consisted of the following: (1) severance costs of $56,757; (2) a charge of $19,123 of which $2,153 related
to terminated projects representing costs associated with certain construction projects that have been
cancelled and $16,970 related to costs associated with acquisition due diligence which will no longer be
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pursued; (3) a $7,245 charge for business and facility closures, primarily in the Company’s European
operations; and (4) a remaining charge of $6,759 consisting of various other cost initiatives.

The $56,757 for severance costs is related to the termination of five executive contractual relationships
and the involuntary termination of approximately 100 employees in North America (of which approximately
20 were located in the corporate office), 600 employees in France, 85 employees in other European operations
and 10 employees in other foreign operations. The positions terminated were both operational and administra-
tive in nature. The severance costs related to the executive contractual relationships will be paid out according
to the terms of the respective agreements and will extend through 2005.

The Fourth Quarter 1999 Charge totaled $272,544 relating to additional cost rationalization programs, as
well as initiatives required to enhance cash flow and reduce debt. The Fourth Quarter 1999 Charge consisted
of the following: (1) severance costs of $150,675; (2) asset impairment of $73,728 associated with assets held
for sale which were written down to estimated fair value; (3) asset impairment of $18,245 associated with
loans made by the Company’s lending subsidiary held for sale which were written down to estimated fair
value; (4) $12,719 of informational technology costs associated with projects that will no longer be pursued by
the Company; (5) $6,554 of costs to terminate certain lease obligations related to facility closures; and
(6) $10,623 of various other items.

The $150,675 of severance costs is related to the involuntary termination of 1,141 employees of the
Company. Included in this total are 715 employees in the Company’s international operations, 385 employees
in North America, 33 employees in the Company’s corporate home office and 8 executive officers of the
Company. Of the 715 employees in the Company’s international operations, 290 are additional involuntary
terminations in France pursuant to the Company’s First Quarter Charge. In the North America total, 316
individuals were former owners of independent funeral homes and cemeteries that were purchased by the
Company and represent approximately $92,180 of the $150,675 of severance costs. These individuals were
under employment, consultant and/or covenant-not-to-compete contractual agreements and have been
relieved from their obligations or restrictions under their agreements. Such individuals will continue to be paid
by the Company pursuant to such contractual terms, the majority of which will be paid by 2007. The other
positions terminated were both operational and administrative in nature and the severance costs are expected
to be paid out through 2001. The severance costs associated with the executive officers will be paid in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements and will extend through 2005.

The $73,728 of charges related to assets held for sale consists of approximately $59,6355 in the Company’s
North American operations, approximately $11,645 in the Company’s international operations and approxi-
mately $2,428 of corporate assets. The $59,655 of charges in North America include approximately 50 funeral
homes or cemeteries and approximately 45 individual parcels of undeveloped cemetery property or excess land
that are held for sale and being reduced to their estimated fair values. The Company believes it is a prudent
strategy to hold these underperforming assets for sale and redeploy the proceeds from such sales to reduce
debt.

Note Seventeen
Discontinued Operations

In the third quarter of 2000, the Company completed the sales of its wholly owned insurance operations,
Auxia and American Memorial Life Insurance Company (AMLIC). The financial statements have been
reclassified to reflect these operations as discontinued. The operating results for Auxia have been included
through August 31, 2000 and the operating results for AMLIC have been included through September 30,
2000, the dates of dispositions of the respective companies. In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company
recognized the partial release of a contingent liability associated with the sale of its insurance operations in
income from discontinued operations.
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Summary operating results of discontinued operations:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2001 2000
REVEIUES . .ottt e $ — $ 295062
Cost and EXPENSES . .\ vttt ettt e 2,637 (275,172)
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes............... 2,637 19,890
Provision for income taxes ...........c. ..ot e (936) (6,543)
Income from discontinued operations ............ ... ... .. oL $1,701 § 13,347
Note Eighteen
Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
First Second Third Fourth Year

Revenues:

2002 ... $585,758 § 566,328 $543,808 $ 576,529 $2,272,423

2001 ... .. 677,776 618,711 582,979 630,877 2,510,343
Gross profit:

2002. ... $119,164 $ 91,273 $ 75409 § 78,069 $ 363,915

2000 ... 110,888 86,570 67,019 94,909 359,386
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before extraordinary

items and cumulative effects of

accounting changes:

2002 ... $ 46,168 $(140,160) $ (844) $ (6,387) $ (101,223)

2001 ... 3,319 (10,656) 4,182  (593,472) (596,627)
Net income (loss):

2002 ... $(88,711) $(143,015) $ 4,061 $ (4,215) §(231,880)

200 ... 265 (10,585) 4,281 (591,757) (597,796)
Basic earnings (loss) per share from

continuing operations before

extraordinary items and cumulative

effects of accounting changes:

2002 ... $ 16§ (48) $ (.00) $ (.02) $ (.34)

2000 ... .01 (.04) 02 (2.03) (2.09)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

from continuing operations before

extraordinary items and cumulative

effects of accounting changes:

2002, .. $ A5 § (48) 3 (.00) $ (.02) $ (.34)

2000 ... 01 (.04) 02 (2.03) (2.09)
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Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary items and cumulative effects of account-
ing changes includes the following impairment losses and other operating expenses and changes in estimates:

First Second Third Fourth Year

Impairment losses and other

operating expenses:

2002 . $ (4,894) $(231,674) $(27,942) § (24,544) § (289,054)

2000 ... (25,023)  (26,223)  (6,185) (586,716) (644,147)
Changes in estimates:

2002 . $ 3,800 $ 2200 $ 8,800 $§ 3,500 $ 18,300

2001 ... 10,140 10,894 23,033 14,826 58,893

For a more detailed discussion of impairment losses and other operating expenses, see note sixteen to the
consolidated financial statements. For a more detailed discussion of the changes in estimates, see note two to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SCHEDULE I — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Three Years Ended December 31, 2002

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance
Beginning Costs and Other at End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts(2) Deductions (1) Period

(In thousands)
Current —

Allowance for contract cancellations
and doubtful accounts:

Year ended December 31, 2002... .. $61,683 § 2,711 $ 93) $(20,381) $ 43,920
Year ended December 31, 2001 .. ... 64,852 19,976 (4,150) (18,995) 61,683
Year ended December 31, 2000..... 77,080 20,005 (18,558) (13,675) 64,852

Due After One Year —

Allowance for contract cancellations
and doubtful accounts:

Year ended December 31, 2002. .. .. $207468 $ 9,648 § (8,179) $ (2,197)  $206,740

Year ended December 31, 2001..... 234,257 (13,208) (11,077) (2,504) 207,468

Year ended December 31, 2000..... 97,285 19,885 121,097 (4,010) 234,257
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance:

Year ended December 31, 2002..... $168,528  $(10,527) $ — $ — $158,001

Year ended December 31, 2001 ..... 69,199 99,329 — — 168,528

Year ended December 31, 2000. .... 27,278 41,921 —_ —_ 69,199

(1) Uncollected receivables written off, net of recoveries.

(2) Primarily cumulative effect of accounting change and acquisitions and dispositions of operations.
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Item 8. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company
Item 11. Executive Compensation

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Ttem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information called for by PART III (Items 10, 11, 12 and 13) has been omitted as the Company intends
to file with the Commission not later than 120 days after the close of its fiscal year a definitive Proxy
Statement pursuant to Regulation 14A. Such information is set forth in such Proxy Statement (i) with respect
to Item 10 under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance,” (ii} with respect to Items 11 and 13 under the captions “Certain Information with Respect to
Officers and Directors,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Certain
Transactions” and (iii) with respect to Item 12 under the caption “Voting Securities and Principal Holders.”
The information as specified in the preceding sentence is incorporated herein by reference; provided however,
notwithstanding anything set forth in this Form 10-K, the information under the captions “Compensation
Committee Report on Executive Compensation” and “Performance Graph” in such Proxy Statement, and the
information in the paragraphs under the caption “Audit Committee Report” in such Proxy Statement, are not
incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.

The information regarding the Company’s executive officers called for by Item 401 of Regulation S-K has
been included in PART 1 of this report.

The information regarding the Company’s equity compensation plan information called for by
Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is set forth below.
Equity Compensation Plan Information at December 31, 2002:

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to Be Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Issued upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
QOutstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) {c)

Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders. . ... .. 21,941,673 $12.69 5,426,051

Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders(1) . ... 8,059,577 8.

1

5 5,516,348(2)
Total ................. 30,001,250 10,942,399

o
—
(= 0 I
W

(1) Includes opticns outstanding under the Equity Corporation International 1994 Long-Term Incentive Plan
which became exercisable to acquire Company common stock when the Company acquired Equity
Corporation International in January 1999. The outstanding options cover an aggregate of 341,716 shares
at a weighted-average exercise price of $22.50 per share. No shares of Company common stock are
available for any future grants under this plan.

Includes options outstanding under the 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan under which nonqualified stock
options may be granted to employees who are not officers or directors. The exercise price of an option
may not be less than the fair market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant and no option may
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have a term of more than ten years. The terms of the options, including vesting, are set by a committee
appointed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may amend, terminate or suspend the plan
in its discretion. The Company has 7,717,861 total options outstanding under the 1996 Non-qualified
Incentive Plan. The Company has options available for future issuance under the 1996 Nonqualified
Incentive Plan of 742,782. See note eleven to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K for a further description of 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan. These plans have not been
submitted for shareholder approval.

(2) Includes an estimated 4,773,566 shares registered for the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Under such
plan, a dollar value of shares (not an amount of shares) are registered. The above estimate was
determined by dividing (i) the remaining unissued dollar value of registered shares at December 31,
2002, which was $15,848,238, by (ii) the closing price of $3.32 per share of common stock at
December 31, 2002.

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan enables Company employees in North America to invest via payroll
deductions up to $500 (or $600 Canadian) per month in Company common stock. Contributions are utilized
to purchase the stock in the open market. With respect to Canadian employees who meet certain
requirements, the Company will provide annually a match equal to 25% of the amount of the employee’s
contribution subject to a maximum contribution per participant of $1,800 Canadian. This plan has not been
submitted for shareholder approval.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c)
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) ) as of a date within
90 days prior to the filing date of this report (the “Evaluation Date™). Based on such evaluation, such officers
have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in alerting them on a timely basis to material information relating to the Company (including its
consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in the Company periodic filings under the Exchange Act.
Change in Internal Controls

Since the Evaluation Date, there have not been any significant changes in the Company’s internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect such controls.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(2)(1)-(2) Financial Statements and Schedule:

The financial statements and schedule are listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements
and Related Schedule on page 38 of this report.

(3) Exhibits:

The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index on pages 98-101 are filed as part of this
report.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

During the quarter ended December 31, 2002, the Company did not file any reports on Form 8-K.
(¢) Included in (a) above.
(d) Included in (a) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant, Service Corporation International, has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL

/s/  JAMES M. SHELGER

(James M. Shelger,
Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary)

Dated: March 17, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ R.L. WALTRIP* Chairman of the Board and Chief March 17, 2003
(R. L. Waltrip) Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ JEFFREY E. CURTISS* Senior Vice President Chief Financial March 17, 2003
(Jeffrey E. Curtiss) Officer and Treasurer (Principal
Financial Officer)
/s/ ERiC D. TANZBERGER* Vice President and Corporate March 17, 2003
(Eric D. Tanzberger) Controller
/s/ ANTHONY L. COELHO* Director March 17, 2003

(Anthony L. Coelho)

/s/ JACK FINKELSTEIN* Director March 17, 2003
(Jack Finkelstein)

/s/  A.J. Fovt, JrR.* Director March 17, 2003
(A. J. Foyt, Jr.) '

/s/ JaMmES H. GREER* Director March 17, 2003
(James H. Greer)

/s/ B. D. HUNTER* Director March 17, 2003
(B. D. Hunter)

/s/ VicTor L. LUND* Director March 17, 2003
(Victor L. Lund)
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Signature

/s/  JoHN W, MEcCoOM, JR.*

(John W. Mecom, Jr.)

/s/ CrLirroN H. MORRIs, JrR.*

(Clifton H. Morris, Jr.)

/s/ E. H. THORNTON, JR.*

(E. H. Thornton, Jr.)

/s/ W.BLAIR WALTRIP*

(W. Blair Waltrip)

/s/ EDWARD E. WILLIAMS*

(Edward E. Williams)

*By: /s/ JAMES M. SHELGER

{James M. Shelger, as Attorney-In-Fact
For each of the Persons indicated)
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SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL
a Texas Corporation

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Section 302 Certification

I, Robert L. Waltrip, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Service Corporation International, a Texas
corporation (the “registrant”};

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ ROBERT L. WALTRIP
Robert L. Waltrip

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 17, 2003
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SERVICE CORPORATICN INTERNATIONAL
a Texas Corporation

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
Section 302 Certification

I, Jeffrey E. Curtiss, certify that:

1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Service Corporation International, a Texas
corporation (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c. Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ JeErrreY E. CURTISS

Jeflrey E. Curtiss
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 17, 2003
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EXHIBIT INDEX
PURSUANT TO ITEM 601 OF REG. S-K

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 — Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registration
Statement No. 333-10867 on Form S-3).

3.2 — Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1996).

3.3 — Statement of Resolution Establishing Series of Shares of Series D Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, dated July 27, 1998. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 1998).

3.4 — Bylaws, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended September 30, 1999).

4.1 — Rights Agreement dated as of May 14, 1998 between the Company and Harris Trust and Savings
Bank. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K dated May 14, 1998).

4.2 — Agreement Appointing a Successor Rights Agent Under Rights Agreement, dated June 1, 1999, by
the Company, Harris Trust and Savings Bank and The Bank of New York. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1999).

10.1 — Retirement Plan For Non-Employee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991).

10.2 — First Amendment to Retirement Plan For Non-Employee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).

10.3 — Agreement dated May 14, 1992 between the Company, R.L. Waltrip and related parties relating to
life insurance. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1992).

10.4 — Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 1998, between SCI Executive Services, Inc. and
R.L. Waltrip. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

10.5 — First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated February 25, 2003, between SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and R.L. Waltrip.

10.6 — Non-Competition Agreement and Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated November 11,
1991, among the Company, R.L. Waltrip and Claire Waltrip. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992).

10.7 — Separation and Release Agreement, dated January 18, 2000, among the Company, SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and W, Blair Waltrip. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).

10.8 — Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated February 13, 2002, between SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and B.D. Hunter. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

10.9 — Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated February 13, 2002, between SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and Thomas L. Ryan.

10.10 — Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated February 13, 2002, between SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and Michael R. Webb.

10.11 — Employment and Noncompetition Agreement, dated February 13, 2002, between SCI Executive
Services, Inc. and Jeffrey E. Curtiss. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

10.12 — Form of Employment Agreement pertaining to officers (other than the officers identified in the
preceding exhibits). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001).

10.13 — 1986 Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1991).

98




Exhibit
Number Description

10.14 — Amendment to 1986 Stock Option Plan, dated February 12, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996).

10.15 — Amendment to 1986 Stock Option Plan, dated November 13, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997).

10.16 — Amended 1987 Stock Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to Proxy Statement dated
April 1, 1991).

10.17 — First Amendment to Amended 1987 Stock Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993).

10.18 — 1993 Long-Term Incentive Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to
Registration Statement No. 333-00179 on Form S-8).

10.19 — Amendment to 1993 Long-Term Incentive Stock Option Plan, dated February 12, 1997.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1996).

10.20 — Amendment to 1993 Long-Term Incentive Stock Option Plan, dated November 13, 1997.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1997).

10.21 — 1995 Incentive Equity Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Annex B to Proxy Statement dated
April 17, 1993).

10.22 — Amendment to 1995 Incentive Equity Plan, dated February 12, 1997. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996).

10.23 — Amendment to 1995 Incentive Equity Plan, dated November 13, 1997. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.21 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997).

10.24 — Amended 1996 Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Annex A to Proxy Statement dated
April 13, 1999).

10.25 — Split Dollar Life Insurance Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to Form 10-X for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1995).

10.26 — Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for Senior Officers (as Amended and Restated Effective
as of January 1, 1998). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998).

10.27 — First Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for Senior Cfficers. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).

10.28 — SCI 401 (k) Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Form S-8 filed
as of June 1, 2000, Registration Statement No. 333-38310).

10.29 — First Amendment to SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.31 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).

10.30 — SCI 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan as Amended and Restated. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.9 to Registration Statement No. 333-91046).

10.31 — 2001 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to Annex A to Proxy
Statement dated April 13, 2001).

10.32 — Director Fee Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Annex B to Proxy Statement dated April 13,
2001).

10.33 — First Amendment, dated November 13, 2002, to Director Fee Plan.

10.34 — 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registration
Statement No. 333-33101).

10.35 — Amendment to 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan dated November 13, 1997. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Registration Statement No. 333-50084).

10.36 — Amendment to 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan dated November 11, 1999. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Registration Statement No. 333-50084).
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10.37 — Amendment to 1996 Nonqualified Incentive Plan dated February 14, 2001. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Registration Statement No. 333-67800).

10.38 — Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Registration
Statement No. 2-62484 on Form S-8).

10.39 — Amendment No. 1 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 15.1 to Registration Statement No. 2-62484 on Form S-8).

10.40 — Amendment No. 2 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 28.3 to Registration Statement No. 33-25061 on Form S-8).

10.41 — Amendment No. 3 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 28.4 to Registration Statement No. 33-35708 on Form S-8).

10.42 — Amendment No. 4 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 21, 1993).

10.43 — Amendment No. 5 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.31 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).

10.44 — Amendment No. 6 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
10.45 — Amendment No. 7 to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. v
10.46 — Agreement between Merrill Lynch Canada Inc. and Service Corporation International.

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 28.5 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration
Statement No. 33-8907 on Form S-8).

10.47 — First Amendment to Agreement between Merrill Lynch Canada Inc. and Service Corporation
International. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 21, 1993).

10.48 — Employee Stock Purchase Plan Administration Agreement dated July 25, 2001 between Service
Corporation International (Canada) Limited and Fastrak Systems Inc.

12.1 — Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

21.1 — Subsidiaries of the Company.

23.1 — Consent of Independent Accountants (PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP).

24.1 — Powers of Attorney.

99.1 — Consolidated Class Action Complaint filed September 3, 1999 in Civil Action No. H-99-280, In re
Service Corporation International. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1999).

99.2 — Defendants’ Answer to the Consolidated Class Action Complaint filed September 17, 1999 in Civil

Action No. H-99-280, In re Service Corporation International. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.2 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1999).

99.3 — Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss the Consolidated Class Action Complaint filed October 8, 1999 in
Civil Action No. H-99-280, In re Service Corporation International. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.3 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1999).

99.4 — Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss the Consolidated Class Action Complaint
filed November 5, 1999 in Civil Action No. H-99-280, In Re Service Corporation International.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30,
1999).

99.5 — Defendants’ Reply to Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss the Consolidated
Class Action Complaint filed November 24, 1999 in Civil Action No. H-99-280, In re Service
Corporation International. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.12 to Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1999).
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99.6 — Plaintiffs’ Original Petition filed November 10, 1999 in Cause No. 32548-99-11, James P.
Hunter, III and James P. Hunter, II1 Family Trust v. Service Corporation International, Robert L.
Waltrip, L. William Heiligbrodt, George R. Champagne, W. Blair Waltrip, James M. Shelger,
Wesley T. McRae and PriceWaterhouse Coopers, L.L.P.; in the Judicial District Court of Angelina
County, Texas. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended September 30, 1999).

99.7 — Defendants’ Original Answer in response to the Original Petmon referred to in Exhibit 99.6.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.14 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1999).

99.8 — Plaintiff’s Original Petition filed December 28, 2000 in Cause No. 33701-01-01, Jack D. Rottman v.

Service Corporation International, Robert L. Waltrip, L. William Heiligbrodt, George R.

- Champagne, W. Blair Waltrip, James M. Shelger, Wesley T. McRae and PricewaterhouseCoopers,

L.L.P.; in the Judicial District Court of Angelina County, Texas. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.16 to Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).

99.9 — Defendants’ Motion to Transfer Venue and Criginal Answer in response to the Original Petition
referred to in Exhibit 99.8. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.17 to Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2000).

99.10 — Plaintiff’s Original Petition filed December 15, 2000, in Cause No. 2000-63917, Jack T. Hammer v.
Service Corporation International, Robert L. Waltrip, L. William Heiligbrodt, George R.
Champagne, W. Blair Waltrip, James M. Shelger, Wesley T. McRae and PricewaterhouseCoopers,
L.L.P,; in the 165th Judicial District Court of Harris County, Texas. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.18 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).

99.11 — Defendants’ Original Answer to the Original Petition referred to in Exhibit 99.10. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.10 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000).

99.12 — Plaintiffs’ First Amended Demand for Arbitration and Complaint for Damages filed January 24,
2003 in Case No. 70 Y 168 00717 02, James P. Hunter, III and the James P. Hunter, III Family
Trust v. Service Corporation International, Robert L. Waltrip, L. William Heiligbrodt, and George
R. Champagne, before the American Arbitration Association in Houston, Texas.

99.13 — Credit Agreement dated as of July 24, 2002 among the Company, as Borrower, the Lenders Party
thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Administrative Agent, Bank of America, N.A., as Syndicated
Agent, and Credit Lyonnais, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. and Merrill Lynch Capital
Corporation, as Co-Documentation Agents, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., and Banc of America

Securities LLC, as Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead Arrangers. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.2 to Form 8-K dated July 23, 2002).

99.14 — Amendment No. 1 dated as of December 6, 2002 to the Credit Agreement referred to in
Exhibit 99.13.

99.15 — Certification of Periodic Financial Reports by Robert L. Waltrip in satisfaction of Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

99.16 — Certification of Periodic Financial Reports by Jeffrey E. Curtiss in satisfaction of Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

In the above list, the management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements are set forth in
Exhibits 10.1 through 10.48.

Pursuant to Item 601(b) (4) of Regulation S-K, there are not filed as exhibits to this report certain
instruments with respect to long-term debt under which the total amount of securities authorized thereunder
does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of Registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.
Registrant agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the Commission upon request.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Offices

Service Corporation International maintains corporate offices iocated at 1929 Allen Parkway, Houston, Texas
77619. The telephone number is 713/522-5141. Additional information can be found at cur web site:
WWW.SCI-COTp.COM.

Reguests
Written requests for financial information, including the Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, should be directed to Investor Relations, PC. Box 130548, Houston,

Texas 77219-0548.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The Bank of New York

1-800-524-4458

Address Shareholder Inquiries to: Send Certificates for Transfer and Address Changes to:
Shareholder Relations Department - 11E Receive and Deliver Department - 11W

PO. Box 11258 P.O. Box 11002

Church Street Station Church Street Station

New York, NY 10286 New York, NY 10286

E-Mail Address: The Bank of New York’s Stock Transfer Website:
Shareowner-sves@bankofny.com http://www.stockbny.com

The SCI logo is a registered trademark.
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Service Corporation International

1929 Allen Parkway
Houston, Texas 77019

PO. Box 130548

Houston, Texas 77219-0548
713/522-5141
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